
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
JUNE 19, 2006 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The Acting City Manager 

NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

June 19, 2006 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Jim Loller – First Baptist Church 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) St. Nicholas Greek Orthodox Church Members – OPA Fest June 23-25 ............. 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Rezoning Application (File No: Z 717) – Proposed Medical/General Office Building, 
Northwest Corner of Lovell and Rochester Road, Section 3 – R-1C to O-1 1 

C-2 Rezoning Application (File No: Z 718) – Proposed Curves, West Side of Livernois, 
Between Maple and Kirts, Section 28 – O-1 to B-3 2 

NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

D-1 Rezoning Application (File No. Z 704) – Proposed Dunkin Donuts, South Side of 
Vanderpool, West of Rochester Road and East of Ellenboro, Section 22 – R-1E to 
B-2 2 

CONSENT AGENDA: 3 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 3 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 4 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 4 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation: 4 

a) Parks and Recreation Month – July 2006............................................................. 4 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 4 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to 
Expend Funds for Troy City Council Members’ Travel Expenses – Michigan 
Municipal League (MML) 2006 Convention .......................................................... 4 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award Photographic Services .... 4 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Sale of 3236 

Rochester Road.................................................................................................... 5 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder Contract 06-5 

Charnwood Hills Sanitary Sewer Phase I ............................................................. 5 

E-5 Approval of Cost Participation Agreement for the Reconstruction of Crooks Road, 
Square Lake to M-59 – Project No. 94.108.6 6 

E-6 Sole Source Purchase – Deep Slicer Cassette Kit 6 

E-7 Request for Acceptance of Private Road Agreement and Permanent Easement for 
Emergency Ingress/Egress, Mondrian Properties Weston Downs, L.L.C. Sidwell 
#88-20-21-102-020 – Project No. 01.912.3 6 

E-8 Application for Transfer of Class C License for Hooters of Troy 6 

E-9 Sale of Rochester Road Remnant Parcel #20-22-426-057, Section 22, All of Lot 
42, and Part of Lots 43 and 45 of Supervisors Plat #17 7 



 

 

E-10 2005-2006 Budget Amendment No. 3 8 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 8 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 8 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local 
Development Finance Authoity (LDFA); and Planning Commission b) City Council 
Appointments:  Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Advisory 
Committee for Senior Citizens; Cable Advisory Committee; Ethnic Issues Advisory 
Board; Historic District Commission; Historical Commission; Library Advisory 
Board; Liquor Advisory Committee; Municipal Building Authority; Parks & 
Recreation Board; Personnel Board; Traffic Committee; and Troy Daze Committee 8 

F-2 Revisions to Troy City Code Chapter 11 (Personnel Board) 11 

F-3 2006 Annual Salary Update for Classified and Exempt Employees and Proposed 
Changes to Benefit Package and Personnel Rules & Regulations 12 

F-4 Bi-Annual 2006 Part-time Wage Survey and Recommendations 12 

F-5 Traffic Committee Recommendations – April 19, 2006 12 

F-6 Traffic Committee Recommendations – May 17, 2006 13 

F-7 Proposed Revisions to DDA By-Laws 13 

F-8 Extend and Amend Contract for Sidewalk Replacement 13 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 14 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 14 

a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1868 Welling Drive – July 10, 2006 .................... 14 
b) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2127 Atlas – July 10, 2006.................................. 14 
c) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File No: ZOTA 214) – Article X, Group 

Child Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E Districts – July 10, 2006 .............. 14 

G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted 14 



 

 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 14 

H-1  Troy City Code Chapter 18 (Water Utility) – Council Member David Lambert 14 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 14 

I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 14 

REPORTS: 15 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 15 

a) Personnel Board/Final – June 8, 2004 ............................................................... 15 
b) Historic District Study Committee/Final – June 7, 2005...................................... 15 
c) Personnel Board/Final – December 20, 2005..................................................... 15 
d) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – March 16, 2006 .......................... 15 
e) Downtown Development Authority/Draft – April 19, 2006................................... 15 
f) Downtown Development Authority/Final – April 19, 2006................................... 15 
g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – May 3, 2006 ........................................ 15 
h) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – May 4, 2006............................. 15 
i) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – May 9, 2006............................................. 15 
j) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – May 9, 2006............................................. 15 
k) Library Advisory Board/Draft – May 11, 2006..................................................... 15 
l) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – May 16, 2006.................................................. 15 
m) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Draft – May 18, 2006 ............................. 15 
n) Historic District Study Committee/Final – May 23, 2006..................................... 15 
o) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – May 23, 2006................................ 15 
p) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – May 23, 2006................................ 15 
q) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – May 23, 2006........................................ 15 
r) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – June 1, 2006............................ 15 
s) Personnel Board/Draft – June 5, 2006 ............................................................... 15 
t) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – June 6, 2006............................................ 15 
u) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – June 7, 2006 ....................................... 15 

J-2 Department Reports: 15 

a) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting Auction Services – April/May 2006 .. 15 
b) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of May, 2006 ............. 15 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 15 

a) Letter to Chief Craft from Keith Pretty, J.D., President of Walsh College, 
Thanking Sgt. Cantlon, Sgt. Crocker, and the Troy Police Department for 
Their Assistance During Commencement Ceremonies ...................................... 15 

b) Letter of Thanks to Officer Cole and Officer Mairorano from Patricia Peijak 
and Family in Appreciation of Their Assistance and Compassion ...................... 15 



 

 

c) Letter of Appreciation to Captain Murphy from John Gladysz, Price Funeral 
Home, Thanking Lt. Houghton and the Troy Police Department for Their 
Support During the Funeral Service of John Sepac............................................ 15 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 15 

J-5  Calendar 15 

J-6  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding 
Fee Waiver for Military Personnel 15 

J-7  Communication from Planning Director Mark Miller Regarding Pet Stores and 
Commercial Kennels 16 

J-8  Communication from Traffic Engineer John Abraham Regarding Traffic Study for 
Rochester Road Between Square Lake and South Boulevard 16 

J-9  Communication from City Engineer Steve Vandette Regarding Request to Amend 
Chapter 42, Flood Plain Management Allowing Homes with Basements in Flood 
Plain Areas 16 

STUDY ITEMS: 16 

K-1 Disposal/Sale of Excess Property 16 

K-2 Blight Strategy Presentation 16 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 16 

CLOSED SESSION: 16 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 16 

ADJOURNMENT 16 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 17 

Monday, July 10, 2006 Regular City Council......................................................... 17 
Monday, July 24, 2006 Regular City Council......................................................... 17 
Monday, August 14, 2006 Regular City Council.................................................... 17 
Monday, August 28, 2006 Regular City Council.................................................... 17 



 

 

Monday, September 11, 2006 Regular City Council ............................................. 17 
Monday, September 18, 2006 Regular City Council ............................................. 17 
Monday, September 25, 2006 Regular City Council ............................................. 17 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 19, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Jim Loller – First Baptist Church   

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:   
a) St. Nicholas Greek Orthodox Church Members – OPA Fest June 23-25  
  
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Rezoning Application (File No: Z 717) – Proposed Medical/General Office Building, 
Northwest Corner of Lovell and Rochester Road, Section 3 – R-1C to O-1    

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1C to O-1 rezoning request, located on the northwest corner of Lovell 
and Rochester, in Section 3, part of parcel 88-20-03-226-104, being 0.994 acres in size, is 
described in the following legal description and illustrated on the attached Certificate of Survey 
drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, NE ¼ of the NE ¼ of Section 3 
 

Commencing at the East ¼ Corner of said Section 3;  thence N 01°46'00" W (Recorded 
as N 01°21'08" W) along the east line of Section 3, 1831.21 ft. and S 88°38'24" W, 80.00 
ft. to the Point of Beginning being at the intersection of the west line of Rochester Rd. 
(M-150) and the north line of Lovell Ave.;  thence continuing S 88°38'24" W, along the 
north line of Lovell Ave., 221.00 ft.;  thence N 01°46'00" W, 195.90 ft.;  thence N 
88°38'24" E (Recorded as N 89°03'37" E), 221.00 ft. to the west line of Rochester Rd.;  
thence S 01°46'00" E along said west line, 195.90 ft. to the Point of Beginning.  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 19, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

Containing 0.994 ac., more or less, and subject to easements and restrictions of record; 
and 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the proposed rezoning is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-2 Rezoning Application (File No: Z 718) – Proposed Curves, West Side of Livernois, 

Between Maple and Kirts, Section 28 – O-1 to B-3   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the O-1 to B-3 rezoning request, located on the west side of Livernois, 
between Maple and Kirts, in Section 28, part of parcel 88-20-28-478-030, being 14,250 square 
feet in size, is described in the following legal description and illustrated on the attached 
Certificate of Survey drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, SE ¼ of Section 28 
 

The North 95 ft. of the South 330 ft. of the West 150 ft. of the East 183 ft. of the 
Southeast ¼ of Section 28. Containing 0.33 ac., more or less, and subject to easements 
and restrictions of record; and 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the proposed rezoning is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Rezoning Application (File No. Z 704) – Proposed Dunkin Donuts, South Side of 
Vanderpool, West of Rochester Road and East of Ellenboro, Section 22 – R-1E to 
B-2 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1E to B-2 and E-P rezoning request, located on the south side of 
Vanderpool, west of Rochester Road and east of Ellenboro, Section 22, part of parcel 88-20-22-
426-045, being approximately 0.5 acres in size, is described in the following legal descriptions 
and illustrated on the attached Exhibit drawing: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 19, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF E-P PARCEL (WEST 30 FEET):
 
T2N, R11E, SE ¼ of Section 22 
 
Part of Lot 41, Supervisors Plat No.17, City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan. 
More particularly described as commencing at a point distant S 00°00'00" W, 156.78 feet 
& N 89°49'22" W, 100.00 feet from the northeast corner of Lot 41; thence proceeding N 
89°49'22" W, 30.00 feet; thence N 00°00'00" E, 183.02 feet; thence along a curve to the 
right with an arc length of 30.23 feet, a radius of 143.42 feet, chord bearing and distance 
of S 83°46'06" E, 30.18 feet; thence S 00°00'00" W, 179.84 feet to the point of beginning.  
Parcel contains: 0.13 acres more or less. 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF B-2 PARCEL (EXCLUDING WEST 30 FEET):
 
T2N, R11E, SE ¼ of Section 22 
 
Part of Lot 41, Supervisors Plat No.17, City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan. 
More particularly described as commencing at the northeast corner of Lot 41 and 
proceeding S 00°00'00" W, 156.78 feet; thence N 89°49'22" W, 100.00 feet; thence N 
00°00'00" E, 179.84 feet; thence along a curve to the right with an arc length of 26.71 
feet, a radius of 143.42 feet, chord bearing and distance of S 72°23'36" E, 26.67 feet; 
thence along a curve to the left with an arc length of 76.63 feet, a radius of 193.42 feet, 
chord bearing and distance of S 78°24'28" E, 76.13 feet to the point of beginning.  Parcel 
contains: 0.38 acres more or less; and 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the proposed rezoning is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 19, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of June 5, 2006; 
the Minutes of the 8:00 AM Special City Council Meeting of June 10, 2006 and the Minutes of 
the 2:00 PM Special City Council Meeting of June 11, 2006 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation:   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamation be APPROVED: 
 
a) Parks and Recreation Month – July 2006  
  
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds for Troy City Council Members’ Travel Expenses – Michigan Municipal 
League (MML) 2006 Convention             

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That those Council Members interested are AUTHORIZED to attend the 2006 
MML Convention, September 27 – 29, 2006, in Marquette, Michigan in accordance with 
accounting procedures of the City of Troy. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award Photographic Services             
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide three (3) year requirements of Photographic Services 
with an option to renew for three (3) additional years is hereby AWARDED to Laura Freeman 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 19, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

Photography of Dearborn, MI, the highest scoring respondent as a result of a Best Value 
process, which the Troy City Council determines to be in the public interest at unit prices 
contained in the tabulation opened May 17, 2006, for an estimated cost of $24,070.00 per year, 
which includes $1,000.00 for insurance, with a contract expiration of June 30, 2009; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
proper contract and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.   
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Sale of 3236 Rochester 

Road             
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to sell surplus real estate parcel #20-23-304-019 located at 3236 
Rochester Road is hereby AWARDED to the sole bidder, Maged & Nevein Michail of Troy, MI 
at a total cost of $355,000.00, as listed on the bid tabulation opened June 8, 2006, 
CONTINGENT upon the purchaser(s) securing a bank loan; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department may 
EXPEND the necessary funds for title insurance and recordings to close and record this real 
estate parcel; and 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO SIGN 
a warranty deed to be delivered at closing. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder Contract 06-5 

Charnwood Hills Sanitary Sewer Phase I             
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Contract No. 06-5, Charnwood Hills Sanitary Sewer Phase I, be AWARDED 
to Tyger Excavating, Inc., 52188 Van Dyke, Suite 211, Shelby Township, MI 48316 at an 
estimated total cost of $1,379,570.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the sewer benefit fee for Charnwood Sanitary Sewers Phase 
I, as provided for in Chapter 20 of the Troy City Code and revised by Resolution #2005-04-189, 
be $16,268.51 based on the total cost of the sewer extension, including engineering and 
contingency, divided by 106 existing and potential lots derived from lot splits that benefit from 
the sewer improvements.   
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 19, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

E-5 Approval of Cost Participation Agreement for the Reconstruction of Crooks Road, 
Square Lake to M-59 – Project No. 94.108.6 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Cost Participation Agreement between the City of Troy and the Board of 
Road Commissioners for the County of Oakland for the Crooks Road, Square Lake to M-59 
Project No. 94.108.6, is hereby APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED 
TO EXECUTE the Agreement.    
 
E-6 Sole Source Purchase – Deep Slicer Cassette Kit 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
WHEREAS, Weingartz Golf and Turf of Farmington Hills is the sole distributor of Supa 
equipment in Michigan; and  
 
WHEREAS, To improve golf course conditions and playability of the greens during the hot, dry 
summer months, it is necessary to purchase the Supa deep slicer cassette kit to retrofit the 
Supa Verticuter System already in service;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy Parks and Recreation Department is 
AUTHORIZED to purchase the Supa deep slicer cassette kit from Weingartz Golf and Turf of 
Farmington Hills, Michigan at a cost of $3,200.00 for an estimated grand total for the Supa 
Verticuter System of $10,700.00.  
 
E-7 Request for Acceptance of Private Road Agreement and Permanent Easement for 

Emergency Ingress/Egress, Mondrian Properties Weston Downs, L.L.C. Sidwell 
#88-20-21-102-020 – Project No. 01.912.3 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Private Road Agreement and Permanent Easement for Emergency 
Ingress/Egress from Mondrian Properties Weston Downs, L.L.C., owner of property having 
Sidwell #88-20-21-102-020, are hereby ACCEPTED; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO SIGN said 
Private Road Agreement on behalf of the City of Troy; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
agreement and easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8 Application for Transfer of Class C License for Hooters of Troy 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 19, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

(a) New License
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Hooters of Troy, Inc., (a Georgia Corporation) to transfer 
ownership of a 2005 Class C licensed business with outdoor service (1 area) located at 2950 
Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County from Sign of the Beefcarver, Inc., and the request 
for a new entertainment permit be CONSIDERED for APPROVAL; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby APPROVES 
an agreement with Hooters of Troy, Inc., (a Georgia Corporation) to transfer ownership of a 
2005 Class C licensed business with outdoor service (1 area) located at 2950 Rochester, Troy, 
MI 48083, Oakland County from Sign of the Beefcarver, Inc., and request a new entertainment 
permit and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-9 Sale of Rochester Road Remnant Parcel #20-22-426-057, Section 22, All of Lot 42, 

and Part of Lots 43 and 45 of Supervisors Plat #17 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain parcels 
will best serve the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served without 
obtaining sealed bids for the sale of a remnant parcel; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council finds that the public interest will 
best be served without obtaining a sealed bid in accordance with Resolution 85-254 Policy 
Governing Disposal (Sales) of Excess City owned property and APPROVE the sale of the 
remnant parcel having Sidwell #88-20-22-426-057, described in Attachment “A” attached 
hereto, to Troy-Rochester Properties, L.L.C. for $200,000.00, the appraised value as outlined in 
the Offer to Purchase, with conditions, plus closing costs; and  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 19, 2006 
 

- 8 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That closing will take place when all conditions have been met; 
and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the Agreement to Purchase and the Warranty Deed, on behalf of the City; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents, including all attachments, at the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to and made a part of the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-10 2005-2006 Budget Amendment No. 3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That the 2005-06 Budget Amendment No. 3 be APPROVED as submitted and 
that a copy of the budget amendment be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 11 “F”.  

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local 
Development Finance Authoity (LDFA); and Planning Commission b) City Council 
Appointments:  Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Advisory 
Committee for Senior Citizens; Cable Advisory Committee; Ethnic Issues Advisory 
Board; Historic District Commission; Historical Commission; Library Advisory 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 19, 2006 
 

- 9 - 

Board; Liquor Advisory Committee; Municipal Building Authority; Parks & 
Recreation Board; Personnel Board; Traffic Committee; and Troy Daze Committee 

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments   
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve on 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) 
Appointed by Mayor (5) – 4 Year Staggered Terms 
 

(Council Rep) Term Expires 06/30/10 
 
Planning Commission 
Appointed by Mayor (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b)  City Council Appointments
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities
Appointed by Council  (9 Regular Members; 3 Alternates) – 3 Year Terms 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 19, 2006 
 

- 10 - 

(Alternate) Unexpired Term Expires 11/01/06 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/09 
 
Cable Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board 
Appointed by Council (9) – 2 & 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
 
Historic District Commission  One member, an architect if available 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms  Two members, chosen from a list submitted by a 
  duly organized history group or groups 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
 Term Expires 05/16/09 
 
 Term Expires 05/16/09 
 
Historical Commission 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
 Term Expires 07/31/09 
 
 Term Expires 07/31/09 
 
Library Advisory Board 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 19, 2006 
 

- 11 - 

 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
Liquor Advisory Committee
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council (10) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 

Troy School District Rep Term Expires 07/01/07 
 
Personnel Board
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/09 
 
Traffic Committee
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
Troy Daze Committee 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Revisions to Troy City Code Chapter 11 (Personnel Board) 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 19, 2006 
 

- 12 - 

Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Sections 2.2, 7.6, and 8.2 of the Troy City Code be REVISED as 
recommended by City Management, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 2006 Annual Salary Update for Classified and Exempt Employees and Proposed 

Changes to Benefit Package and Personnel Rules & Regulations 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the 2006 Classification and Pay Plans are hereby APPROVED as 
recommended by City Management and the Personnel Board, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the revision to the Personnel Rules & Regulations for 
Classified Personnel is hereby APPROVED, as recommended by City Management and the 
Personnel Board, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Bi-Annual 2006 Part-time Wage Survey and Recommendations 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the recommendations presented in the 2006 Part-Time Wage 
Recommendations are hereby APPROVED, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting.
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-5 Traffic Committee Recommendations – April 19, 2006 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-06- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 19, 2006 
 

- 13 - 

Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
(a) No Changes to Traffic Control Devices at Ivanhoe and Sweet
 
RESOLVED, That NO CHANGES be made to traffic control devices at Ivanhoe and Sweet. 
 
(b)  Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones at 5365-5407 Crooks Road 
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED for the establishment of 
fire lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch at 5365-5407 Crooks Road. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-6 Traffic Committee Recommendations – May 17, 2006  
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
(a) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones 103 Park Street  
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED for the establishment of 
fire lanes/tow away zones at 103 Park Street per the Fire Department recommendations. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-7 Proposed Revisions to DDA By-Laws  
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed revisions to the City of Troy Downtown Development Authority 
By-Laws and Rules of Procedure are APPROVED as recommended by City Administration, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-8 Extend and Amend Contract for Sidewalk Replacement   
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-06- 
Moved by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 19, 2006 
 

- 14 - 

Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, On August 4, 2003, Troy City Council approved a contract to provide a sidewalk 
replacement and installation program with an option to renew for two (2) additional one-year 
periods to the low bidder, Hard Rock Concrete, Inc., of Westland, MI, for an estimated annual 
cost of $366,210.00, plus a 25% allowance for changes to the quantity of work as needed 
(Resolution #2003-08-425-E9);  
 
WHEREAS, The contract options were subsequently exercised and approved on July 19, 2004 
and July 11, 2005 under the same contract unit prices, terms and conditions expiring June 30, 
2006 (Resolution #2004-07-383 and 2005-07-348 respectively); and 
 
WHEREAS, Hard Rock Concrete, Inc., has agreed to extend and amend the contract quantities 
under the same prices, terms, and conditions as the original contract; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the contract is hereby EXTENDED and AMENDED with 
Hard Rock Concrete, Inc., to provide sidewalk replacement and installation with the City of Troy 
for an additional  $267,237.50, which will be added to the previously approved contract 
amounts and all costs will not exceed $725,000.00; and  
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the contract will be at the same unit prices as the 2003 
contract expiring June 30, 2007. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1868 Welling Drive – July 10, 2006  
b) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2127 Atlas – July 10, 2006  
c) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File No: ZOTA 214) – Article X, Group Child Care 

Homes in the R-1A through R-1E Districts – July 10, 2006 
    
G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  Troy City Code Chapter 18 (Water Utility) – Council Member David Lambert 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 19, 2006 
 

- 15 - 

REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Personnel Board/Final – June 8, 2004  
b) Historic District Study Committee/Final – June 7, 2005 
c) Personnel Board/Final – December 20, 2005  
d) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – March 16, 2006  
e) Downtown Development Authority/Draft – April 19, 2006  
f) Downtown Development Authority/Final – April 19, 2006  
g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – May 3, 2006  
h) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – May 4, 2006  
i) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – May 9, 2006  
j) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – May 9, 2006 
k) Library Advisory Board/Draft – May 11, 2006  
l) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – May 16, 2006  
m) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Draft – May 18, 2006  
n) Historic District Study Committee/Final – May 23, 2006  

 o) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – May 23, 2006 
06 p) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – May 23, 20

 q) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – May 23, 2006  
/Draft – June 1, 2006  r) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens

 s) Personnel Board/Draft – June 5, 2006  
t) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – June 6, 2006  

) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – June 7, 2006 u
 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting Auction Services – April/May

 Department – Permits Issued During the Month of May, 2006 
 2006  

b) Building
  

  J-3 Letters of Appreciation: 
a) Letter to Chief Craft from Keith Pretty, J.D., President of Walsh College, Thanking Sgt. 

Cantlon, Sgt. Crocker, and the Troy Police Department for Their Assistance During 
Commencement Ceremonies  

b) Letter of Thanks to Officer Cole and Officer Mairorano from Patricia Peijak and Family in 
Appreciation of Their Assistance and Compassion  

c) Letter of Appreciation to Captain Murphy from John Gladysz, Price Funeral Home, 
Thanking Lt. Houghton and the Troy Police Department for Their Support During the 
Funeral Service of John Sepac     

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding 

Fee Waiver for Military Personnel 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 19, 2006 
 

- 16 - 

J-7  Communication from Planning Director Mark Miller Regarding Pet Stores and 
Commercial Kennels 

 
J-8  Communication from Traffic Engineer John Abraham Regarding Traffic Study for 

Rochester Road Between Square Lake and South Boulevard 
 
-9  Communication from City Engineer Steve Vandette Regarding Request to Amend J

Chapter 42, Flood Plain Management Allowing Homes with Basements in Flood 
Plain Areas 

TUDY ITEMS:  

-1 Disposal/Sale of Excess Property 

 
S
 
K
 
K-2 Blight Strategy Presentation 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 

henever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
 it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 

satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 

LOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 

w
are encouraged to bring

 
C

 
ADJOURNMENT 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 19, 2006 
 

- 17 - 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, July 10, 2006 .............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, July 24, 2006 .............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, August 14, 2006 ......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, August 28, 2006 ......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 11, 2006 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 18, 2006 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 25, 2006 ................................................... Regular City Council 

 



campbellld
Text Box
A-01a



 1

 
 
DATE:  June 9, 2006 
 
TO: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Public Hearing – Rezoning Application (File No: Z 717) – 

Proposed Medical/General Office Building, Northwest Corner of Lovell and 
Rochester Road, Section 3 – R-1C to O-1 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of this application at the May 9, 
2006 Regular meeting.  City Management agrees with the Planning Commission and 
recommends approval of the rezoning application.   
 
 
JUSTIFICATION FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
The application does not comply with the Future Land Use Plan nor does it meet the 
Location Standards of Section 24.40.00.   
 
However, the application is compatible with existing zoning districts and land uses.  The 
property to the north is an attached condominium development, to the south a retail use 
and a single-family residence.  Across Rochester Road to the east sits a restaurant and 
an attached condominium development.  To the west is a City-owned detention basin.  
Note that the two parcels to the south front on Rochester Road and are used for retail 
and office uses.   
 
The subject parcel is relatively isolated from other single-family homes.  There is not a 
strong relationship between the subject parcel and the existing homes on Lovell.  The 
residences on the south side of Lovell front on Hannah and have driveways on Hannah; 
their back yards abut Lovell.  The detention basin to the west serves as a significant 
buffer between the subject parcel and the houses on the north side of Lovell to the west. 
 
Additionally, the Planning Commission is considering an amendment to the Future Land 
Use Plan that would create a Rochester Road Overlay District and permit a range of 
uses to serve as a transition between Rochester Road and the abutting single-family 
residential neighborhood.  This application appears to be consistent with this direction. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



 2

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is Franco Mancini. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the northwest corner of Lovell and Rochester Road, in 
Section 3. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 0.994 acres in area.  
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The property is presently vacant.  
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
O-1 Office Building. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing to develop the property as a medical and general office 
building.   
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Sandalwood Condominium. 
South: Retail and single family residential. 
East: Alibi Restaurant and Woodside Bible Church/Northwyck PUD. 
West: Detention basin (City-owned). 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1T One Family Attached. 
South: B-1 Local Business. 
East: B-3 General Business and PUD #1. 
West: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in Proposed O-1 Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 

Office Buildings for any of the following occupations: executive, administrative; 
professional; accounting; writing; clerical stenographic; drafting; and sales. 



 3

 Medical office, including clinics. 
 

Banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, and similar uses. Such uses 
may include drive-in facilities only as an accessory use. 

 
 Publicly owned buildings, exchanges, and public utility offices. 
 
 Other uses similar to the above uses. 
 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 

Uses customarily supporting or serving the Principal Uses permitted in this District, 
such as pharmacies or drug stores, optical services, copy services, office supplies, 
book stores, art galleries, or restaurants. 

 
Data processing and computer centers, including sales support, service and 
maintenance of electronic data processing equipment.   

 
Technical training uses. 

 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 

Mortuary establishments. 
 
 Private service clubs, fraternal organizations and lodge halls. 
 
 Private ambulance facilities. 
 

Utility sub-stations, transformer stations or gas regulator stations (without 
storage yards). 

 
Mechanical or laboratory research involving testing and evaluation of products, or 
prototype or experimental product or process development. 

 
Child care centers, nursery schools, or day nurseries (not including dormitories).  

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on Rochester Road. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will have to provide on-site storm water detention and all other utilities. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are wetlands, woodlands and floodplain 
located on the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Medium Density Residential.  
The Medium Density Residential classification correlates with the R-1T, R-2, R-M and 



 4

R-EC zoning districts.  The application therefore does not comply with the Future Land 
Use Plan.  The parcel has been planned for Medium Density Residential since 1999. 
 
Compliance with Location Standards 
Section 24.40.00 includes Location Standards to apply to rezoning requests: 
 
 24.40.00 LOCATION STANDARDS 
 
 24.40.10 Location Standards: the O-1 (Office Building) District may be applied 

when the application of such a classification is consistent with the 
intent of the Master Land Use Planning and policies related thereto, 
and therefore involves the following types of areas: 

 
 24.40.11 Areas indicated as low-rise office. 
 
 24.40.12 Portions of areas designated as community service centers or 

neighborhood service centers. 
 
 24.40.13 Areas designated for commercial or other non-residential 

development, or higher intensity office development, when one or 
more of the following determinations are made: 

 
   A. When the adjacent area and/or the total community would be 

more effectively served by the application of O-1 zoning than 
by the application of a commercial or other non-residential 
zoning District of a more intense office District. 

 
   B. When development in accordance with O-1 zoning would 

serve as a transitional element and would thus be more 
compatible with adjacent properties than would development 
under commercial or other office classifications. 

 
The application does not meet the Location Standards of Section 24.40.00. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Letter from applicant, dated April 5, 2006. 
3. Letters of opposition (2). 

 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File / Z 717 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-717 Proposed Medical Office Bldg. Sec 3\CC Public Hearing Z-717 06 19 06.doc 







R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

 R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

SUBJECT PARCEL



HANNAH

E LOVELL

HARTWIG

ALAMEDA

SANDALWOOD

ALAMEDA

ALAMEDA

A
LA

M
E

D
A

ALAM
ED

A

E
D

G
E

W
ATE

R

ALAMEDA

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED ROCHESTER PROFESSIONAL BLDG.
FROM R-1C TO O-1
NW CORNER OF ROCHESTER RD. & LOVELL
SEC. 3  (Z-717)

SUBJECT PARCEL



HANNAH

E LOVELL

HARTWIG

ALAMEDA

SANDALWOOD

ALAMEDA

ALAMEDA

A
LA

M
E

D
A

ALAM
ED

A

E
D

G
E

W
ATE

R

ALAMEDA

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

CJ-32

(PUD)
Planned Unit
Development

(P-1) Vehicular
Parking
District

(R-1D) One Family
Residential District

(R-1C) One Family
Residential District

(B-3) General
Business
District

(B-1) Local
Business
District

(R-1B) One Family
Residential District

(R-1T) One
Family Attached

Residential District

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED ROCHESTER PROFESSIONAL BLDG.
FROM R-1C TO O-1
NW CORNER OF ROCHESTER RD. & LOVELL
SEC. 3  (Z-717)

SUBJECT PARCEL











 1

DATE:  June 9, 2006 
 
TO: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Public Hearing – Rezoning Application (File No: Z 718) – 

Proposed Curves, West Side of Livernois, between Maple and Kirts, Section 
28 – O-1 to B-3 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The application is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan and compatible 
with existing zoning districts and land uses.  The Planning Commission recommended 
approval of the rezoning request at the May 9, 2006 Regular meeting.  City Management 
agrees with the Planning Commission and recommends approval of the rezoning 
application.   
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is Beth Anne Beattie. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the west side of Livernois, between Maple and Kirts, in Section 28. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 14,250 square feet in area.  
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
There is a vacant office building that presently sits on the property.  
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
O-1 Office Building. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
B-3 General Business. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing to reuse the building as a Curves athletic facility.   
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Good Food retail store. 
South: Red Wagon Shoppe. 
East: Pizza Hut. 
West: Good Food retail store. 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



 2

Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: B-2 Community Business. 
South: B-3 General Business. 
East: B-3 General Business. 
West: B-2 Community Business. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in Proposed B-3 Zoning District and Potential Build-out Scenario:  
 

PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 

Any retail business or service establishment permitted in B-2 Districts as Principal 
Uses Permitted and Uses Permitted Subject to Special Conditions. 

 
Mortuary establishments.  

 
Bus or transit passenger stations, taxicab offices and dispatching centers, and 
emergency vehicle or ambulance facilities.  

 
 Parking garages and off-street parking areas. 
 
 Sales, showrooms, and incidental repair of recreational vehicles. 
 
 New and used car salesroom, showroom, or office. 
 

Governmental offices, public utility offices, exchanges, transformer stations, pump 
stations and service yards but not including outdoor storage. 

 
 Other uses similar to the above uses. 
 
 Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted uses. 
 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 
 Drive-up windows or service facilities, as an accessory to restaurants. 
 

Drive-up service facilities, as accessory to principal permitted uses within B-3 districts, 
apart from restaurants. 
 
Bowling alley, billiard hall, indoor archery range, indoor skating rinks, indoor tennis 
courts, athletic or heath clubs, or similar forms of indoor commercial recreation. 
 
Open air business uses when developed as uses subordinate to primary uses and 
structures within the B-3 District 

 
Outside seating of twenty (20) seats or less for restaurants, or other food service 
establishments. 



 3

USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL 
 

Outdoor sales space for exclusive sale or lease of new or second-hand automobiles, 
trucks, mobile homes, trailers, or recreational vehicles 

 
 Motel or hotel 
 

Veterinary hospitals provided all activities are conducted within a totally enclosed main 
building and provided further that all abutting or adjacent property is non-residentially 
zoned. 

 
 Commercial kennels 

 
Automobile repair garages, provided all activities are conducted within a completely 
enclosed building. 

 
Outside seating areas, in excess of twenty (20) seats, for restaurants, or other food 
service establishments 

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on Livernois. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will have to provide on-site storm water detention and all other utilities. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on the 
property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Non-Center Commercial.  The 
Non-Center Commercial classification has a primary correlation with the B-3 General 
Business Zoning District.  The application therefore complies with the Future Land Use 
Plan.  The parcel has been planned for Non-Center Commercial since 1971. 
 
Compliance with Location Standards: 
The B-3 Local Business Zoning District does not have Location Standards to apply to 
rezoning requests. 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps. 
2. Letter from applicant, dated April 11, 2006. 
3. Letter from John Gonway, representing Peter Ruppe, Inc., dated May 9, 2006. 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File / Z 718 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-718 Proposed Curves Sec 28\CC Public Hearing Z-718 06 19 06.doc 







W MAPLE

FORTHTON
M

A
S

TIN
BIRCHWOOD

CHOPIN

E MAPLE
LIV

E
R

N
O

IS
M

A
IN

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED CURVES
FROM O-1 TO B-3
W SIDE LIVERNOIS, N OF MAPLE
SEC. 28 (Z-718)

±0 50 100
Feet

SUBJECT PARCEL

CITY OF CLAWSON



W MAPLE

FORTHTON
M

A
S

TIN
BIRCHWOOD

CHOPIN

E MAPLE
LIV

E
R

N
O

IS
M

A
IN

(B-3) General
Business
District

(H-S) Highway
Service
District

(B-2) Community
Business District

(R-2) Two Family
Residential District

(O-1) Office
Building
District

(B-1) Local
Business
District

(R-1E) One Family
Residential District

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED CURVES
FROM O-1 TO B-3
W SIDE LIVERNOIS, N OF MAPLE
SEC. 28 (Z-718)

±0 50 100
Feet

SUBJECT PARCEL

CITY OF CLAWSON











 1

 
 
 
 
June 13, 2006 
 
 
 
TO: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Rezoning Application (File No. Z 704) – Proposed Dunkin 

Donuts, South side of Vanderpool, West of Rochester Road and East of 
Ellenboro, Section 22 – R-1E to B-2 

 
A public hearing was held for this item at the June 5, 2006 City Council Regular 
meeting.  During the public hearing, some residents expressed concern regarding the 
proposed buffer between the subject property and the abutting single-family residential 
neighborhood to the west.  The petitioner proposed to rezone the western 30 feet of the 
property to E-P Environmental Protection District, which would ensure that the buffer 
would remain undeveloped in the future.  The item was postponed to the June 19, 2006 
City Council Regular meeting to provide the petitioner with time to prepare a revised 
legal description that clearly illustrates the 30-foot wide E-P buffer. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. City Management memo dated May 25, 2006.  
 

cc: Applicant 
File/ Z-704 

 
Prepared by RBS 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-704 DUNKIN DONUTS SEC 22\CC Memo Z 704 06 19 06.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
D-01







 1

Date: May 25, 2006 
 
To: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (Z 704) – 

Proposed Dunkin Donuts, South side of Vanderpool, West of Rochester 
Road and East of Ellenboro, Section 22 – R-1E to B-2 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The rezoning application is compatible with surrounding land uses and zoning districts.  
Further, the request is consistent with the existing B-2 zoning located south of 
Vanderpool.  The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on April 11, 
2006 and recommended approval of the rezoning request.  City Management agrees 
with the Planning Commission and recommends approval of the rezoning request. 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO FUTURE LAND USE PLAN 
 
The subject property is designated as non-center commercial on the Future Land Use 
Plan.  Both the B-3 and H-S zoning districts correlate with the non-center commercial 
future land use designation.  Most of the uses permitted in the proposed B-2 district are 
permitted in the B-3 district; however, the B-3 district includes a wider range of uses.  
Within the B-3 district, the front yard setback is 40 feet and the rear yard setback is 30 
feet.  The proposed B-2 district setbacks are greater; the front yard setback is 75 feet 
and the rear yard setback is 30 feet.  Therefore, the potential land uses are less 
intensive within the proposed B-2 district and the building setbacks are greater, when 
compared to the future planned B-3 district.  
 
The proposed rezoning would extend the existing western boundary of B-2 property to 
line up precisely with the abutting property to the south, which is also within the B-2 
zoning district.  This proposed B-2 boundary extends slightly further to the west than the 
B-3 district to the north and across Vanderpool.  However, the depth of the proposed B-
2 zoning towards the west is consistent with properties along the western side of the 
Rochester Road corridor, between Big Beaver and Wattles.   
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owners of the property are Glenn and Barbara Carter.  The applicant is John 
Glasnak of Troy-Rochester Properties, LLC. 



 2

Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the south side of Vanderpool, west of Rochester Road and 
east of Ellenboro, in Section 22. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 0.5 acres in area.  
 
Parcel History: 
The applicant submitted an application to rezone the subject parcel on May 16, 2005.  
The Planning Commission recommended approval of the rezoning request on June 14, 
2005.  City Council denied the request on August 1, 2005.  The applicant modified the 
site plan by eliminating the entry drive on Vanderpool.   
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The subject parcel is a single family residence. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-1E One Family Residential. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
B-2 Community Business. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing to acquire three City-owned remnant parcels that abut the 
subject parcel to the east.  The four parcels will be combined and developed as a 
Dunkin Donuts restaurant.  Rezoning and combining these parcels creates a desirable 
commercial site.  The applicant has provided a site plan that indicates all traffic will enter 
the site from Rochester Road.  The site plan also proposes a 6-foot high screen wall on 
the western property line and significant landscaping on the east side of the wall.   
 
The remnant parcels are Lot 42 and part of Lots 43 and 45 of Supervisor’s Plat Number 
17.  The subject parcel is part of Lot 41 of Supervisor’s Plat Number 17.  The purchase 
of the remnant parcels will be approved upon the rezoning request being granted. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Single-family residential. 
South: Troy Point Plaza (retail strip mall). 
East: Vacant. 
West: Single-family residential. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1E One Family Residential and B-3 General Business. 
South: B-2 Community Business. 
East: B-2 Community Business. 
West: R-1E One Family Residential. 



 3

ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in Proposed B-2 Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 

PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
Any retail business or service establishment permitted in B-1 Districts as Principal 
Uses Permitted and Uses Permitted Subject to Special Conditions,  
 
Any retail business whose principal activity is the sale of merchandise in an 
enclosed building, except for those limited to or first permitted in the B-3 General 
Business District. 
 
Any service establishment of a showroom or workshop nature, of an electrician, 
decorator, dressmaker, tailor, baker, painter, upholsterer; or an establishment doing 
radio or home appliance repair, photographic studios and reproduction and similar 
service establishments that require a retail adjunct. 
 
Business establishments which perform services on the premises, such as but not 
limited to:  banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, loan companies, 
insurance offices, travel services, and real estate offices. 
 
Private clubs, fraternal organization, and lodge halls. 
 
Restaurants, or other places serving food or beverage, except those having the 
character of a drive-in or open front store. 
 
Theaters, assembly halls, concert halls or similar places of assembly, when 
conducted completely within enclosed buildings. 
 
Business schools and colleges or private schools operated for profit, not including 
nursery schools. 
 
Other uses similar to the above uses. 
 
Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted uses. 
 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 
Drive-up Windows or Service Facilities, as Accessory to Principal Uses Within B-2 
Districts, Apart from Restaurants 
 
Outside seating areas, of twenty (20) seats or less, for restaurants or other food 
service establishments 



 4

USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL 
 
Drive-Up Windows or Service Facilities, as an Accessory to Restaurants Permitted 
Within this District 
 
Bowling alley, billiard hall, indoor archery range, indoor skating, rinks, indoor tennis 
courts, athletic or health clubs, or similar forms of indoor commercial recreation, 
when the subject uses are located at least 100 feet from any Residential District. 
 
Open air business uses when developed as uses subordinate to primary uses and 
structures within the B-2 District as follows: 
 
A. Retail sales of plant material not grown on the site, and sales of lawn 

furniture, playground equipment and garden supplies. 
B. Recreational space providing shuffleboard, miniature golf, tennis, or similar 

outdoor recreation, when part of a planned development. 
C. Outdoor driver training and testing areas on or abutting the site of a driving 

school. 
 
Outside seating areas, in excess of twenty (20) seats, for restaurants, or other 
food service establishments. 
 
Facilities within a retail establishment for installation, in vehicles, of items sold at 
retail at that location. 

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on Vanderpool. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will have to provide on-site storm water detention and all other utilities. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Non-Center Commercial.  The 
Non-Center Commercial designation has a Primary Correlation with the B-3 General 
Business Zoning District and a Secondary Correlation with the H-S Highway Service 
Zoning District.  The Non-Center Commercial designation does not correlate with the B-
2 Zoning District.  However, the B-2 district is a commercial zone as is B-3, and the B-2 
district is less intense in terms of potential uses than the B-3 district.  Further, the 
request is an expansion of an existing B-2 zoning district.  The Rochester Road frontage 
has been planned for Non-Center Commercial since 1965. 
 



 5

Compliance with Location Standards: 
The B-2 Local Business Zoning District does not have Location Standards to apply to 
rezoning requests. 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Statement of Applicant. 
3. Letters of opposition (3). 

 
 
Prepared by RBS, MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File / Z 704 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-704 DUNKIN DONUTS SEC 22\CC Public Hearing_06 05 06.doc 
 
 





R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

 R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

SUBJECT PARCEL



VANDERPOOL

TORPEY

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

R
O

C
H

E
STER

W
IN

TH
RO

P

CHARRINGTON

REZONING REQEUST
PROPOSED DUNKIN DONUTS
FROM R-1E TO B-2
E SIDE OF ROCHESTER RD., N OF BIG BEAVER
SEC. 22  (Z-704 B)

SUBJECT PARCEL

³0 10050
Feet



VANDERPOOL

TORPEY

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

R
O

C
H

E
STER

W
IN

TH
RO

P

CHARRINGTON

(H-S) Highway
Service District

(R-1E) One Family
Residential District

(B-3) General
Business
District

(B-2) Community
Business District

REZONING REQEUST
PROPOSED DUNKIN DONUTS
FROM R-1E TO B-2
E SIDE OF ROCHESTER RD., N OF BIG BEAVER
SEC. 22  (Z-704 B)

SUBJECT PARCEL

³0 10050
Feet

























CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 5, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, June 5, 2006, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:32 P.M. 
 
Pastor Paul Lehman of Glen Oaks Alliance Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield (Absent) 
Wade Fleming  
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine (Absent) 

Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Members Broomfield and Stine  
 
Resolution #2006-06-231 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member 
Broomfield at the Regular City Council Meeting of June 5, 2006 due to illness and the absence 
of Council Member Stine at the Regular City Council Meeting of June 5, 2006 due to being out 
of the county. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Stine  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:   
a) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented Police Officer Joseph Haddad a 

proclamation recognizing him as the 2005 Police Officer of the Year. 
b) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented Sherry LeVeque a proclamation 

recognizing her as the 2005 Non-Sworn Police Department Employee of the Year. 
c) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented Daryl Klinko a proclamation 

recognizing him as the 2006 Fire Fighter of the Year. 
d) Members of the Historical Society’s Heritage Campaign for expansion of the Troy 

Museum: Ward Randol, Cheryl Barnard, Fred Rounds, and Don Lavender, presented a 
check for over $151,435.84 to the City of Troy. 

  

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 5, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal Renewal – 6881 Westaway   
 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. The Mayor closed the Public 
Hearing after receiving comment from the petitioner and from the public. 
 
Resolution #2006-06-232 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s).";  

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 5, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Adrian Eremie, 6881 Westaway, for 
waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a Chevrolet stake truck in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for one (1) 
year. 
 
Yes: All-5  
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 
C-2 Rezoning Application (Z 704) – Proposed Dunkin Donuts, South Side of 

Vanderpool, West of Rochester Road and East of Ellenboro, Section 22 – R-1E to 
B-2   

 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. The Mayor closed the Public 
Hearing after receiving comment from the public. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2006-06-233 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES Rezoning Application (Z 704) – 
Proposed Dunkin Donuts, South Side of Vanderpool, West of Rochester Road and East of 
Ellenboro, Section 22 – R-1E to B-2 until the Regular City Council Meeting scheduled for 
Monday, June 19, 2006. 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Lambert, Schilling   
No: Fleming, Beltramini  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:12 P.M. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:24 P.M. 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  
  
D-1 Adoption of City Ordinance, Chapter 28 – Tree Ordinance and the Landscape 

Design & Tree Preservation Standards 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Schilling  
 
RESOLVED, That Chapter 28 – Tree and Plant Ordinance, a copy of which shall be 
INCLUDED in the original Minutes of this meeting, is hereby ADOPTED. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 5, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

Vote on Resolution to Postpone Indefinitely 
 
Resolution #2006-06-234 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES INDEFINITELY the proposed 
resolution, for the Adoption of City Ordinance, Chapter 28 – Tree Ordinance and the Landscape 
Design & Tree Preservation Standards, Moved by Broomfield and Seconded by Schilling. 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Lambert, Fleming  
No: Schilling, Beltramini  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Appoint a Special Task Force  
 
Resolution #2006-06-235 
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by Fleming   
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REQUESTS that a Special Task Force be 
appointed to review the proposed revisions to the Tree Ordinance and the Landscape Design & 
Tree Preservation Standards for the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: Lambert, Fleming 
No: Schilling, Beltramini, Howrylak   
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2006-06-236 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item E-13, which shall be considered after Consent Agenda (E) 
items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-5  
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 5, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2006-06-236-E-2 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of May 15, 2006 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 City of Troy Proclamations:   
 
Resolution #2006-06-236-E-3 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamations be APPROVED: 
 
a) Joseph Haddad – 2005 Police Officer of the Year  
b) Sherry  LeVeque – 2005 Non-Sworn Police Department Employee of the Year  
c) Daryl Klinko – 2006 Fire Fighter of the Year  
  
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Uniform Rental 

Services            
 
Resolution #2006-06-236-E-4a 
 
WHEREAS, On July 19, 2004, a two-year contract with an option to renew for two additional 
years for uniform rental services was awarded to Arrow Uniform of Taylor, MI, the highest 
scoring and lowest priced bidder as a result of a best value process (Resolution #2004-07-375-
E6);  
 
WHEREAS, Arrow Uniform has agreed to exercise the two-year option to renew under the 
same prices, terms and conditions; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract is hereby EXERCISED 
with Arrow Uniform to provide uniform rental services under the same prices, terms, and 
conditions for two years expiring August 31, 2008. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 06-6, New 

King, Maxwell and Stutz Paving Rehabilitation            
 
Resolution #2006-06-236-E-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Contract No. 06-6 for New King, Maxwell and Stutz paving rehabilitation, be 
AWARDED to John Carlo, Inc., 45000 River Ridge Road, Clinton Twp., MI 48035 at an 
estimated total cost of $283,754.90; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 5, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 25% of the total project cost. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Breathing Apparatus 

Equipment for the Fire Department            
 
Resolution #2006-06-236-E-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish four (4) new self-contained breathing apparatus, and ten 
(10) upgrade kits is hereby AWARDED to the sole bidder, Douglass Safety Systems of Rhodes, 
MI, an authorized distributor of this equipment, at an estimated total cost of $22,590.00, at unit 
prices contained on the bid tabulation dated May 10, 2006.  
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds on City Council Member Travel Expenses – Michigan Municipal League 
Board of Trustees Meetings            

 
Resolution #2006-06-236-E-4d 
 
RESOLVED, That travel authorization and approval to expend funds is GRANTED for travel 
expenses associated with Council Member Robin Beltramini’s attendance of all meetings 
required as a result of her appointment to the Michigan Municipal League Board of Trustees. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 7: Proprietary Maintenance Service Contract – 

Motorola Communications            
 
Resolution #2006-06-236-E-4e 
 
RESOLVED, That a six-month hardware and software maintenance contract for the City of 
Troy’s E911 system is hereby APPROVED with Motorola Communications, for proprietary 
hardware and software at an estimated cost of $13,565.00 expiring December 31, 2006. 
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Infestation Control 

Services – Landscaping            
 
Resolution #2006-06-236-E-4f 
 
RESOLVED, That a three-year contract to provide infestation control services for landscaping, 
with an option to renew for three (3) additional one-year periods is hereby AWARDED to the 
best value proposal submitted by Owen Tree Service, Inc. of Attica, MI, at unit prices contained 
in the bid tabulation opened May 12, 2006, with additional services as needed and prices as 
outlined in their service fee proposal and chemical listing dated May 24, 2006, to commence on 
the date of award and expire May 31, 2009; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.   
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 5, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Contract #071B4200234 State of Michigan and 
Election Systems and Software, Inc. – Central Count Optical Scan Voting System 
(Model M650) – Sole Source Vendor            

 
Resolution #2006-06-236-E-4g 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the purchase of the Absentee Ballot 
System (ABS), M-650 tabulator with modem, ballot box and memory device from the sole 
source vendor, Election Systems and Software, Inc. (ES&S) - 11208 John Galt Blvd., Omaha, 
Nebraska 68137, at a budgeted cost of $65,000.00 from FY2006-07 budgeted funds and 
delivery of equipment to occur on or after July 1, 2006. 
 
E-5 Medi-Go Service Agreement 
 
Resolution #2006-06-236-E-5 
 
RESOLVED, That the request for funding in the amount of $170,000.00 or the entire municipal 
community credits (estimated at $174,581.00) transferred from SMART (whichever is greater) 
for Troy Medi-Go Plus for fiscal year 2006/2007, and the funding agreement between the City of 
Troy and Troy Medi-Go Plus commencing July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2007 is hereby 
APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the agreement, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-6 Private Agreement for People’s State Bank – Project No. 05.931.3 
 
Resolution #2006-06-236-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Troy Long Lake, L.L.C., is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of paving, storm sewer, water main and sidewalk on the site and in the adjacent 
right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7 State of Michigan Election Equipment Grant Application Authorization 
 
Resolution #2006-06-236-E-7 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council wishes to enter into a grant agreement with the State of 
Michigan, Michigan Department of State for the purchase of AutoMARK ballot marking devices 
and related Election Management System (EMS) programming software for use by individuals 
with disabilities pursuant to the Help America Vote Act (HAVA); 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Troy City 
Clerk to execute the grant application on behalf of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, 
on this 22nd day of May 2006. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 5, 2006 
 

- 8 - 

E-8 Acceptance of Sanitary Sewer Easement Agreement and Water Main Easement 
Agreement, Troy School District – Sidwell #88-20-23-323-001, Project No. 05.926.3 
Baker Middle School Addition 

 
Resolution #2006-06-236-E-8 
 
RESOLVED, That the sanitary sewer easement agreement and the water main easement 
agreement from Troy School District, owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-23-326-001, are 
hereby ACCEPTED; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO SIGN said 
easement agreements on behalf of the City of Troy; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
agreements with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-9 Approval of Proposed Quit Claim Deed for Right-of-Way Acquisition and 

Authorization to Schedule Closing, Consumers Energy Company, Northeast 
Corner of Coolidge and Wattles – Sidwell #88-20-17-351-029, Project No. 00.109.5 – 
Wattles East Bound and West Bound Right Turn Lane at Coolidge 

 
Resolution #2006-06-236-E-9 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed quit claim deed for the acquisition of right-of-way from 
Consumers Energy Company, for property having Sidwell #88-20-17-351-029, and located at 
the northeast corner of Coolidge and Wattles, is hereby APPROVED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That authorization is hereby GRANTED to purchase the 
property referenced above in the amount of $17,600.00, plus closing costs. 
 
E-10 Private Agreement for TCF Bank – Project No. 05.944.3 
 
Resolution #2006-06-236-E-10 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and TCF Bank, is hereby APPROVED for the installation 
of paving, storm sewer and sidewalk on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor 
and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-11 Approval of Temporary Sales Trailer, Cedar Pines Estates Site Condominium 
 
Resolution #2006-06- 236-E-11 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Christopher Pratt representing Wake-Pratt Construction 
Company for the placement of a temporary office trailer on the site of the one of the parcels in 
the Cedar Pines Estates Site Condominium Development, is hereby APPROVED for a six 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 5, 2006 
 

- 9 - 

month period in accordance with Chapter 47, House Trailers and Trailer Courts, Section 
6.41(3), of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
E-12 Approval of Funding Agreement:  Boys and Girls Club 
 
Resolution #2006-06-236- E-12 
 
RESOLVED, That the funding agreement between the City of Troy and Boys and Girls Club of 
Troy for July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2007 is hereby APPROVED and the Mayor and City 
Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting.   
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-13 Sale of Rochester Road Remnant Parcel #20-22-426-057, Section 22, All of Lot 42, 

and Part of Lots 43 and 45 of Supervisors Plat #17 – Removed from the agenda at 
the request of City Council 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
F-4 Revisions to Troy City Code Chapter 18 (City Water Utility) 
 
Resolution #2006-06-237 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Section 12 of Chapter 18 of the Troy City Code be REVISED as 
recommended by City Management, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Lambert, Schilling   
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-5 Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement for Manufacturing and 

Headquarter Companies 
 
Resolution #2006-06-238 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has the economic objective of (a) increasing employment 
opportunities, (b) diversifying and stabilizing the industrial base of the community, (c) reducing 
economic obsolescence of the industrial base, (d) providing homogenous industrial areas, (e) 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 5, 2006 
 

- 10 - 

encouraging industrial expansion, (f) providing for improved public facilities in industrial areas, 
and (g) encouraging attractive, viable industrial sites, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198), as amended, empowers 
cities to establish Industrial Development Districts (IDD) and to grant tax exemptions for certain 
industrial properties which meet certain criteria established by the Act; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that the following 
criteria are to be met, applied or measured by the City Manager or his designees in the review 
of areas and locations to be considered for designation as Industrial Development Districts 
(IDD) by the City Council: 
 

1) That the tax exemption shall not apply to real property except those building 
improvements which are uniquely required to support the personal property to be 
abated; and 

 
2) That the tax exemption shall not apply to leasehold improvements or building 

improvements except those uniquely required to support personal property to be 
abated; and  

 
3) That said abatement of taxes shall cease at such time as applicant fails to prove 

by factual evidence that such personal property is being used in compliance with 
the basic guidelines established above. 

 
4) The applicant would document that they are Michigan Economic Growth Authority 

(MEGA) eligible, would be filling vacant Troy space, or will retain or expand the 
number of jobs in Troy. 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the term of abatement for any and all property meeting the 
aforementioned criteria SHALL NOT exceed 12 years, it being the INTENT OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL TO APPROVE various lengths of abatements to the extent provided by laws of the 
State of Michigan. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Lambert, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-6 Preliminary Site Condominium Approval – Adams Road Site Condominium, East 

Side of Adams Road, South of South Boulevard, Section 6 – R-1A 
 
Resolution #2006-06-239 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the preliminary site condominium plan, as submitted under Section 34.30.00 
of the Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) and Section 
34.70.00 (One-Family Cluster Option) for the development of a one-family residential site 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 5, 2006 
 

- 11 - 

condominium known as Adams Road Site Condominium, located on the east side of Adams 
Road, south of South Boulevard, in Section 6, including 5 home sites, within the R-1A zoning 
district, being 4.98 acres in size, is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes: Lambert, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-7 Extension of Preliminary Site Condominium Approval – Oak Forest South Site 

Condominium, East Side of Willow Grove, South of Square Lake Road, Section 11 
– R-1C 

 
Resolution #2006-06-240 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That a one-year extension to April 18, 2007 of the preliminary site condominium 
approval be GRANTED for Oak Forest Site Condominium located on the east side of Willow 
Grove and south of Square Lake Road in Section 11. 
 
Yes: All-5   
No: None  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 
F-8 Extension of Preliminary Site Condominium Approval – Oak Forest Site 

Condominium, South Side of Square Lake Road between Willow Grove and John R 
Road, Section 11 – R-1C 

 
Resolution #2006-06-241 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That a one-year extension to April 18, 2007 of the preliminary site condominium 
approval be GRANTED for Oak Forest Site Condominium located on the south side of Square 
Lake Road between Willow Grove and John R Road in Section 11. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 5, 2006 
 

- 12 - 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Youth Council c) 
Personnel Board Appointment Rescission 

 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled  
 
(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2006-06-242 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Youth Council 
Appointed by Council (13) – 1 Year Term 
 
Alexandra Bozimowski Term Expires 06-01-07 (Student)  
 
Andrew Corey Term Expires 06-01-07 (Student)  
 
Maxine D’Amico Term Expires 06-01-07 (Student)  
 
Rishi Joshi Term Expires 06-01-07 (Student)  
 
Jessica Kraft Term Expires 06-01-07 (Student)  
 
Joseph Niemiec Term Expires 06-01-07 (Student)  
 
Anupama Prasad Term Expires 06-01-07 (Student)  
 
Kristin Randall Term Expires 06-01-07 (Student)  
 
Neill Shaw Term Expires 06-01-07 (Student)  
 
Katie Thoenes Term Expires 06-01-07 (Student)  
 
Nicole Vitale Term Expires 06-01-07 (Student)  
 
Karen Wullaert Term Expires 06-01-07 (Student)  
 
Alex Gabriel Term Expires 06-01-07 (Student)  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 5, 2006 
 

- 13 - 

Yes: All-5     
No: None  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 
(c) Rescission of Personnel Board Appointment 
 
Resolution #2006-06-243 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Resolution #2006-05-226, Moved by Broomfield and Seconded by Lambert, 
as it appears below be RESCINDED by City Council: 
 

RESOLVED, That the following person is hereby APPOINTED BY THE 
CITY COUNCIL to serve on the below Board and Committee as indicated: 

 
Personnel Board 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Glenn Clark Term Expires 04/30/09 

 
Yes:  Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak, Lambert  
No:  Stine, Schilling, Beltramini  

 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
Yes: All-5    
No: None  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 
F-2 Appointment of Representative and Alternate – Southeastern Oakland County 

Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) 
 
Resolution #2006-06-244 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Brian P. Murphy be DESIGNATED as the SOCRRA Representative and 
Timothy L. Richnak be DESIGNATED as the Alternate SOCRRA Representative with terms 
expiring on June 30, 2007. 
 
Yes: All-5     
No: None  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 5, 2006 
 

- 14 - 

F-3 Amendment #2 – Concrete Pavement Repair Program 
 
Resolution #2006-06-245 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, On July 11, 2005, contracts to complete the City of Troy’s concrete pavement 
repair program were amended to the low bidders:  Major Cement Company – Proposal A, Hard 
Rock Concrete, Inc. – Proposal B, and Six S, Inc. – Proposal C, in an amount not to exceed 
$750,000.00, $500,000.00, and $500,000.00 respectively, for completion by June 30, 2006, at 
unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened December 10, 2004 (Resolution #2005-07-
325-E11); and 
 
WHEREAS, It is recommended that the contracts be amended to allow for additional concrete 
replacement for work to be completed by June 30, 2006, on Major Roads – Proposal A and 
Local Roads – Proposal B;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the contracts are hereby AMENDED to provide 
additional concrete pavement repair for two of the low bidders: Major Cement Company – 
Proposal A and Hard Rock Concrete, Inc. – Proposal B, not to exceed $1,250,000.00, and 
$750,000.00, respectively for completion of work by June 30, 2006, at the same unit prices, 
terms and conditions as the original contract. 
 
Yes: All-5     
No: None  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 
F-9 Rescind Award and Re-Award for Barn Repair 
 
Resolution #2006-06-246 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
WHEREAS, On January 9, 2006, a contract to repair the small barn at the Troy Farm was 
awarded to David L. Ingraham of St. Johns, MI, who submitted the lowest informal quotation at 
an estimated cost of $24,600.00, plus a 10% contingency (Resolution #2006-01-010); 
 
WHEREAS, David L. Ingraham has withdrawn from the project; and 
 
WHEREAS, On May 10, 2006, a subsequent quote was received from Akins Construction, Inc. 
to stabilize the small barn at the Troy Farm, but not replace the roof;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the contract be RESCINDED with prejudice from David 
L. Ingraham of St. Johns, MI and RE-AWARDED to Akins Construction, Inc. of Sterling Heights, 
MI for an estimated cost of $14,950.00, plus a 10% contingency; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the contract is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s 
submission of properly executed documents including insurance certificates and any other 
specified requirements. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 5, 2006 
 

- 15 - 

Yes: All-5       
No: None  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 
F-10 Approval of Fee Revisions 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Schilling  
 
a) Revisions to Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Fees, Section I of the City of 

Troy Development Standards            
 
RESOLVED, That revisions to subsection I1(p), Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Fees, 
of the City of Troy Development Standards are hereby ADOPTED (effective July 1, 2006) as 
recommended by City Management, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
b) Revisions to Chapter 60 – Increase in Board of Zoning Appeals Application Fee            
 
RESOLVED, That Section 60.03 of Chapter 60 of the Troy City Code, be REVISED to include 
fees for the Board of Zoning Appeals applications in accordance with the proposal prepared by 
City Management, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
c) Fee Increases – Museum           
 
RESOLVED, That the attached proposed changes in the fee structure for facility rentals at the 
Troy Historical Museum are hereby APPROVED. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Separate Vote 
 
Resolution #2006-06-247 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Fleming 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REQUESTS that Resolutions: a) Revisions to Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Fees, Section I of the City of Troy Development Standards; 
b) Revisions to Chapter 60 – Increase in Board of Zoning Appeals Application Fee; and c) Fee 
Increases – Museum BE SEPARATED for voting purposes.          
 
Yes: All-5        
No: None  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 5, 2006 
 

- 16 - 

a) Vote on Revisions to Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Fees, Section I of the 
City of Troy Development Standards            

 
Resolution #2006-06-248 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Schilling  
 
RESOLVED, That revisions to subsection I1(p), Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Fees, 
of the City of Troy Development Standards are hereby ADOPTED (effective July 1, 2006) as 
recommended by City Management, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Lambert, Schilling, Beltramini         
No: Fleming, Howrylak   
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
b) Revisions to Chapter 60 – Increase in Board of Zoning Appeals Application Fee            
 
Resolution 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Schilling 
 
RESOLVED, That Section 60.03 of Chapter 60 of the Troy City Code be REVISED to include 
fees for the Board of Zoning Appeals applications in accordance with the proposal prepared by 
City Management, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2006-06-249 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Fleming 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the resolution for Revisions to Chapter 
60 – Increase in Board of Zoning Appeals Application Fee by STRIKING “$250.00” and 
INSERTING “$150.00.” 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Lambert Fleming  
No: Schilling, Beltramini  
Absent Broomfield, Stine 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 5, 2006 
 

- 17 - 

Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2006-06-250 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Schilling 
 
RESOLVED, That Section 60.03 of Chapter 60 of the Troy City Code be REVISED to include 
fees for the Board of Zoning Appeals applications in accordance with the proposal prepared by 
City Management and as amended by City Council, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-5  
No: None  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine  
 
c) Fee Increases – Museum           
 
Resolution #2006-06-251 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Schilling 
 
RESOLVED, That the attached proposed changes in the fee structure for facility rentals at the 
Troy Historical Museum are hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes: All-5   
No: None  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #26 – 
Continued Agenda Items Not Considered Before 12:00 AM 
 
Resolution #2006-06-252 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Schilling  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council SUSPEND Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #26  - 
Continued Agenda Items Not Considered Before 12:00 AM and AUTHORIZE City Council to 
EXTEND the adjournment time to 12:15 AM. 
 
Yes: All-5     
No: None  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 5, 2006 
 

- 18 - 

F-11 Scheduling of Special Meetings– Interview of Applicants for Employment for 
Position of City Manager 

 
Resolution 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That a Special Meeting of City Council is hereby SCHEDULED for the purpose of 
interviewing applicants for employment for the position of City Manager on Sunday, June 11th at 
2:00 P.M. in the Council Board Room. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2006-06-253 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Resolution for the Scheduling of 
Special Meetings – Interview of Applicants for Employment for Position of City Manager by 
INSERTING “and deliberation and decision” AFTER “City Manager.” 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2006-06-254 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That a Special Meeting of City Council is hereby SCHEDULED for the purpose of 
interviewing applicants for employment for the position of City Manager and deliberation and 
decision on Sunday, June 11th at 2:00 P.M. in the Council Board Room. 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming      
No: Lambert  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-12 Policy Adoption – Display of Signs on City Hall Site for Community Events 
 
Resolution #2006-06-255 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 5, 2006 
 

- 19 - 

RESOLVED, That the policy for the installation of signs announcing community events on City 
Hall property be ADOPTED in accordance with the proposal prepared by City Management, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Rezoning Application (Z 718) – Proposed Curves, East Side of Livernois, between Maple 

and Kirts, Section 28 – O-1 to B-3 – June 19, 2006  
b) Rezoning Application (Z 717) – Proposed Medical/General Office Building, Northwest 

Corner of Lovell and Rochester Road, Section 3 – R-1C to O-1 – June 19, 2006 
Noted and Filed 

 
G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #26 – 
Continued Agenda Items Not Considered Before 12:00 AM 
 
Resolution #2006-06-256 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini   
 
RESOLVED, That City Council SUSPEND Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #26  - 
Continued Agenda Items Not Considered Before 12:00 AM and AUTHORIZE City Council to 
EXTEND the adjournment time to 12:25 AM. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 5, 2006 
 

- 20 - 

REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Joint Local Development Finance Authority – Troy Subcommittee/Final – January 30, 

2006  
b) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – April 10, 2006 
c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – April 12, 2006 
d) Library Advisory Board/Final – April 13, 2006 
e) Troy Daze Advisory/Festival Committee/Draft – April 25, 2006 
f) Troy Youth Council/Draft – April 26, 2006  
g) Troy Youth Council/Final – April 26, 2006 
h) Joint Local Development Finance Authority – Troy Subcommittee/Final – January 30, 

2006  
i) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – April 10, 2006 
j) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – April 12, 2006 
k) Library Advisory Board/Final – April 13, 2006 
l) Troy Daze Advisory/Festival Committee/Draft – April 25, 2006 
m) Troy Youth Council/Draft – April 26, 2006  
n) Troy Youth Council/Final – April 26, 2006 
o)  Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – May 2, 2006  
p) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – May 2, 2006  
q) Joint Local Development Finance Authority – Troy Subcommittee/Draft – May 8, 2006 
r) Planning Commission/Draft – May 9, 2006  
s) Planning Commission/Final – May 9, 2006 
t) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – May 10, 2006  
u) Troy Youth Council/Draft – May 24, 2006 

Noted and Filed 
   

J-2 Department Reports: 
a) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – April 30, 2006 

Noted and Filed 
  
J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 
a) Letter to Tonni Bartholomew from the Planning Commission In Appreciation of the 

Special Efforts on Election Night  
b) Letter of Thanks to Lt. Scherlinck and Sgt. Kowalski from Kim Streich Regarding the 

Support and Traffic Assistance During the March of Dimes WalkAmerica 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:   
a) Resolution from the City of Royal Oak – Reconstruction of I-75  
b) Resolution from the City of Ferndale – Consideration of Constitutional Amendment 

Regarding Transit Funding  
c) Resolution from the City of Ferndale – June, 2006 – Gay Pride Month  

Noted and Filed 
 

J-5  Calendar 
Noted and Filed 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 5, 2006 
 

- 21 - 

J-6  Communication from Michigan Municipal League Regarding the Proposed 
Changes to Local Cable Franchising 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-7  Communication from City Engineer Steven Vandette Regarding Request to Amend 

Chapter 42, Flood Plain Management 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-8  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding 

Fee Waiver Policy for Military Personnel on Leave  
Noted and Filed 

 
J-9  Communication from Assistant City Manager/Services Brian Murphy Regarding 

Request to Enter into Agreement to Place a Cell Tower at Station 6 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-10  Communication from the City Engineer Steven Vandette Regarding Engineering 

Department Focus/Sustainable Stormwater Management 
Noted and Filed 

 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 Disposal/Sale of Excess Property 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED on Tuesday, June 6, 2006 at 12:21 A.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 

 
 

 Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 10, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

A Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Saturday, June 10, 2006, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 8:00 A.M. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield (Arrived 8:05 A.M.) 
Wade Fleming  
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

Council Interview Preparation  
Tom Dority, of The Mercer Group, Inc. reviewed with City Council the material submitted for the 
interview process. City Council selected questions to ask each candidate. 

Interview – Doug Cruce 

Interview – Daniel Fitzpatrick 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 12:00 P.M.  
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 12:40 P.M. 

Interview – Thomas Hutka 

Interview – Phillip Nelson 

Council Deliberation and Action on the Position of City Manager 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 6:15 P.M. 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 

 
 

 John L. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 11, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

A Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Sunday, June 11, 2006, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 2:10 P.M. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield  
Wade Fleming  
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

Council Deliberation and Action on the Position of City Manager 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Broomfield 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS Thomas Hutka as City Manager 
CONTINGENT upon background checks and contract language. 
 
Substitute Amendment 
 
Resolution #2006-06-257 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That the preceding resolution for Council Deliberation and Action on the Position 
of City Manager be SUBSTITUTED with the following: 
 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS Phillip Nelson as City 
Manager CONTINGENT upon background checks and contract language. 

 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
Amended Main Motion   
 
Resolution #2006-06-258 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS Phillip Nelson as City Manager 
CONTINGENT upon background checks and contract language. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 11, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 3:57 P.M. 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 

 
 

 John L. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 



June 7, 2006 
 
 
To:   John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

 Carol Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director 
 
Subject:  Agenda Item - Parks and Recreation Month Proclamation 
 
 
Recommendation 
Staff requests acknowledgement by Council recognizing July as Parks and 
Recreation Month in 2006. 
 
Background 
The month of July is designated as Parks and Recreation month by the National 
Parks and Recreation Association.   
 
The purpose of this designation is to bring awareness to the benefits of Parks 
and Recreation. 
 
Parks and Recreation activities and experiences impact and benefit individuals, 
the community, environment and economy. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03a



PROCLAMATION 
PARKS AND RECREATION MONTH 

July 2006 
 
WHEREAS, Troy Parks and Recreation officially recognizes Parks and Recreation 
Month in July with a variety of programs and activities that reflect the spirit of 
outstanding leisure programming that benefit the citizens of Troy; and 
 
WHEREAS, Troy Parks and Recreation invites all citizens to celebrate Parks and 
Recreation Month by participating in a variety of fun summer programs for the entire 
family; and 
 
WHEREAS, Our belief in enhancing the quality of life is the central purpose of this 
organization and the driving force behind Troy Parks and Recreation philosophy and 
in recognizing this special occasion; and 
 
WHEREAS, We are committed to providing opportunities for people to come together 
and experience a sense of community through rewarding recreational pursuits with high 
quality comprehensive programs, parks, facilities and open space; and 
 
WHEREAS, Our 14 developed and 5 undeveloped parks and six special facilities 
comprising of 610 acres of open space, serve to offer exercise, sports and special event 
activities, relaxation and leisure pursuits for all interests; and 
 
WHEREAS, Parks and open spaces provide a welcome respite from our fast paced, 
high-tech lifestyles while simultaneously protecting and preserving our natural 
environment; and  
 
WHEREAS, Troy Parks and Recreation special programs and sports opportunities 
give young people better chances to live, grow and develop into contributing members 
of society; and  
 
WHEREAS, Troy Parks and Recreation creates lifelines and continued life 
experiences for older members of our community; and 
 
WHEREAS, Parks, playgrounds, nature trails, open spaces and neighborhood sites 
make our community an attractive and desirable place to live, work, play and visit in a 
manner that contributes to our ongoing economic vitality; and 
 
WHEREAS, Troy Parks and Recreation touches the lives of individuals, families, 
groups and the entire community, which positively impacts upon the social, economic, 
health and environmental quality of our community; and 
 
Now, Therefore Be It Resolved, that we recognize July as Parks and Recreation 
Month and encourage all citizens to celebrate healthy, active lifestyles by participating 
in their choice of recreation and park activities.   
 
Signed this 19th day of June, 2006 



June 7, 2006 
 
 
 
 

TO:   John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:  Mary Redden, Admin. Assistant to City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 10  

Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend Funds  
for Troy City Council Members’ Travel Expenses - 
Michigan Municipal League (MML) 2006 Convention 

 
 
 
Authorization is requested for those Council members interested to attend the 2006 
MML Convention, September 27 - 29, 2006, in Marquette, Michigan. 
 
Funds are available in Council’s education and training account. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2006\06.19.06 – Stand Res #10 – 2006 MML Convention 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a

















Page 1 of 1 

June 9, 2006 
 
To:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From:  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
   
Subject: Agenda Item: Standard Purchasing Resolution 8 – Best Value Award 
  Photographic Services 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On May 17, 2006, two (2) proposals were opened for a three-year contract with an 
option to renew for three additional years to provide Photographic Services.  It is 
respectfully recommended that a contract be awarded to Laura Freeman Photography 
of Dearborn, MI, the bidder providing the best value with a final weighted score of 88, at 
an estimated cost of $24,070.00 per year, which included insurance.  If approved by 
Council, this proposal shall be awarded to the recommended bidder contingent upon 
submission of proper proposal and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
Although Laura Freeman is the lowest total bidder, price is just one component in the 
“Best Value” approach to a Request for Proposal process.  The award recommendation 
was based upon the vendor offering the best combination of a variety of factors, and not 
simply the lowest bidder meeting certain minimal requirements.  A best value approach 
addresses ability, experience, and quality issues leading to a successful contract and 
reduction in risk of poor service for high profile photographic work for such projects as 
informational brochures, the Website, City Calendar/Annual Report and Troy Today.   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
After completing the evaluation process, Laura Freeman Photography received the highest 
recommendations from the committee.  In an effort to achieve the most positive image for 
our City publications and personnel working in the field, and supply the best service, proper 
quality at the right price; a best value approach was used to evaluate and award the 
contract.   
 
Laura Freeman’s attributes include being reliable, prompt, professional, personable and 
effective in coaching subjects to achieve quality photos of people at events and in 
portraits.  She is attentive to image content detail, flexible and willing to meet deadlines 
with or without extensive notice.  All her equipment is in excellent operating condition.  
She is excellent in photographing a wide range of subject matter including but not 
limited to road construction, landscape, candid shots of people at events and activities, 
portrait, architecture, workplace activities and varied lighting conditions.   She is able to 
work independently on multi-location assignments throughout the City.  She has never 
disappointed our demands for deadlines, quality photography, delivery of prints, 
challenging multi-location requests.  Laura has a full understanding of the multiple  

campbellld
Text Box
E-04b



Page 2 of 2 

 
 
June 9, 2006 
 
To: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
Re: Bid Award – Photographic Services  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION - continued 
purposes for which photos are used (website, city calendar, quarterly newsletter, 
program and departmental brochures, financial reports, City facility artwork, news 
releases, etc.) 
 
The effective date of the contract will be July 1, 2006, or upon City Council approval 
whichever is later, through June 30, 2009, with the option to renew the contract for an 
additional three (3) years. 
 
SELECTION PROCESS 
The Request for Proposal (RFP) documents were available from the City of Troy 
Purchasing department or through the Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network 
(MITN) e-procurement website at www.mitn.info.   
 

The selection of the Photographic Services provider was based upon mandatory and 
weighted criteria including but not limited to compliance with proposal requirements, 
photographic samples, and price.  Initially, if a bidder successfully passed all the mandatory 
requirements, the evaluation committee consisting of three City staff members evaluated 
the remaining bidders using a rating tool to review the photographic samples on a 100-
point scoring scale.  Prices were converted to a rating based upon one of the pricing tools 
that is acceptable to the National Institute of Governmental Purchasing.  The equation used 
and the calculations are available in the Executive Summary attached.  The final composite 
score was determined as follows— 
     

50%  Price 
    40%  Sample Photos Score 
    10%  Other  
     
    100%  =   Total Average Weighted Score 
 
 
 

BUDGET 
Funds are available from the operating budget in the Community Affairs Department. 
 
 
 
 
52 Vendors Notified via the MITN System 
33 Notices Distributed by Mail and E-mail 
  2 Proposals Received 



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 06-22
Opening Date -- 5/17/06 TABULATION Pg 1 of 1
Date Prepared -- 5/26/06 PHOTOGRAPHIC SERVICES

FIRM NAME: **

PROPOSAL: TO PROVIDE THREE YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF PHOTOGRAPHIC SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF TROY
WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR THREE (3) ADDITIONAL YEARS

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE (Yes or No) Yes Yes

SAMPLES (Yes or No) Yes Yes

ITEM Est. Qty.                 Description Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension
A. 55 Each Half-Day Shoots 225.00$    12,375.00$   650.00$       35,750.00$    
B. 10 Each Full-Day Shoots 400.00$    4,000.00$    1,000.00$    10,000.00$    
C. 130 Rolls Develop 36 Exposure 10.00$      1,300.00$    25.00$        3,250.00$      
D. 130 Rolls Roll of 4 x 6 reprints 30.00$      3,900.00$    14.50$        1,885.00$      
E. 120 Each 5 x 7 Enlargements 6.00$        720.00$       1.50$          180.00$         
F. 30 Each 8 x 10 Enlargements 10.00$      300.00$       7.50$          225.00$         
G. 5 Each 11 x 14 Enlargements 25.00$      125.00$       15.00$        75.00$           
H. 5 Each 16 x 20 Enlargements 40.00$      200.00$       28.50$        142.50$         
I. 6 Each Albums per Specifications 25.00$      150.00$       55.00$        330.00$         

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL ** 23,070.00$  51,837.50$    

INSURANCE:   Can Meet XX
      Cannot Meet        XX  + $1,000.00

DELIVERY   Can meet schedule XX XX
  Cannot meet but offers

TERMS: Blank Blank

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes

** DENOTES BEST VALUE PROPOSAL

ATTEST:
Laura Campbell
Susan Davis Jeanette Bennett
Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G:RFP-COT 06-22- Photographic Services

Laura K. Freeman
Photography LLC

Brendan Ross Photographer



 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
PHOTOGRAPHIC SERVICES 

 
 

STATISTICS: 
 

 52 Vendors notified via the MITN System 
 

 33 Notices were distributed by mail and e-mail to prospective bidders  
 
 2 responses were received 

 
 Laura McGuire was the most qualified bidder by receiving the highest 

weighted score 
 
The following bidders submitted a proposal and received the indicated final 
scores: 
 
COMPANY  SCORE 
Laura McGuire 88 
Brendan Ross Photographer LLC 19.5 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachments: 
Weighted Final Scoring Including “Sample” Photo and Price Scoring 
Evaluation Process 



WEIGHTED FINAL SCORING  
 PHOTOGRAPHIC SERVICES 

 
Final Score Calculation: 
 

50% x    Price Score 
40% x    Sample Photo Score 
10% x    Other Score 
 
100%  Final Weighted Score 

 
* In order to equate the price to the weighted evaluation process scoring, 

the prices had to be converted into a score with the base of 100 
 

SAMPLE PHOTO SCORE: 
Raters: 1 2 3 AVERAGE 
Vendors:     
1.   Laura McGuire 100 100 88 96 
2.   Brendan Ross 

Photographer LLC 
68 64 68 66.67 = 67 

 
PRICING SCORES 
Vendors: 

 
FORMULA:  [1 – (Proposal price – low price) / low price] x available points 

1.   Laura McGuire      [1 – (24,070 – 24,070) = 0/ 24,070 = 0] 1.0 x 100 = 100 
2.   Brendan Ross 

Photographer LLC 
         
      [1 – (51,837.50 – 24,070) = 27,767.50 / 24,070 = -1.15]  =  -0.15 x 100 =  - 15 

  

 
FINAL WEIGHTED SCORE:        
VENDORS:    Laura McGuire Brendan Ross 

Photographer LLC 
Score   
PRICE SCORE:                    (x .50) =  100 x .50 =               50   -15 x .50 =           -  7.5   
   
SAMPLE PHOTO SCORE:  (x .40) =   96 x .40 = 38.4 = 38  67 x .40 = 26.8 =  27     
   
OTHER:                                (x  .10) = N.A. N.A. 
              
Final Score:                                  88**                               19.5 
 
Note:  Raters did not assess “Other” points 
 
** HIGHEST RATED VENDOR – RECOMMENDED AWARD 
 
G:/BidAward 05-06 / Best Value SR8 – RFP - PHOTOGRAPHIC SERVICES - WeightedRatingSummary 06.06.doc 



 
SELECTION PROCESS 

 
CRITERIA FOR SELECTION 
The identified City Committee will review the proposals.  The City of Troy reserves the right to 
award this proposal to the company considered the most qualified based upon a combination of 
factors including but not limited to the following: 

 
A. Compliance with qualifications criteria  
B. Completeness of the proposal 
C. Financial strength of the photographer 
D. Correlation of the proposals submitted to the needs of the City of Troy 
E. Any other factors which may be deemed to be in the City’s best interest 
F. Evaluation Process 

 
Phase 1:  Qualifications Evaluation. 
 Bidders will be required to meet minimum established criteria  
 in order to go to the second phase of the process.  (Evaluation Sheet Proposal) 
 
Phase 2:  Sample Evaluation Process. 

o The City Committee will use a weighted scoring sheet to evaluate the 
   required submitted samples. 

o Each Committee Member will calculate a weighted score.   
o The scores of the three Committee Members will be averaged into 

one score for each bidder for this phase of the process. 
 
Phase 3:  Price   
 Points for price will be calculated as follows: 
 
 FORMULA: 
  
  [1 – (Proposal price – low price) / low price] x available points 
  
 
Phase 4:  Other    
 Proposals may be assessed “Other” points for items not specified, but for which the 

Evaluation Committee deems as outstanding. 
  
Phase 5:  Final Scoring and Selection 
 The highest final weighted scored will be the photographer recommended to the Troy City 

Council for Award. 
 
  50% x Price Score (100 pt. Base)   = 
  40% x Sample Photos Score (100 pt. Base)  =  
  10% x Other (100 pt. Base)     = 
             100%      Final Weighted Score  

 
Note:  The City of Troy reserves the right to change the order or eliminate an evaluation phase if 
deemed in the City’s best interest to do so. 
 



campbellld
Text Box
E-04c





campbellld
Text Box
E-04d







campbellld
Text Box
E-05















June 6, 2006 
 
 
To:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item: Sole Source Purchase- Deep Slicer Cassette Kit  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
City management is recommending the purchase of a Supa deep slicer cassette 
kit from Weingartz Golf and Turf of Farmington Hills, the sole distributor in 
Michigan for a total cost of $3,200.00.  The Supa deep slicer cassette kit will 
retrofit into the Supa Verticuter System purchased by the Golf Division in April of 
2006, bringing the total expenditure to $10,700.00.  These cassettes will allow 
the golf course maintenance staff to open channels on the putting greens to allow 
air and water flow into the soil.    
 
BACKGROUND 
In April of 2006 the Golf Division purchased the Supa verticuter system from 
Weingartz Golf and Turf to assist the Golf Course Maintenance staff in grooming 
the greens.  With the Supa verticuter system staff has the capability of 
interchanging different cassettes to perform various cultural tasks as needed on 
the greens.  Included in the original purchase were the frame to accommodate 
the various cassettes available and the verticut groomer cassette.  At the time of 
purchase of the Supa verticuter system, staff believed only the verticut groomers 
would be needed.  Since that time, staff has had extensive soil testing done by 
International Sports Turf Research Center (ISTRC), and it has been 
recommended by them that the maintenance staff open up channels to allow 
water and air penetration to the greens surfaces during the hot and dry times of 
the year.  It is the belief of golf course personnel that by purchasing the Supa 
deep slicer cassette kit to create the needed channels recommended by the 
ISTRC, we will be able to improve the conditions and playability of the greens 
during the summer months.  The Supa deep slicer cassette is a sole source 
product, because the Supa cassettes are the only cassettes that will fit the Supa 
verticuter system.    
 
BUDGET 
Funds for the Supa deep slicer cassette kit is available in the Sylvan Glen Capital 
Account 788.7978.010.  
 
 
Prepared by: Danny T. McDonald – Superintendent of Greens 

campbellld
Text Box
E-06



campbellld
Text Box
E-07



























campbellld
Text Box
E-08













campbellld
Text Box
E-09





















DATE:   June 15, 2006 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  2005-06 Budget Amendment No. 3 
 
 
 
Please find attached Budget Amendment No. 3 for the 2005-06 Fiscal Year. Upon review 
of the May 31, 2006 financial statements and estimates of June activity the following 
budget amendments are needed. 
 
General Fund 
 
Parks and Recreation – The Community Center operating budget is in need of additional 
funding, which is offset by an increase in charges for services.  Major and local tree 
maintenance is also in need of additional funding to cover City work force charges for ash 
tree removal. 
 
Budget Stabilization Fund 
 
This amendment is needed to cover the additional investment earnings and the resulting 
transfer to the General Fund. 
 
TDDA Debt Fund 
 
This amendment will account for the transfer of funds from the City of Troy Downtown 
Development Authority operating fund to the debt fund. 
 
Proposal ‘A’ and ‘B’ Debt Fund 
 
This amendment will cover the additional fee charges for bond transfer processing. 
 
Capital Projects Fund 
 
Fire Department – Grant revenue as well as expenditures for hazardous equipment and 
communication equipment are accounted for with this amendment. 
 
Library – This amendment will cover the general repairs to the Library. 
 
 
 
 
JML/jml\AGENDA ITEMS\2006\06.19.06 - 2005-06 Budget Amendment No. 3 

campbellld
Text Box
E-10



2005-2006 BUDGET AMENDMENT NO. 3

CURRENT AMENDED
BUDGET AMENDMENT BUDGET

GENERAL FUND

REVENUE

INVESTMENT INCOME 450,000$            150,000$       600,000$          
CHARGES FOR SERVICES - FEES 1,150,000           130,000         1,280,000         
TOTAL AMENDMENT TO REVENUES 280,000$      

EXPENDITURES

PARKS & RECREATION
     COMMUNITY CENTER 2,401,360$         130,000$       2,531,360$       
     MAJOR TREE MAINT. 12,650                50,000           62,650              
     LOCAL TREE MAINT. 420,320              100,000         520,320            
TOTAL AMENDMENT TO EXPENDITURES 280,000$      

BUDGET STABILIZATION FUND

REVENUE
INVESTMENT INCOME 25,000$              45,000$         70,000$            
TOTAL AMENDMENT TO REVENUES 45,000$        

EXPENDITURES
TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND 25,000$              45,000$         70,000$            
TOTAL AMENDMENT TO EXPENDITURES 45,000$        

TDDA DEBT FUND

REVENUE
TRANSFER FROM TDDA FUND -$                    3,011,000$    3,011,000$       
TOTAL AMENDMENT TO REVENUES 3,011,000$   

EXPENDITURES
PRINCIPAL -$                    1,570,000$    1,570,000$       
INTEREST -                     1,440,000      1,440,000         
OTHER FEES -                     1,000             1,000                
TOTAL AMENDMENT TO EXPENDITURES 3,011,000$   

PROP. 'B' DEBT FUND

REVENUE
TRANSFER FROM DEBT SERVICE FUND 1,316,720$         300$              1,317,020$       

300$              
EXPENDITURES
OTHER FEES 600$                   300$              900$                 

300$              



2005-2006 BUDGET AMENDMENT NO. 3

CURRENT AMENDED
BUDGET AMENDMENT BUDGET

PROP. 'A' DEBT FUND

REVENUE
TRANSFER FROM DEBT SERVICE FUND 788,640$            100$              788,740$          
TOTAL AMENDMENT TO REVENUES 100$              

EXPENDITURES
OTHER FEES 500$                   100$              600$                 
TOTAL AMENDMENT TO EXPENDITURES 100$              

CAPITAL FUND

REVENUE
FEDERAL GRANTS 305,000$            485,000$       790,000$          
INVESTMENT INCOME 400,000              110,000         510,000            

595,000$      

EXPENDITURES
LIBRARY - GENERAL REPAIRS 22,620$              110,000$       132,620$          
FIRE - VEHICLES -                     350,000         350,000            
FIRE - COMMUNICATIONS -                     135,000         135,000            

595,000$      

Amendment requested to provide funds for debt payments on the TDDA
Bonds; Proposal  A and B  Bond paying agent fees; Fire Department Capital Expenditures;  
Library Capital Expenditures; Budget Stabilization investment earnings transfer; and
Parks and Recreation activities.



Prepared by:    Peggy Clifton, Human Resources Director 
G:/PEC Correspondence/2006/Memos/PC06M.036 

 

 
 
 

 
 
Date:  June 6, 2006 
 
To:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From:  Peggy E. Clifton, Human Resources Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – Revisions to Troy City Code Chapter 11 (Personnel Board) 
 
 
 
City Staff requests that City Council consider the enclosed revisions to Chapter 11.  These 
revisions are summarized below: 
 
Section 2.2 needs considerable updating in that it does not reflect the changes that have been 
previously approved by City Council to the Classification Plan for Classified Employees.   
 
The term “probationary employee” implies that an employee has an entitlement to their position 
once that probationary period has been successfully completed.  This is true for employees 
represented by a collective bargaining unit.  However, Classified employees do not have the 
same entitlement; they are “at will” employees and do not have an employment agreement with 
the City of Troy.  In that they do serve a period of time following employment during which they 
must demonstrate that they are capable of fulfilling the duties of the position, this six-month 
period is referred to as a “review period” to distinguish it from a more formal “probationary” 
period.  Successfully completing a review period entitles the employee to certain leave time 
benefits, but does not result in a guaranteed entitlement to the position. 
 
The Personnel Department is now called the Human Resources Department; the 
recommendation is to correct the title in Section 8.2. 
 
The proposed revisions to Chapter 11 of the City Code are attached for your consideration.  We 
will provide any additional information that you require. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reviewed as to form and legality: ___________________________ 
     Lori G. Bluhm, City Attorney 

Human Resources Department 

campbellld
Text Box
F-02



 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 11 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1. Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 11, 
Personnel Board, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2. Amendment 
 
Section 2.2 shall be amended to incorporate the following:   

 
The Classified service shall include the following classifications: 
 
 Accountant      Legal Assistant 
        Legal Secretary 
 Administrative Aide     Librarian I 
 Administrative Asst. to the City Manager  
 Appraiser      Library Aide 
        Manager’s Office Secretary 
 Assistant naturalist     Museum Aide Archivist 
 Building Inspector 
 Building Maint. Specialist    Naturalist 
        Office Coordinator 
        PC Specialist/Help Desk 
 Civilian Communications Supv.   Plan Analyst 
 Community Affairs Officer 
 Cross Connection Inspector 
 Education Coordinator 
 Engineering Assistant 
 Engineering Technician    Planning Technician 
        Project Manager (Engineering) 
 Field Supervisor     Right-of-Way Appraiser 
 
 GIS Data Analyst     Right-of-Way Representative 
 
 Inspector      Right-of-Way Technician 
 
 Inspector Supervisor     Secretary II 
 Insurance & Safety Coordinator 
 Inventory Control Assistant   Survey Supervisor 
 Landscape Analyst     Traffic Signal Technician 
 



 

 
Section 7.6 shall be amended to incorporate the following: 
 
 Probationary employees Employees who have not completed the initial 

review period and are (1) laid off for lack of work or lack of funds, or (2) 
and probationary employees who resign and whose resignations are 
withdrawn within one year, upon application and with the approval of the 
Department Head and the City Manager, shall have their names restored to 
the eligible list from which appointment was originally made. 

 
Section 8.2 shall be amended to incorporate the following: 
 
 The Personnel Human Resources Department shall maintain the 

examination record of every candidate for one (1) year, and shall maintain 
the employment record of every employee for a period of five (5) years after 
separation of employment with the City. 

 
 
Section 3. Repeal 
 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only 
to the extent necessary to give this ordinance full force and effect. 
 
Section 4. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 5. Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
Section 6. Effective Date 
 



 

This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the ________ day of ________, ________. 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



G:/PEC Correspondence/2006/Memos/PC06M.035 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  June 6, 2006 
 
TO:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Peggy E. Clifton, Human Resources Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - 2006 Annual Salary Update for Classified and Exempt Employees 

and Proposed Changes to Benefit Package and Personnel Rules & Regulations 

RECOMMENDATION 

City Administration recommends approval of the 2006 Classification and Pay Plans for 
Classified and Exempt employees, and proposed benefit changes for current employees 
hired before July 1, 2005.   
 
The proposed Pay Plan adjustment results in an average salary increase of 2.84%.  This is 
comprised of a 2% across the board increase to the pay range, plus a merit increase 
depending on performance of up to 1.0%.  This year 3.0% was budgeted for these wage 
increases.  The proposed changes to the Classification Plan for Exempt employees are 
indicated on that Plan.   
 
The cost of the proposed salary increases will be partially offset by a cost savings measure in 
health insurance.  The prescription drug rider for Classified and Exempt employees is going to 
change from the current $5/$5 (for generic/brand name drugs) to $5/$10.  This will result in an 
annualized cost savings of .42% of payroll.  Thus, the total cost of these recommendations is 
2.42%.  
 
BACKGROUND 

Pay Plan 
 
Since 2002, City Council approved the city administration’s recommendation not to contract 
with an outside consultant due to cost and service concerns, and approved a proposed Pay 
Plan pursuant to a survey conducted internally.  Due to continued budget constraints again 
this year, it was determined not to contract with an outside consultant for the purpose of 
updating the Classification and Pay Plans.  A survey was conducted internally, and on June 5, 

 Human Resources Department 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03



 

G:/PEC Correspondence/2006/Memos/PC06M.035 

2

2006 the Personnel Board reviewed the proposed plans.  These Plans are recommended to 
City Council for approval. 
 
Our goal continues to be to advance high performance employees through the range, within 
budgetary constraints.   
 
 
Proposed Changes to Benefit Package 
Changes proposed for the benefit package for Classified and Exempt employees hired prior 
to July 1, 2005 address two areas:  health insurance and tuition reimbursement. In health 
insurance it is recommended that a $5/$10 drug rider be implemented for generic/brand name 
drugs (increased from the $5/$5 drug rider currently in place for these employees.)  With this 
modification, all employees will participate in a drug rider plan that helps reduce the cost of 
health insurance by encouraging the use of generic drugs. 
 
It is recommended that the tuition reimbursement program be adjusted to allow for a Masters 
degree for employees hired prior to July 1, 2005  who were enrolled in a Masters program as 
of July 1, 2005. 
 
Revision to Personnel Rules & Regulations 
 
The proposed revisions to the Personnel Rules and Regulations reflect the recommended 
changes in the provisions for health insurance and tuition reimbursement discussed above. 
 
The Personnel Board reviewed the proposed changes on June 5, 2006 and recommends City 
Council approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: a) Recommended Pay Plan 
  b) Recommended Classification Plans 
  c) Personnel Board Minutes & Rules Changes 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 
Personnel Board Approved:   6/06/06 
City Council Approved:     
 
G:C&E/C & E PAY PLAN 2006  

 
PAY PLAN 

 
CLASSIFIED AND EXEMPT EMPLOYEES 

 
JULY 1, 2006 * 

 
 

Grade Minimum Mid-Point Maximum  
1 $24,062 $30,078 $36,093 
2 $28,184 $35,231 $42,277 
3 $32,931 $41,164 $49,398 
4 $38,678 $48,347 $58,016 
5 $45,423 $56,779 $68,135 
6 $54,044 $67,555 $81,065 
7 $64,037 $80,047 $96,056 
8 $79,173 $98,968 $118,762 
9 $81,292 $101,615 $121,938 
10 $83,791 $104,739 $125,685 
11 $86,775 $108,471 $130,165 
12 $90,307 $112,883 $135,460 
     

15 $105,584 $131,981 $158,377 
 
 
 

*Pay Plan represents a 2% increase over 2005 Pay Plan 



July 1, 2005 July 1, 2006

Pay Grade 3 Pay Grade 7 (continued)
Assistant to the City Manager Deputy City Engineer

Parks Superintendent
Plans Examiner/Coordinator

Pay Grade 4 Principal Planner
Aquatics Coordinator Risk Manager
Associate Buyer Senior Right-of-Way Representative
Fitness and Gym Coordinator Supt. of Building Operations
Naturalist Supt. of Motor Pool

Supt. of Recreation
Pay Grade 5 Supt. of Streets and Drains
Application Support Specialist Water and Sewer Maintenance Superintenent
Buyer Supt. of Water & Sewer Maintenance
Community Center Facility Manager
Data Processing Analyst/Programmer Pay Grade 8
Director of Golf Operations Assistant City Attorney
Greens Superintendent City Clerk
Land Surveyor Director of Building Operations 
Lead PC Specialist Director of Purchasing
Librarian II
Nature Center Manager Pay Grade 9
Planner City Assessor
Police Records Supervisor City Engineer
Recreation Supervisor Director of Building and Zoning
Solid Waste Coordinator Financial Services Director

Fire Chief
Pay Grade 6 Human Resources Director
Civil Engineer Information Technology Director
Communications Manager Library Director
Deputy City Clerk Parks and Recreation Director
GIS Administrator Planning Director
Human Resources Specialist Real Estate and Development Director
Museum Manager  
Network Administrator Pay Grade 10
Operations Coordinator Asst. Library Director Police Chief
Project Construction Manager Public Works Director
Purchasing Systems Administrator
Research and Technology Administrator Pay Grade 11

City Attorney
Pay Grade 7
Attorney I Pay Grade 12
Attorney II Assistant City Manager/Finance
City Treasurer Assistant City Manager/Services
Community Affairs Director
Deputy City Assessor Pay Grade 15

City Manager

CLASSIFICATION PLAN
EXEMPT EMPLOYEES

Council Approved:  
N =   66  67
G:C/Exempt Class Plan 2006



CLASSIFICATION PLAN
CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES

   July 1, 2006

Pay Grade 1 Pay Grade 5
Accountant

Pay Grade 2 Administrative Assistant to the City Manager
Inventory Control Assistant Appraiser
Museum Archivist Building Inspector

Civilian Communications Supervisor
Pay Grade 3 Community Affairs Officer
Administrative Aide Cross Connection Inspector
Assistant Naturalist Environmental Specialist
Education Coordinator Field Supervisor
Engineering Technician Project Manager (Engrg.)
Legal Secretary Right-of-Way Representative
Library Aide
Manager's Office Secretary Pay Grade 6
Secretary II Inspector Supervisor

Pay Grade 4 Pay Grade 7
Building Maintenance Specialist Plan Analyst
Engineering Assistant
GIS Data Analyst
Inspector
Insurance & Safety Coordinator
Landscape Analyst
Legal Assistant
Librarian I
Office Coordinator
PC Specialist/Help Desk Technician
Planning Technician
Survey Supervisor

Personnel Board Approved:6/06/06
Council Approved:  

N = 35

G:  C&E/ClassifiedClassPlan2006  



PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – DRAFT June 5, 2006 
 

-1- 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Personnel Board was held Monday, June 5, 2006, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. Clerk Bartholomew called the meeting to order at 6:45 
PM. 

ROLL CALL: 
 
 PRESENT: Member Baughman 
  Member Shaw 
  Member Tschirhart 
   
 ABSENT: Member Nelson 
   
 ALSO PRESENT: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager, Services 
  Peggy Clifton, Human Resources Director 
  Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

APPOINTMENT OF PERSONNEL BOARD CHAIRPERSON: 
PB-#2006-06-001 
Moved by Baughman 
Seconded by Shah 
 
RESOLVED, That Members of the Troy Personnel Board hereby APPOINT Tschirhart to 
serve as Chairperson. 
 
Yes: All-3 
Absent: Nelson 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
PB-2006-06-002 
Moved by Tschirhart 
Seconded by Baughman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the minutes of the Personnel 
Board meeting of Tuesday, June 8, 2004 as corrected and the minutes of Tuesday, 
December 20, 2005 as presented. 
 
Yes: All-3 
Absent: Nelson 
 

OLD BUSINESS: None 



PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – DRAFT June 5, 2006 
 

-2- 

NEW BUSINESS: 

A.  Recommendations for Classification Plan and Pay Plan: 
 
Peggy Clifton, Human Resources Director advised the Board that HR staff surveyed 4 
surrounding communities to determine the average pay increase. The budgeted amount for 
increases was set at 3%. Staff recommends the following: 
 
 Range adjustment: 2% 
 Across-the-board salary increases: 2% (with satisfactory performance evaluation) 
 Merit (based on performance evaluation score): up to 1% 
 
PB-2006-06-003 
Moved by Baughman 
Seconded by Shah 
 
RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the proposed recommendations 
for the Classification Plan and Plan (FY 2006-2007) as submitted. 
 
Yes: All-3 
Absent: Nelson 
 

B.  Recommended Changes in Prescription Drug Rider and Tuition 
Reimbursement Program 

  
Peggy Clifton, Human Resources Director advised the Board that management is proposing 
a change in Prescription Drug Riders. She reference the proposed Section XXVI distributed 
with the agenda packet. 
 
PB-2006-06-004 
Moved by Baughman 
Seconded by Shah 
 
RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the proposed recommendations 
in the Personnel Rules, Section XXVI. Hospitalization and Medical Insurance, subsection 1), 
and in the Personnel Rules, Section XXVIII. Tuition Reimbursement, subsection 2), as 
submitted. 
 
Yes: All-3 
Absent: Nelson 
 

C.  Approval of Revisions to Personnel Rules to Reflect Appropriate Changes 
in Benefit Package 

 
PB-2006-06-005 



PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – DRAFT June 5, 2006 
 

-3- 

Moved by Shaw 
Seconded by Baughman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the revisions in the Personnel 
Rules, to reflect the appropriate changes in the benefit package as submitted. 
 
Yes: All-3 
 

ADJOURNMENT:  
 
PB-06-06-006: Moved by Baughman, Seconded by Tschirhart, CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY: That there being nothing else to come before the 
Board, the meeting be ADJOURNED. 

 
Yes: Baughman, Tschirhart, Shah 
No: None 
Absent: Nelson 

 
Meeting adjourned at 7:12 PM. 
 
  

 
 
 

 Ronald Tschirhart, Chairman 
  

 
 
 

 Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 



Excerpt from Personnel Rules and Regulations – Proposed revisions identified in bold font 

XXVI. HOSPITALIZATION AND MEDICAL INSURANCE 
 
The City shall provide hospitalization and medical insurance for the employee 
and dependents equal to the following: 
 

1) Blue Cross/Blue Shield, MVF I, Master Medical Option III, with the 
following riders:  $5.00 $5/$10 deductible prescription (PD-CR) (for 
employees hired on or after 1/01/04, $5/$10 prescription drug rider for 
generic/brand name drugs; $10/$20 for employees hired on or after 
7/1/05), D45NM, FC, SD, G65, Optical, ML, FAE-RC, V-ST, 
Reciprocity, PCES-1, PCES-2, SAT-2, COB, GLE, RM. Employees 
hired on or after 1/01/04 will receive the Blue Cross Blue Shield PPO 
insurance under Group Suffix 65337-002 with Master Medical Option 
1. (7/05)(7/06) 

 
2) Dental Insurance, including Class I and Class II benefits, with a 10% 

employee co-payment for claims and a maximum benefit of $1,000 per 
person per calendar year, and Orthodontic coverage with 50% 
employee co-payment up to a maximum of $2,000 lifetime benefit (for 
dependents 19 years and under). (7/05) 

 
3) Effective July 1, 2001, the City's unilateral responsibility of paying 

premiums for medical insurance shall be frozen at  $700.00 per month.  
Any increase in the cost of medical insurance in excess of  $700.00 
per month will be paid by deducting 50% of the premium increase from 
the employee's paycheck, but not more than $85 per month. Should an 
employee choose to elect like coverage (i.e. family coverage to family 
coverage) through a less expensive carrier, the City will pay to the 
employee 50% of the money saved by such conversion.  Should an 
employee elect not to be provided with medical insurance through the 
City of Troy, the City will pay to the employee $250 per month. (12/03) 

 
The City pays 50% of the cost of family continuation coverage for eligible children 
between the ages of 19 and 25 years.  The remaining cost is deducted from the 
employee's paycheck on a monthly basis.  

- 17 - 
 



Excerpt from Personnel Rules and Regulations – Proposed revisions identified in bold font 

XXVIII. TUITION REIMBURSEMENT 
 
The City will reimburse an employee for up to 100% of the cost of tuition for 
work-related college courses or degrees subject to the following conditions: 
 

1) Tuition will be reimbursed, not including books, supplies, or other fees 
or expenses, and cannot duplicate any other financial aid such as 
scholarships, grants, GI Bill, etc., to which the employee may be 
entitled or apply for. 

 
2) Courses included in this program must be required for an Associates 

Degree, Bachelors Degree, or a Certificate program, that is 
organizationally related.  (Employees who were enrolled in a 
Masters Degree program and receiving tuition reimbursement as 
of July 1, 2005 shall be eligible for tuition reimbursement for 
Masters degree classes taken on or after July 1, 2006 until 
attainment of the Masters Degree, but subject to the annual 
maximum noted in item #6 below.) 

                         (7/05)(7/06) 
 

3) Payment must be approved by the Department Director and the 
Human Resources Director before enrolling in the class. 

 
4) The course must be taken at an accredited school or university, but 

need not be a credit course. 
 

5) The employee must submit verification of having paid for the course 
and passed the course with a grade of “C” (2.0) or better. 

 
6) No employee shall receive more than $4,000 under this program in 

any fiscal year.  Employees hired on or after 7/1/05 shall not receive 
more than $2,000 in any fiscal year.      
                           (7/05) 

 
7) Prior to receiving payment, the employee must sign an agreement to 

reimburse the City of the employee terminates his employment or is 
terminated by the City within one (1) year of the completion of the 
course. 

 



                        

G: P-T Wages\2006\Recommendations\Council Memo\PC06M.037 

 

 
 
 
DATE:         June 12, 2006 
 
TO: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Peggy Clifton, Human Resources Director 
 Jonathan Makela, Human Resources Specialist 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – Bi-Annual 2006 Part-time Wage Survey & Recommendations 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Human Resources Department recommends approval of the 2006 pay ranges for part-time 
positions as outlined below. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
The bi-annual Part-time Wage Survey conducted this year included the following Michigan 
communities: Farmington Hills, Royal Oak, Southfield and Sterling Heights, consistent with the 
comparables utilized for other employee groups.  Based on discussion with affected Department 
Directors, it was determined that the classifications included below would be surveyed.  These 
classifications are among the “General” part-time classification group.  The resulting 
recommendations are based on the City’s ability to competitively recruit and retain part-time staff and 
budget considerations.  The following is a summary of survey results and pay recommendations for 
part-time classifications. 
 
 NUMBER OF HOURLY AVERAGE TROY 
 MUNICIPALS WAGE HOURLY HOURLY 
TITLE REPORTING RANGE WAGE PAY RANGE RECOMMENDATION 
 
Crossing Guard 4 8.00 – 11.00 9.38 – 9.88 8.00 – 10.00 10.00 – 11.00 1 
Fire Staff Assistant 02   8.00 – 10.00 9.50 – 13.00 4 
Library Assistant 4 8.50 – 15.09 9.41 – 12.21 8.00 – 11.50 8.50 – 12.00 3 
Office Assistant 3 8.00 – 15.00 9.00 – 11.83 9.50 – 13.00 No change  
 
 
Nine employees would be affected by the above recommendations (specifically increasing the 
minimum pay rate): Eight Library Assistants and One Fire Staff Assistant.  

 Human Resources Department 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04



                        

G: P-T Wages\2006\Recommendations\Council Memo\PC06M.037 

 
2 

 
 
 
Additionally, on March 28, 2006, Governor Granholm signed legislation that increases the state's 
minimum wage from $5.15 per hour to $7.40 per hour over the next two years. On October 1, 2006, 
the minimum wage will increase to $6.95; to $7.15 on July 1, 2007; and to $7.40 on July 1, 2008.  
Currently, only one part-time classification, Library Page, has a minimum rate that is below the new 
$6.95 per hour minimum wage that becomes effective on October 1, 2006.  In order to comply with 
the new state minimum wage legislation the minimum pay rate for the part-time Library Page 
classification should be increased from $6.50 per hour to $7.00 per hour, effective October 1, 2006.  
Four current Library Page employees would be affected by increasing the minimum of the range to 
$7.00 per hour. 
 
These recommendations have been reviewed with each Department Director whose department 
would be affected.  Any departmental request for increases within the new pay ranges must be 
available in each department’s budget.   
 
Please advise if you require any additional information. 
 
 
cc: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 
 
 
1 Increase the minimum and maximum to address recruitment and retention issues. 
2 None of the comparable municipalities have a position comparable to Fire Staff Assistant. 
3 Increase minimum and maximum to maintain parity with comparables. 
4 Increase minimum and maximum to align with part-time Office Assistant pay range and restore 

historical wage relationship. 
 



Application Support Specialist $ 20.00 - 40.00 Library Page 7.00 - 10.00
Assistant Golf Pro 8.25 - 18.00 Museum Aide $ 10.00 - 15.00
Assistant Pool Manager 8.25 - 18.00 Museum Assistant 7.50 - 9.50
Assistant Pro Shop Manager 8.25 - 18.00 Naturalist Aide 10.00 - 15.00
Bus Driver 9.50 - 12.00 Office Assistant 9.50 - 13.00
Cable Production Specialist 11.00 - 17.00 Planning Technician 11.46 - 13.94
Camera Operator 8.00 - 13.00 Pool Manager 8.25 - 18.00
Clerk-Typist 9.00 - 13.00 Pro Shop Manager 8.25 - 18.00
Community Affairs Assistant 12.00 - 18.00 Real Estate & Development Assistant 11.00 - 14.00
Crossing Guard 10.00 - 11.00 Recycling Center Attendant Assistant 8.25 - 10.25
Data Processing Clerk 7.92 - 10.23 Seasonal Golf Course Assistant 10.00 - 15.00
Election Aide 9.50 - 13.00 Seasonal Laborer 8.00 - 10.00
Fire Staff Assistant 9.50 - 13.00 Seasonal Supervisor 10.00 - 13.00
Fitness/Wellness Specialist 15.00 - 40.00 Secretary 8.12 - 10.51
Human Resources Technician 14.81 - 18.36 Senior Traffic Engineering Technician 10.00 - 14.00
Intern 8.00 - 12.00 Student Enforcement Aide 8.00 - 10.00
Legal Assistant 12.84 - 15.38 Summer Laborer 8.00 - 10.00
Librarian 16.00 - 21.00 Traffic Engineering Technician 9.00 - 12.00
Library Aide 10.00 - 15.00 Umpire 12.75 - 18.00
Library Assistant 8.50 - 12.00 Umpire Scheduler 1.50 - 15.00

$ 8.25 - 18.00
Adaptive Program Recreation Coordinator
Adult Basketball Safety Town
Adult Soccer Seasonal Superintendent
Adult Softball Senior Citizen Coordinator
Adult Volleyball Tee Ball
Day Camp Tennis
Floor Hockey Trip
Gymnastics Umpire Coordinator
In-Line Hockey Youth Basketball
Nature Center Youth Softball
OEC Youth Sports
Open Gym Youth Volleyball
Pre-School Zoned/World Cup Soccer

II.   PRSE 5 - COORDINATOR CLASSIFICATION (P5 -   ) 

JULY 1, 2006
PART-TIME CLASSIFICATIONS

PAY RANGES

I.  GENERAL CLASSIFICATIONS (P-  )

NOTE:  2006 Revisions are denoted by Italics (new position titles) and strike-outs (eliminated titles)

G:Part-Time\P-T Wages\2006



$ 8.00 - 16.00
Basic Drawing Outdoor Education
Cheerleading/PomPon Physical Fitness
Cross Country Ski Pre-School
Dance Safety Town
Day Camp Leader Slimnastics
Exercise Instructor Tee Ball
Gymnastics Tennis
In-Line Hockey Water Safety
In-Line Skating Youth Sports
Nature Center

$ 7.00 - 15.00
Floor Hockey Referee Water Polo Official
Youth Basketball Official Zoned Soccer Official
Youth Basketball Referee Zoned/World Cup Soccer Official
Youth Softball Official Zoned/World Cup Soccer Referee

$ 8.00 - 11.00
Adaptive Aide Lifeguard
Babysitter 1 Locker Room Attendant
Cashier (Aquatic Center) Open Gym Attendant
Cashier/Starter/Ranger Pool Attendant
Community Center Attendant Recreation Aide
Cross Country Ski Attendant Safety Town Aide
Facility Attendant (High School) Scorekeeper
Facility Attendant (OEC) Trip Chaperone
Facility Attendant (Golf)

Appraiser
Attorney
Building Maintenance Specialist
Inspector
Legal Secretary
Secretary II

Cable Construction Liaison (Insp.) $ 17.47 - 21.84

Intern (Grant) $ 8.00 - 20.00

Ordinance Enforcement Officer $ 8.00 full-time
Insp.midpoint

Right-of-Way Representative $ 21.40 - 32.10

Senior Right-of-Way Representative $ 30.00 - 60.00

Temp. Engineer-Design $ 50.00 - 60.00

Full-Time Hourly 
Equivalent

VI.   OTHER CLASSIFICATIONS  (PX-  )

V.  PRSE 2 - SUPPORT   (P2 -  )

IV.     PRSE3 - OFFICIALS/REFEREES   (P3 -  )

III.   PRSE4 - INSTRUCTORS  (P4 -  )

NOTE:  2006 Revisions are denoted by Italics (new position titles) and strike-outs (eliminated titles)

G:Part-Time\P-T Wages\2006



campbellld
Text Box
F-05

































campbellld
Text Box
F-06

























campbellld
Text Box
F-07































 May 30, 2006   
 
TO:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item:  Extend and Amend Contract for Sidewalk Replacement 

Program 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On August 4, 2003, Troy City Council approved a contract to provide a sidewalk replacement 
and installation program with an option to renew for two (2) additional one-year periods to the 
low bidder, Hard Rock Concrete, Inc. of Westland, MI, for an estimated annual cost of 
$366,210.00, plus a 25% allowance for changes to the quantity of work as needed (Resolution 
#2003-08-425-E9).  The contract options were subsequently exercised and approved on July 
19, 2004 and July 11, 2005 under the same contract unit prices, terms and conditions expiring 
June 30, 2006 (Resolution #2004-07-383 and 2005-07-348 respectively).  
 
City management recommends to extend the contract for one-year which will expire June 30, 
2007, and amend the 2006/2007 contract for additional work in the amount of $267,237.50. 
(Approximately $167,237.50 for Sidewalk Replacement and $100,000.00 for Sidewalk Installation) 
which will be added to the previously approved contract amounts and all costs will not exceed 
$725,000.00.  Work will continue on local roads in sections 24, 25, 36 and scattered locations; as 
well as major roads in sections 14, 15, 22 and 23 under the same prices, terms, and conditions.   
 

          Original Contract Amount  $366,210.00 
          Additional 25% $  91,552.50 
          Amendment for 2006/2007 $ 267,237.50 
          Total 2006/2007 Budget Amount $725,000.00 

 
MARKET SURVEY 
A favorable market survey was conducted by the Purchasing Department.  Economic conditions 
indicate prices will continue to rise on concrete due to the shortage caused in part, by the 
building boom in China and escalating fuel costs.     
 
BACKGROUND 

• Hard Rock Concrete, Inc. has agreed to extend and amend the construction quantities  
 
• Hard Rock Concrete, Inc. has been producing a quality product for the City. 
 
• The price for fuel and cement is continuing to increase.  It is in the City’s best interest 

to take advantage of 2003 pricing for the 2006/07-construction season by amending 
the construction quantities. 
 

• Moving this work forward would improve the safety for all pedestrians and  
Also reduce the liability for the City. 

 
BUDGET 
Funding for this project will come from 2006/2007 budgeted funds available in the 
Capital Accounts for Sidewalks.  
  
Prepared by:  Marina Basta Farouk, Project Construction Manager 

campbellld
Text Box
F-08



 
 

   May 26, 2006 
 
 

TO:      Jeanette Bennett 
      Purchasing Director 
 
FROM:    Linda N. Bockstanz 
      Associate Buyer 
 
 
RE:      MARKET SURVEY – SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT PROGRAM 
 
 
 
LACARIA CONCRETE CONSTRUCTION – Sal Lacaria                                (313) 843-3865 
Sal has indicated that concrete did go up this last year and that it will have another 
increase this mid-summer of about 6 to 7%.  Fuel and union dues are the next two items 
that have also increased.  If the contract were doubled – he would consider adjusting 
their prices on the concrete. 
 
MAJOR CEMENT – Frank Jacoboni                                                               (313) 215-0972 
Frank said that prices for concrete have increased 5% this year, which is about $4.00 
more a bag and because of the increase in fuel costs - a surcharge of $10.00 has been 
placed on shipments of the product.  His company has a union and union wages have 
increased $1.50 more per hour.  If the contract were doubled, it still would not help with 
the costs he has to incur. 
 
Based upon the above comments, I respectfully recommend that the City accept the 
offer to renew the contract for the Sidewalk Replacement Program to the current vendor 
based on the fact costs for concrete will increase again this year about 6 to 7%.   
 
Cc: Susan Leirstein 
 





 
 
DATE:   June 8, 2006 
 
 
 
TO:   John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Announcement of Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   1868 Welling Drive 
 
 
 
 
On May 12, 2006, information was sent to the owner of the property at 1868 Welling 
that identified restrictions related to a commercial vehicle located on that residential 
property.  As part of that information, she was advised that the Chevrolet dump truck 
parked on the property did not comply with the exceptions found in Chapter 39, Section 
40.66.00.  She was given the option to remove the vehicle or appeal to City Council for 
relief of the Ordinance. 
 
In response to our letters, Mr. Dave Werner has filed an appeal.  The appeal requests 
that a public hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing 
has been scheduled for your meeting of July 10, 2006. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a



 



 



 



 
 
DATE:   June 8, 2006 
 
 
 
TO:   John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Announcement of Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   2127 Atlas 
 
 
 
 
On May 19, 2006, information was sent that identified restrictions related to a 
commercial vehicle located on residential property.  As part of that information, the 
owner of the vehicle was advised that the GMC cube van parked on the property did not 
comply with the exceptions found in Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00.  He was given the 
option to remove the vehicle or appeal to City Council for relief of the Ordinance. 
 
In response to our letters, Mr. Kevin Ferguson has filed an appeal.  The appeal requests 
that a public hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing 
has been scheduled for your meeting of July 10, 2006. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01b



 



 



 



 



 1 
 

DATE: June 12, 2006 
 
TO: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Announcement of Public Hearing (July 10, 2006) – 

Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File No: ZOTA 214) – Article X, 
Group Child Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E Districts 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City Management has not taken a position on the issue of group child care homes, 
based on an understanding that the regulation of group child care homes within 
single-family residential neighborhoods is a community values issue.  Decisions 
regarding community values should be made by City Council, following consideration 
of a recommendation by the Planning Commission and considerable input from City 
Council, providers and residents.  City Management has a responsibility to identify 
options, issues and primary and secondary impacts on the surrounding environment.   
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On March 27, 2006, City Council recommended that group child care homes be 
permitted by right subject to special conditions.  Furthermore, City Council directed 
City Administration to prepare draft ordinance language for group child care homes in 
the R-1A through R-1E districts that incorporates City Council, City staff and group 
child care home comments. 
 
On April 24, 2006, City staff conducted a meeting with group and family child care 
home providers.  The purpose of the meeting was to get input from the child care 
providers in the drafting of an ordinance that will permit group child care homes in the 
R-1A through R-1E districts within the City of Troy.  On May 1, 2006, City staff 
conducted a meeting with neighbors of family and group child care homes to obtain 
their input.  Input from the two meetings is attached. 
 
The fee structure for Group Child Care Home registration will be included in Chapter 
60 and can be determined at a later date.  City Management recommends a fee of 
$150 for initial registration and $75 for annual re-registration. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01c



 2 
 

Attachments: 
1. City Council Consensus Version Public Hearing Draft. 
2. Neighbor comments from May 1, 2006 meeting. 
3. Provider comments from April 24, 2006 meeting. 
4. Admincode R 400.1801-R.400.1963, Licensing Rules for Family and Group 

Child Care Homes. 
5. Miscellaneous correspondence (8). 

 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 214 Group Day Care Homes\Announcement of CC Public Hearing ZOTA 214.doc 



Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department   1

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 

CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
CITY COUNCIL CONSENSUS VERSION 

PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 of the 
Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2. Amendment to Article X of Chapter 39 
 
Article X of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to permit group child 
care homes by special condition in the R-1A through R-1E One Family Residential 
Districts subject to specific standards.   
 
(Underlining, except for major section titles, denotes changes.) 
 
10.25.05 Group Child Care Homes, as defined in Section 04.20.69, subject to the 

following conditions: 
 

A) The number of children so cared for who are not a part of the 
family residing in the subject dwelling unit shall not exceed twelve 
(12). 

 
B) The resident-operator of the Group Child Care Home shall be 

licensed in accordance with applicable State Law.   
 
C) No structural changes or exterior alterations shall be made which 

would alter the residential character of the dwelling except as 
required by the State of Michigan licensing rules. 

 
D) No sign shall be used on the premises to identify the Group Child 

Care Home. 
 
E) Group Child Care Homes with vehicular access on a major 

thoroughfare shall be required to have a circular drive or an 
unobstructed turnaround area to allow for the safe egress of 
vehicles. 



Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department   2

F) Licensed providers shall register with the City on or before 
September 1, 2006 or prior to commencement of operation and 
on an annual basis each January thereafter, and the licensed 
premises shall be subject to a fire and building department 
inspection and shall otherwise comply with applicable building 
and fire codes. 

 
G) The applicant shall identify the entrance(s) for drop-offs and 

pickups.  The parking and drop-off areas shall be designed to 
maximize safety and privacy for the neighboring properties.   

 
H) The conditions applicable to Home Occupations, as defined in 

Section 04.20.71 and as listed in Section 10.25.01, shall not apply 
to Group Child Care Homes, provided: 

 
1. A nuisance to the surrounding neighborhood is not created, 

pursuant to Chapter 88. 
 
2. The operator of the Group Child Care Home shall reside within 

the home.  
 

3. The use as a Group Child Care Home is incidental to the 
principal use as a single family residence. 

 
I) The state licensed child care home shall not be located closer than 

750 feet from another licensed child care home.  This requirement 
shall not apply to any state licensed day care home existing as of 
the date of enactment of this ordinance. 

 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 



Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department   3

Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective on August 1, 2006. 
 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, 
at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, 
on the _______ day of _____________, 2006. 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 214 Group Day Care Homes\CC GCCH Consensus Version PH Draft.doc 



 1

POTENTIAL GROUP CHILD CARE HOME PROVISIONS NEIGHBOR COMMENTS 
RECOMMENDED BY CITY COUNCIL 
 
(1)  The number of children so cared for who are not 
a part of the family residing in the subject dwelling 
unit shall not exceed twelve (12).  Current State of 
Michigan requirement. 

• Excessive. 
• Too many. 

(2)  The resident-operator of the Group Child Care 
Home shall be licensed in accordance with 
applicable State Law. Current State of Michigan 
requirement. 

No comment. 

(3)  No structural changes or exterior alterations shall 
be made which would alter the residential character of 
the dwelling except as required by the State of 
Michigan licensing rules. 

• Excessive play equipment. 
• No more than one swing set (2 to 3 swings per) or playscape 

or sandbox or etc. 

(4)  No sign shall be used on the premises to identify 
the Group Child Care Home. Current Zoning 
Ordinance requirement – no action necessary. 

Agree. 

(5)  Group Child Care Homes with vehicular access on 
a major thoroughfare shall be required to have a 
circular drive or an unobstructed turnaround area to 
allow for the safe egress of vehicles. 

Agree. 

 



 2

POTENTIAL GROUP CHILD CARE HOME PROVISIONS NEIGHBOR COMMENTS 
RECOMMENDED BY CITY COUNCIL 
 
(7)  The licensee shall register with the City upon 
commencing operation and on an annual basis each 
January thereafter, and the licensed premises shall 
be subject to a fire and building department 
inspection and shall provide a smoke detector in all 
daytime sleeping areas and otherwise comply with 
applicable building and fire codes. 

• Agree.   
• Carbon monoxide detector needed. 

(8)  The applicant shall identify the entrance(s) for 
drop-offs and pickups.  The parking and drop-off areas 
shall be designed to maximize safety and privacy for 
the neighboring properties.   

Agree. 

(9)  The conditions applicable to Home Occupations, 
as defined in Section 04.20.71 and as listed in 
Section 10.25.01, shall not apply to Group Child 
Care Homes, provided: 

• A nuisance to the surrounding neighborhood is 
not created. 

• The use of the dwelling for residential purposes 
is not more than an incidental function.   

• Unacceptable to exempt GCCH from home occupation rules. 
• Noise is a potential nuisance. 

(10)  The state licensed child care home shall not be 
located closer than 750 feet from another licensed 
child care home.  This requirement shall not apply to 
any state licensed day care home existing as of the 
date of enactment of this ordinance. 

• Traffic and parking will impact neighborhood. 
• Should be 1,500 feet like State law. 
• Should apply to existing GCCH. 
• No grandfathering. 

 



 3

POTENTIAL GROUP CHILD CARE HOME PROVISIONS NEIGHBOR COMMENTS 
NO CONCURRENCE BY CITY COUNCIL 
 
(1)  For homes that have side yards on 
main roads, require 4-foot chain link 
fence. 
 

Good idea, perhaps a taller fence. 

(2)  Fence and screening same as 
required for pools. 

(Comments split) 
                                                                Like fencing. 
6 foot solid fences.                                  Like pool requirements. 
No privacy fence requirement.                Play area within containment. 
 

(3)  Grandfather all existing day care 
homes in Troy as currently operating. 
 
 

No grandfathering. 

(4)  Location of children’s play equipment 
should be the furthest area from 
neighbors. 

Agree. 

(5)  Hours of operation. 
• Hours of operation shall be between 6 

AM to 10 PM. 
• The group child care home shall not 

operate for more than 16 hours in a 24-
hour period.  

 

Should be a limitation of hours. 
6 am to 10 pm, too late in the evening. 
Suggest 6 am to 8 pm, or 14 or 16 hours within 24-hour period. 

 



 4

POTENTIAL GROUP CHILD CARE HOMES PROVISIONS NEIGHBOR COMMENTS 
 
 
Additional comments:  1) Parking will use up the on-street parking. 

2) Blocking of sidewalks at pick-up and drop-off times. 
3) Parking should have sufficient spaces located on GCCH property. 
4) GCCH is a business. 
5) Neighbor notification greater than 300 feet or up to 1,500 feet. 
6) Commercial business in single family will reduce property values. 
7) GCCH adhere to Troy Zoning Ordinance Section 10.30.03 B. 
8) Do not locate within internal residential blocks.  Locate next to office, 

business and multi-family zoning districts. 
 

 
 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 214 Group Day Care Homes\GCCH Neighbor Checklist Chart.doc 
 

 



 5

 
 
 

All neighbors of residential child care providers in Troy (Group Child Care Homes and Family 
Child Care Homes) were notified by mail of the meeting. A total of 3,468 notices were mailed. 
 
Attendees at May 1, 2006 Neighbors of Child Care Providers Meeting: 
 

1. Mark Miller, Planning Director, City of Troy 
2. Sandra Cyplik, 3375 Alpine, Troy 
3. Elfridie Hobgood, 2259 Cumberland, Troy 
4. Gerald Rosicky, 2232 Rutgers Drive, Troy 
5. Fernando Quattro, 5145 Bayside Drive, Troy 
6. Mary Ann Donnelly, 1844 Flemington, Troy 
7. Tom Krent, 3184 Alpine, Troy 
8. Britt Anderson, 1525 Heatherwood, Troy 
9. Janet Marshall, 2049 Burdic Drive, Troy 
10. Leah Williams, 1040 Norwich Drive, Troy 
11. Mary Steinhilper, 1807 Fleetwood, Troy 



POTENTIAL GROUP CHILD CARE HOME PROVISIONS PROVIDER COMMENTS 
RECOMMENDED BY CITY COUNCIL 
 
(1)  The number of children so cared for who are not 
a part of the family residing in the subject dwelling 
unit shall not exceed twelve (12).  Current State of 
Michigan requirement. 

No problem. 

(2)  The resident-operator of the Group Child Care 
Home shall be licensed in accordance with 
applicable State Law. Current State of Michigan 
requirement. 

No problem. 

(3)  No structural changes or exterior alterations shall 
be made which would alter the residential character of 
the dwelling except as required by the State of 
Michigan licensing rules. 

No problem. 

(4)  No sign shall be used on the premises to identify 
the Group Child Care Home. Current Zoning 
Ordinance requirement – no action necessary. 

No problem. 

(5)  Group Child Care Homes with vehicular access on 
a major thoroughfare shall be required to have a 
circular drive or an unobstructed turnaround area to 
allow for the safe egress of vehicles. 

Expense, minor opinion. 

(6)  The Planning Director may waive any required site 
plan information provided it can be determined that the 
application meets the Group Child Care Home 
requirements of Section 10.30.10 and the general 
Special Use Approval standards of Section 03.31.05.  
Not applicable because a public hearing is not 
required. 

• Not applicable. 
• No problem.  

 



POTENTIAL GROUP CHILD CARE HOME PROVISIONS PROVIDER COMMENTS 
RECOMMENDED BY CITY COUNCIL 
 
(7)  The licensee shall register with the City upon 
commencing operation and on an annual basis each 
January thereafter, and the licensed premises shall 
be subject to a fire and building department 
inspection and shall provide a smoke detector in all 
daytime sleeping areas and otherwise comply with 
applicable building and fire codes. 

• Cost of registration and inspection. 
• MI Building Code enforcement. 
• Fire code enforcement. 
• Fees. 
• Lack of certainty of how this would really effect. 
• Expense for inspection. 
• Don’t want fire code inspection duplication. 
• Duplication of inspection. 
• Duplication of rules. 
• Very few businesses are singled out for registration and 

inspection. 
• One of the smallest of small businesses. 
• Inspections are unnecessary cost to city and provider. 
• Don’t want the MI Building Code to apply to GCCH/FCCH. 

(8)  The applicant shall identify the entrance(s) for 
drop-offs and pickups.  The parking and drop-off areas 
shall be designed to maximize safety and privacy for 
the neighboring properties.   

• Focus should hone in on safety of children and parents who 
are dropping off. 

• Not necessary because of R 400.1932 of the Licensing Rules 
for Family and Group Child Care Homes. 

(9)  The conditions applicable to Home Occupations, 
as defined in Section 04.20.71 and as listed in 
Section 10.25.01, shall not apply to Group Child 
Care Homes, provided: 

• A nuisance to the surrounding neighborhood is 
not created. 

• The use of the dwelling for residential purposes 
is not more than an incidental function.   

• Generally okay. 
• Should address a major nuisance. 
• Clarify what is a nuisance. 
• Residential change to “GCCH”. 

(10)  The state licensed child care home shall not be 
located closer than 750 feet from another licensed 
child care home.  This requirement shall not apply to 
any state licensed day care home existing as of the 
date of enactment of this ordinance. 

• Group. 
• Clarify measure, crow flies or along street. 
• Prefer along street. 
• Clarify spacing. 



POTENTIAL GROUP CHILD CARE HOME PROVISIONS PROVIDER COMMENTS 
NO CONCURRENCE BY CITY COUNCIL 
 
(1)  For homes that have side yards on 
main roads, require 4-foot chain link 
fence. 
 

• Not needed always. 
• Why, especially no play area. 
• Parents decide and choose provider with safe play area. 
• What about other fence material. 
• What about a landscape buffer. 
• Homeowners / subdivision / condo association does not permit fence. 

(2)  Fence and screening same as 
required for pools. 

• Why. 
• What about existing fences, cost. 
• Same as provision item #1. 
• Overkill of provision item #1. 

(3)  Grandfather all existing day care 
homes in Troy as currently operating. 
 
 

Yes.  All in favor. 
• Existing inspections by State, would it be yearly inspection requirement. 
• What would be required. 

(4)  Location of children’s play equipment 
should be the furthest area from 
neighbors. 

• Which neighbors. 
• Create safety issue, not necessary on larger lot. 
• Impractical for lawn maintenance, unsafe. 
• Better with space between them. 
• Normal, can have playground such as toys, sandbox, tables with no 

restrictions. 
• Leave it to provider to decide safety. 
• State requires unobstructed areas between equipment. 
• Emphasis on children. 
• Position of equipment for safety of child and proximity to neighbors. 

(5)  Hours of operation. 
• Hours of operation shall be between 6 

AM to 10 PM. 
• The group child care home shall not 

operate for more than 16 hours in a 24-
hour period.  

 

• They are licensed to 24 hours. 
• Very few children between 10 pm and 6 am, very rare. 
• What’s the point. 
• Why regulate if no problem. 
• What about vacation. 
• Emergencies. 



POTENTIAL GROUP CHILD CARE HOME PROVISIONS PROVIDER COMMENTS 
NO CONCURRENCE BY CITY COUNCIL 
 
Grandfather • There was consensus to provide full and complete grandfathering to 

provision items #3, #5, #7, and #10.  
 
 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 214 Group Day Care Homes\GCCH Provider Checklist Chart.doc 
 



 
 
 
All residential child care providers in Troy were notified by mail of the meeting. This includes 
20 Group Child Care Home providers and 43 Family Child Care Home providers. 
 
Attendees at April 24, 2006 Child Care Provider Meeting 
 
1. Mark Miller, Planning Director, City of Troy  
2. Dave and Sharon Schafer, 5593 Mandale Drive, Troy  48085   (group) 
3. Jim and Caroline Dunleavy, 1866 Sutton Place Drive, Troy  48098   (family) 
4. Syed and Talat Haque, 1033 Redding Drive, Troy  48098   (group) 
5. Nichol Childs, 1931 Atlas Court, Troy  48083   (group) 
6. Judith M. Collins, 5410 Hertford Drive, Troy  48085   (group) 
7. Kathleen Peterson, 1175 Garwood Drive, Troy  48085   (group) 
8. Bonnie and John Johnston, 1510 Boulan, Troy  48084   (group) 
9. Karen and John Krisconick-Mukalla, 3784 Forge Drive, Troy  48083   (group) 
10. Sharon Manning, 2651 E. Square Lake, Troy  48085   (group)  
11. Barb Webb, 787 Marengo Drive, Troy  48085   (family) 
12. Joyce Doyle, 1834 Farmbrook, Troy 48098   (group) 





































































PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – FINAL June 8, 2004 
 

-1- 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Personnel Board was held Tuesday, June 8, 2004, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. Chairman Patrick called the meeting to order at 7:06 PM. 

Roll Call: 
 
 PRESENT: Chairman Patrick 
  Member Baughman 
  Member Nelson 
  Member Tschirhart 
  Member Vanderbrink 
   
 ABSENT:  
   
 ALSO PRESENT: Peggy Clifton, Human Resources Director 
  Jeanette Menig, Human Resources Specialist 

Approval of Minutes: 
 
PB-04-06-001: Moved by Patrick, Seconded by Vanderbrink that the Minutes of the 

City of Troy Personnel Board Meeting of December 9, 2003 are 
APPROVED as submitted. 

 
Yes: Patrick, Baughman, Nelson, Tschirhart, Vanderbrink 
No: None 

Old Business: None 

New Business:  

A. Recommendation for Classification and Pay Plans and Merit Pay 
Increases for Classified Employees (FY 2004-2005)

 
Peggy Clifton, Human Resources Director advised the Board that HR staff surveyed 
surrounding communities and determined the average pay increase to be just under 3%. 
The budgeted amount for increases was set at 3.5%. Staff recommends the following: 
 
 Range adjustment: 2% 
 Across-the-board salary increases: 2% 
 Merit (based on performance evaluation score of 490 or above): 1% 
 
In addition to the range increase, staff is recommending 1 addition to the Classification Plan. 
The addition is Administrative Assistant to the City Manager at Pay Grade 5. 
 
PB-04-06-002: Moved by Patrick, Seconded by Nelson, That the proposed 

Classification and Pay Plans and merit increases for Classified 
Employees (FY 2004-2005) be APPROVED as submitted. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – FINAL June 8, 2004 
 

-2- 

Yes: Patrick, Baughman, Nelson, Tschirhart, Vanderbrink 
No: None 

B. Approval of Revisions to Personnel Rules 
 
Peggy Clifton, Human Resources Director advised the Board that the purpose of this 
proposal is to clarify that retiree health insurance is a benefit offered only to those who retire 
under a normal, early or disability retirement, not to those who leave the City with a deferred 
retirement. 
 
PB-04-06-003: Moved by Vanderbrink, Seconded by Patrick, That the Personnel 

Rules, Article XXX. Retirement, be APPROVED as amended to reflect 
that employees who retire under a Normal, Early or Disability retirement 
may be eligible for retiree health insurance. 

   
Yes: Patrick, Baughman, Nelson, Tschirhart, Vanderbrink 

 
Peggy Clifton indicated that Board members would be provided a complete copy of the 
Personnel Rules, which will include revisions approved at the December 2003 and June 
2004 meetings. 

Adjournment:  
 
PB-04-06-004: Moved by Patrick, Seconded by Vanderbrink, CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY: That there being nothing else to come before the 
Board, the meeting be ADJOURNED. 

 
Yes: Patrick, Baughman, Nelson, Tschirhart, Vanderbrink 
No: None
 

 
Meeting adjourned at 7:34 PM. 
 
  

 
 
 

 Stephen Patrick, Chairman 
  

 
 
 

 Peggy Clifton, Human Resources Director 
 



campbellld
Text Box
J-01b





PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – Final December 20, 2005 
 

-1- 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Personnel Board was held Tuesday, December 20, 
2005, at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road.  

Roll Call: 
 
PRESENT: Member Baughman 
 Member Tschirhart 
 Member Vanderbrink 
  
ABSENT: Member Nelson 
  
ALSO PRESENT: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
 Peggy Clifton, Human Resources Director 
 Barbara A. Holmes, Deputy City Clerk 
 
Appointment of Chairperson
 
PB-2005-12-001 
Moved by Tschirhart 
Seconded by Baughman 
 
RESOLVED, That Members of the Troy Personnel Board hereby APPOINT James 
Vanderbrink to serve as temporary Chairperson and that the appointment of a 
Chairperson be POSTPONED until all members are present. 
 
Yes: Baughman, Tschirhart, Vanderbrink 
No: None 
Absent: Nelson 
 
Chair Vanderbrink called the meeting to order at 9:25 AM. 
 
Approval of Minutes     
 
Approval of the Minutes of the Meeting of June 8, 2004 as Corrected 
 
Member Baughman indicated that she was present at the meeting of June 8, 2004. 
Therefore, there was a consensus of the members present to direct staff to review the 
notes of the meeting and present the corrected minutes at the next scheduled meeting. 
 
Approval of the Minutes of the Meeting of June 9, 2005 
 
PB-2005-12-002 
Moved by Baughman 
Seconded by Tschirhart 
 
RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the minutes of the meeting 
of June 9, 2005 as presented. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – Final December 20, 2005 
 

-2- 

Yes: Baughman, Tschirhart, Vanderbrink 
No: None 
Absent: Nelson 
 
3. Old Business: None 
 
4. New Business: 
 
Recommendations for Retiree Health Insurance Benefit for Employees Hired On 
or After January 1, 2006 
 
John Szerlag, City Manager, presented a brief summary of the proposed 
recommendations for the Retiree Health Insurance Benefit for employees hired on or 
after January 1, 2006. Mr. Szerlag advised that it is City Administration’s objective to 
remain competitive yet keep benefits in line. He continued by stating that in order to 
achieve that objective, City Administration has already initiated and implemented 
revisions to employee benefits such as discontinuance of longevity benefits to new 
employees and that employees hired after January 1, 1998 participate in a Defined 
Contribution (DC) Pension Program instead of the Defined Benefit (DB) Pension 
Program. Mr. Szerlag indicated that the proposed change to the retiree health benefit 
would be similarly beneficial in the long run for the City and that the next step would be 
to incorporate a defined contribution plan for retiree health benefits. He explained that 
retirees would receive 4% accrual per year of service. He continued by stating that the 
proposed Defined Contribution Retiree Health Care Plan will be allocated directly to that 
person and would eliminate a promise by the City to pay for future retiree’s health care. 
Mr. Szerlag advised that the vesting would be the same as what currently exists for the 
Defined Contribution Pension Program. 
 
Member Tschirhart asked for a definition of “pensionable earnings?” 
 
John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager, replied that pensionable earnings are any 
earnings derived from salary or hourly rate. He further explained that although the 
employer would deposit the contribution, the employee would determine how to invest 
the money and that amount would then be specifically designated for that employee’s 
health care costs. 
 
Chair Vanderbrink asked whether overtime wages are included? 
 
Mr. Lamerato replied that overtime wages are included. 
 
Member Baughman asked when does the employee have access to the contribution? 
 
Mr. Lamerato advised that the employee has access to their portion but that it must be 
used toward healthcare costs such as medical premiums, out of pocket healthcare 
costs, Medicare, COBRA, etc.  However, he continued by stating that this is meant to be 
a retiree benefit and noted that the employee can transfer this benefit if the employee 
no longer works for the City. 
 



PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – Final December 20, 2005 
 

-3- 

Mr. Lamerato advised that there is a cost savings associated with this benefit in that 
there is no social security tax paid on the contributions.  
 
Member Baughman asked where is the money held? 
 
Mr. Szerlag responded that the money would be deposited into a separate account held 
by a third party administrator. He continued by stating that retirees’ withdrawal requests 
would be made directly to the third party administrator. Mr. Szerlag added that these 
retirees would be eligible for the same health insurance coverage as those employees 
not in this plan except that they would pay directly for the benefit. 
 
Member Vanderbrink believes that this alternative retiree health care plan will help to 
reduce costs and therefore, he supports the proposed plan. 
 
Member Baughman requested that the text, “The vesting percentage applies to 
employer contributions only.” as it appears in Section 2. Employees hired on or after 
January 2, 2006 participate in a Retirement Health Savings Plan (HSA); B. Vesting, also 
be inserted in Section 2. Vesting of the Defined Benefit (DB) Pension Program in the 
Personnel Rules & Regulations, XXX. Retirement. 
 
Mr. Lamerato agreed. 
  
Peggy Clifton, Human Resources Director, assured the board that the revision would be 
made to the text in the Personnel Rules & Regulations, XXX. Retirement as requested 
by Member Baughman. 
 
Approval of Recommendations for Retiree Health Insurance Benefit 
 
PB-2005-12-003 
Moved by Baughman 
Seconded by Vanderbrink 
 
RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the Retiree Health 
Insurance Benefit for Employees Hired on or after January 1, 2006; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Personnel Rules & Regulations be AMENDED 
by INSERTING “The vesting percentage applies to employer contributions only.”  in 
XXX. Retirement Section 2. Vesting of the Defined Benefit (DB) Pension Program. 
 
Yes: Baughman, Tschirhart, Vanderbrink 
No: None 
Absent: Nelson 
 
Amendment to Personnel Rules & Regulations  
 
PB-2005-12-004 
Moved by Vanderbrink 
Seconded by Baughman 



PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – Final December 20, 2005 
 

-4- 

RESOLVED, That the Personnel Rules & Regulations be AMENDED by STRIKING 
“(HSA)” and INSERTING “(RHS)” in Section 2. Employees hired on or after January 2, 
2006 participate in a Retirement Health Savings Plan (HSA); B. Vesting
 
Yes: Baughman, Tschirhart, Vanderbrink 
No: None 
Absent: Nelson 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 9:46 AM. 
 
 
  

 
 
 

 James Vanderbrink, Acting Chairperson  
  

 
 
 

 Barbara A. Holmes, Deputy City Clerk 
 
 



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board – FINAL                                                      March 16, 2006  
PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 

 
A regular meeting of the Troy Parks and Recreation Advisory Board was held Thursday, March 
16, 2006 at the Troy Community Center in the staff conference room.  Kathy Fejes called the 
meeting to order at 7:05 p.m. 
 
Present:  Kathy Fejes, member  Gary Hauff, member 
   Rusty Kaltsounis, member  Merrill Dixon, member 
   Tod Gazetti, member  Stuart Redpath, member 
   Janice Zikakis, member  Jeff Biegler, staff 
   Carol K. Anderson, staff 
 
Absent:  Brad Henson, Meaghan Kovacs, Jeff Stewart, Tom Krent 
 
Visitors:   
 
Resolution # PR - 2006 - 03 - 006 
Moved by Kaltsounis 
Seconded by Dixon 
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes from January 19, 2006 are approved as submitted.   
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Term Limits – There are no term limits for board and committee members anymore.   
 

B. Golf Rates - There is no increase in rates for the golf course.  However, the outing rate 
was adjusted to discount large groups.  Two additions to the golf course offerings are a 
morning league rate and a season pass to the golf range at Sanctuary Lake Golf Course.   

 
C. Aquatic Center Rates – There are no increases to the Aquatic Center rates.  Gary Hauff 

asked if this department offered a discount to active military personnel that are home on 
leave to use our facilities and programs.  Ms. Anderson will have a proposal at the next 
meeting on this idea.   

 
D. Master Plan Survey Results – The survey results were discussed.  A hard copy and a CD 

were given to each board member to review.  Of particular importance are the 
percentage of respondents that indicates community benefits of Parks and Recreation 
(pg. 10), and the new facilities desired by respondents (pg.14).   

 
E. Budget – The budget will be available at the April meeting.  The Park Board members will 

review it before it goes to City Council.   
 
Resolution # PR – 2006 – 03 – 007 
Moved by Dixon 
Seconded by Zikakis 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board – FINAL                                                      March 16, 2006  
RESOLVED, that the meeting date for April will be Wednesday, April 12 at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Section 36 – The City has been ordered to pay the owner of Section 36 park land       
$3.9 million dollars.  The judgment also decreed that the City pay attorney fees.  City 
Council has decided to appeal that judgment.   

 
B. Cutting Street Parcel – A motion to reconsider resolution # PR-2006-01-004.  Motion 

failed for lack of a second.   
 
Staff Reports 
Directors Report – The plaintiff in a lawsuit brought against Sanctuary Lake Golf Course has 
agreed to drop the charges if certain conditions are met.  The City was planning on doing these 
things and so it is anticipated the lawsuit will be dropped.   
 
Recreation Report – Spring registration has begun and there are many activities scheduled.  
Sports Camps, Egg Splash at the indoor pool, Egg Scramble, which will be held outside the 
Community Center, and a new Survivor Camp are just a few of the offerings.   
 
Parks Report – Park Shelter reservations begin Monday, April 3.  The fee has increased to 
$50.00 this year.   
 
A new split rail fence was put up at Firefighters Park and at the Troy Farm.   
 
The tennis courts at Boulan Park will be resurfaced.  Half will be done this spring and the other 
half will be done at the end of summer so as not to prohibit all use of the tennis courts during 
peak usage.   
 
Repair of the roof and foundation of the barn at the Troy Farm will be done this spring/summer.   
 
Bid opening for the Bocce courts at the Community Center is scheduled for March 29.   
 
Resolution #PR-2006-03-008 
Moved by Hauff 
Seconded by Gazetti 
 
RESOLVED, to excuse absent members who have provided advanced notification.   
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:49 p.m. 
 
_________________________________ 
Kathy Fejes, Acting Chairperson 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Mary Williams, Recording Secretary 



DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MINUTES  DRAFT  APRIL 19, 2006 
 
 
A meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Wednesday, April 
19, 2006 in the Council Boardroom of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Troy, 
Michigan.   Carol Price called the meeting to order at 7:30 a.m. 
 
 
 
PRESENT:  Michael Culpepper 

Stuart Frankel (arrived 7:33 a.m.) 
David Hay 
Michele Hodges  
Daniel MacLeish (arrived 7:48 a.m.) 
Carol Price 
Ernest Reschke 
Louise Schilling 
Harvey Weiss 
 
 

ABSENT:  William Kennis 
Alan Kiriluk 

   Douglas Schroeder   
G. Thomas York 

 
       
ALSO PRESENT: John M. Lamerato 

Brian Murphy   
   Lori Bluhm 

Doug Smith 
   Mark Miller 
 
 
 
 
APPOINTMENT OF ACTING CHAIR 
 
Resolution:   DD-06-13 
Moved by:   Schilling 
Seconded by:  Hay 
 
RESOLVED, That Carol Price serve as Acting Chair for the April 19, 2006 Board 
meeting. 
 
Yeas:  All (7) 
Absent: Frankel, Kennis, Kiriluk, MacLeish, Schroeder, York  
 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution:    DD-06-14 
Moved by:    Hay 
Seconded by:  Reschke 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the March 15, 2006 regular meeting be approved. 
 
Yeas:  All (7) 
Absent: Frankel, Kennis, Kiriluk, MacLeish, Schroeder, York 
 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
A. Mission Statement  
 
Resolution:   DD-06-15 
Moved by:   Hay 
Seconded by:  Hodges 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed Mission Statement be amended by inserting “entire 
Troy” in the last sentence. 
 
Yeas:  All (8) 
Absent: Kennis, Kiriluk, MacLeish, Schroeder, York 
 
 
Resolution:   DD-06-16 
Moved by:   Culpepper 
Seconded by:  Hodges 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board adopt the following as their Mission Statement: 
 
The Downtown Development Authority is committed to preserving and strengthening 
the Big Beaver Corridor, enriching and encouraging a positive business climate 
through public/private investments that will stimulate growth, private investment and 
jobs that benefit the entire Troy community. 
 
Yeas:  All (8) 
Absent: Kennis, Kiriluk, MacLeish, Schroeder, York 
  
 
B. Rules of Procedure 
 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney reviewed proposed By-law amendments and Rules of 
Procedure. 
 
Resolution:   DD-06-17 
Moved by:   Hodges 
Seconded by:  Reschke 



 
RESOLVED, That the Board consider Act. No.1 removal of rules from By-laws and 
creation of new Rules and Procedures at their June meeting. 
 
Yeas:  All (8) 
Absent: Kennis, Kiriluk, MacLeish, Schroeder, York 
 
C. Extension of the DDA including Corridor Improvement Legislation 
 
The Board will have further discussion on these items at their June Board meeting. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Proposed 2006/07 Budget 
 
Resolution:   DD-06-18 
Moved by:   Reschke 
Seconded by:  MacLeish 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board approve the proposed 2006-07 budget and recommend 
City Council approval. 
 
Yeas:  All (9) 
Absent: Kennis, Kiriluk, Schroeder, York 
 
 
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
 
Resolution:    DD-06-19 
Moved by:    Schilling 
Seconded by:  Culpepper 
 
RESOLVED, That Kennis, Kiriluk, Schroeder and York be excused. 
 
Yeas:   All (9) 
Absent:  Kennis, Kiriluk, Schroeder, York 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
One visitor in attendance addressed the Board.    
 
 
MEMBER COMMENT 
 
Maple Road Corridor Study presentation May 10, 2006 at the Community Center. 
 
 
 
 



CANCEL MAY 17, 2006 BOARD MEETING 
 
Resolution:   DD-06-19 
Moved by:   MacLeish 
Seconded by:  Reschke 
 
RESOLVED, That the May 17, 2006 Board meeting be cancelled; and the June 1, 
2006 meeting be scheduled. 
 
Yeas:  All (9) 
Absent: Kennis, Kiriluk, Schroeder, York 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:18 a.m. 
 
Next Meeting:  June 1, 2006 @ 7:30 a.m. @ Troy Community Center, Room 305. 
 

         
________________________________________ 

Carol Price, Acting Chair   
 
 

________________________________________ 
      John M. Lamerato, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
JL/pg 



DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MINUTES  FINAL  APRIL 19, 2006 
 
 
A meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Wednesday, April 
19, 2006 in the Council Boardroom of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Troy, 
Michigan.   Carol Price called the meeting to order at 7:30 a.m. 
 
 
 
PRESENT:  Michael Culpepper 

Stuart Frankel (arrived 7:33 a.m.) 
David Hay 
Michele Hodges  
Daniel MacLeish (arrived 7:48 a.m.) 
Carol Price 
Ernest Reschke 
Louise Schilling 
Harvey Weiss 
 
 

ABSENT:  William Kennis 
Alan Kiriluk 

   Douglas Schroeder   
G. Thomas York 

 
       
ALSO PRESENT: John M. Lamerato 

Brian Murphy   
   Lori Bluhm 

Doug Smith 
   Mark Miller 
 
 
 
 
APPOINTMENT OF ACTING CHAIR 
 
Resolution:   DD-06-13 
Moved by:   Schilling 
Seconded by:  Hay 
 
RESOLVED, That Carol Price serve as Acting Chair for the April 19, 2006 Board 
meeting. 
 
Yeas:  All (7) 
Absent: Frankel, Kennis, Kiriluk, MacLeish, Schroeder, York  
 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution:    DD-06-14 
Moved by:    Hay 
Seconded by:  Reschke 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the March 15, 2006 regular meeting be approved. 
 
Yeas:  All (7) 
Absent: Frankel, Kennis, Kiriluk, MacLeish, Schroeder, York 
 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
A. Mission Statement  
 
Resolution:   DD-06-15 
Moved by:   Hay 
Seconded by:  Hodges 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed Mission Statement be amended by inserting “entire 
Troy” in the last sentence. 
 
Yeas:  All (8) 
Absent: Kennis, Kiriluk, MacLeish, Schroeder, York 
 
 
Resolution:   DD-06-16 
Moved by:   Culpepper 
Seconded by:  Hodges 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board adopt the following as their Mission Statement: 
 
The Downtown Development Authority is committed to preserving and strengthening 
the Big Beaver Corridor, enriching and encouraging a positive business climate 
through public/private investments that will stimulate growth, private investment and 
jobs that benefit the entire Troy community. 
 
Yeas:  All (8) 
Absent: Kennis, Kiriluk, MacLeish, Schroeder, York 
  
 
B. Rules of Procedure 
 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney reviewed proposed By-law amendments and Rules of 
Procedure. 
 
Resolution:   DD-06-17 
Moved by:   Hodges 
Seconded by:  Reschke 



 
RESOLVED, That the Board consider Act. No.1 removal of rules from By-laws and 
creation of new Rules and Procedures at their June meeting. 
 
Yeas:  All (8) 
Absent: Kennis, Kiriluk, MacLeish, Schroeder, York 
 
C. Extension of the DDA including Corridor Improvement Legislation 
 
The Board will have further discussion on these items at their June Board meeting. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Proposed 2006/07 Budget 
 
Resolution:   DD-06-18 
Moved by:   Reschke 
Seconded by:  MacLeish 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board approve the proposed 2006-07 budget and recommend 
City Council approval. 
 
Yeas:  All (9) 
Absent: Kennis, Kiriluk, Schroeder, York 
 
 
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
 
Resolution:    DD-06-19 
Moved by:    Schilling 
Seconded by:  Culpepper 
 
RESOLVED, That Kennis, Kiriluk, Schroeder and York be excused. 
 
Yeas:   All (9) 
Absent:  Kennis, Kiriluk, Schroeder, York 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
One visitor in attendance addressed the Board.    
 
 
MEMBER COMMENT 
 
Maple Road Corridor Study presentation May 10, 2006 at the Community Center. 
 
 
 
 



CANCEL MAY 17, 2006 BOARD MEETING 
 
Resolution:   DD-06-19 
Moved by:   MacLeish 
Seconded by:  Reschke 
 
RESOLVED, That the May 17, 2006 Board meeting be cancelled; and the June 1, 
2006 meeting be scheduled. 
 
Yeas:  All (9) 
Absent: Kennis, Kiriluk, Schroeder, York 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:18 a.m. 
 
Next Meeting:  June 1, 2006 @ 7:30 a.m. @ Troy Community Center, Room 305. 
 

         
________________________________________ 

Carol Price, Acting Chair   
 
 

________________________________________ 
      John M. Lamerato, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
JL/pg 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                MAY 3, 2006 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M., on Wednesday, May 3, 2006 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   William Nelson 
   Tim Richnak 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Marlene Struckman, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
   
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF April 5, 2006 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of March 1, 2006 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  BASEMENT EXPERTS, 4687 ALTON DRIVE for 
relief of 2003 Michigan Residential Code to finish a basement. 
 
Mr. Dziurman moved this item to the end of the agenda to allow the petitioner the 
opportunity to be present. 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  BASEMENT EXPERTS, 1432 LEAFGREEN for 
relief of the Michigan Residential Code to finish a basement. 
 
Mr. Dziurman moved this item to the end of the agenda to allow the petitioner the 
opportunity to be present. 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MARK ROULAND, 3012 KINGSLEY, for relief of 
Chapter 83 to remove and replace an existing fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioners are requesting relief of Chapter 83 to remove 
and replace an existing fence.  The location of this property and the orientation of the 
adjacent homes, make this lot a double front lot.  As such it has a 40’ minimum front 
yard setback requirement along both Kingsley and Big Beaver.  Chapter 83 limits the 
height of fences to 30” in front setbacks.  The site plan submitted indicates replacing the  
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                MAY 3, 2006 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
existing fence with a new 6’ high privacy fence adjacent to the south property line along 
West Big Beaver Road.  There was never any permit for the original fence.   
 
Mr. Rouland was present and submitted photos of the existing fence.  He stated you 
can see that the fence is in disrepair and is in need of replacement.  The fence was 
erected in 1988 and provided protection for a pool that was also constructed by a 
previous owner (Crawford family).  He stated there are at least two reasons that he 
would like the fence.  One is for protection for the in-ground pool and the other is 
because of the deteriorated condition of the fence.  He said the fence is a stockade type 
fence.  He would like to erect something that would look nice and improve the site. 
 
In addition, Mr. Rouland stated that a 4’high fence would not deter people from gaining 
access to the site.  He stated the homeowner’s association helps maintain the area on 
the outside and they would be will to plant material that would make it look more 
attractive.  He has checked similar sites that have a 6’ high privacy fence.  He also 
stated it would help prevent the pool from being an attractive nuisance and he has a 
small daughter that plays in the yard. 
 
There is a cement wall that is lower and Mr. Rouland agreed to taper the fence to meet 
the cement wall.  He also said the City of Troy removed trees from the right-of-way and 
he does not know what the plans are for planting new trees. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the homeowner at 3011 Kingsley has the same type of fence.  Mr. 
Rouland stated he didn’t think the fence at 3011 Kingsley was as old as the fence at his 
residence.  He plans on using white cedar and placing the nicer side out so that it would 
be more attractive. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked who was erecting the fence.  Mr. Rouland stated he hired Action 
Fence Company to do the work.   
 
Mr. Stimac advised him that the property line in that area was not 1’ off of the sidewalk.  
In addition, permission would be required from the Parks & Recreation Department for 
any landscaping placed in City of Troy property. 
 
Mr. Rouland stated the landscaping was still in the planning stages. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated he wanted the Board to be aware of the location of the right-of-way. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There were four written approvals on file.  There were no objections on file. 
 
 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                MAY 3, 2006 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED to grant Mr. Rouland of 3012 Kingsley relief of Chapter 83 to construct a 6’ 
high privacy fence adjacent to the south property line along West Big Beaver. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect on surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All-5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST – MONDRIAN PROPERTIES, 6024 & 6025 
MAYAPPLE, for relief of chapter 85 to erect two (2) 60 square foot ground signs. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioners are requesting relief of Chapter 85 to erect two 
(2) 60 square foot ground signs.  Section 85.02.05 (1b) states that only one sign, 100 
square feet in area is permitted. 
 
Mr. Maniaci of Mondrian Properties was present.  Mr. Maniaci stated he is wishing to 
erect metal raised letters on two walls at the entrance for Chesapeake Grove, a 
condominium project.  He said that it would be more visible for traffic going east and 
west. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if it was necessary to have signage on both of the walls. 
 
Mr. Maniaci stated it would be a nice balance.  He stated the total sign area would be 
only 18 square feet. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if you could only put the signage on one side. 
 
Mr. Maniaci stated it would be more visible with the two signs. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There was one (1) written approval on file.  There was one (1) written objection on file. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Nelson 
 
 
 

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                MAY 3, 2006 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Mondrian Properties, 6024 & 6025 Mayapple relief of Chapter 85 to 
erect two (2) 60 square foot ground signs at the entrance to the Chesapeake Grove 
condominium project. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to the public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas: All-5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT REQUEST FOR TWO (2) 60 SQUARE FOOT GROUND SIGNS 
CARRIED. 
 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  AVER SIGN CO., 1735 E. BIG BEAVER, for relief 
of Chapter 85 to install a second wall sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to erect a 
second wall sign 28 square foot in area.  Section 85.02.05 (3a) allows for one wall sign, 
not to exceed 10% of the front of the structure. Currently there is an existing 72.4 
square foot wall sign.  A permit was issued for the 28 square foot wall sign with the 
stipulation that all other wall signs were to be removed.  After installing this sign, the 
owner decided he wanted the 72.4 square foot wall sign to remain.  This would mean 
that the tenant would only be allowed a 20 square foot wall sign. 
 
Ken Enghauser of JP Morgan Chase was present.  Mr. Enghauser stated it would be a 
hardship to fabricate another sign for this location.   
 
Mr. Kessler asked why they didn’t remove the other sign. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the bank was open. 
 
Mr. Enghauser stated they are open and operate as a full service bank.. Mr. Enghauser 
also stated they could remove the brim, if that would assist in allowing the sign.   
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the brim was not part of the original variance request and if it 
were considered part of the sign (logo) and not lighting, we would need to bring it back 
to the board. 
 
Mr. Richnak said the matter should be tabled until the next meeting, to allow the board 
to review the sign and the brim. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 

 4



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                MAY 3, 2006 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Aver Sign, for relief of the Sign Ordinance to allow 
a second wall sign 28 square feet in area until the next meeting of June 7, 2006. 
 

• To allow the petitioner to review the plans and whether they are to include the 
brim as part of the signage. 

• To allow the petitioner to submit more detailed plans. 
 
Yeas: 5 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF JUNE 7, 2006 
CARRIED. 
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  INTERCITY NEON, 1919-1975 TECHNOLOGY 
DRIVE, for relief of Chapter 85 to erect a second ground sign, 42 square feet in area on 
a site in the R-C Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to erect a second 
ground sign, 42 square feet in area on a site in the R-C Zoning District.  Section 
85.02.05 (3b) permits one ground sign for each building the R-C Zoning District.  
Currently there is a ground sign designated for this building, located at the corner of 
John R and Technology that reads “Troy Technology Park”. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that in residential zoned areas there is a provision for 
entranceway signs but there is no provision in commercial zoned areas.  The brick wall 
at the entrance to Technology Park has signage on it that was assigned to the building 
at 1919-1975 Technology. 
 
Mr. Oddo was present.  He stated that recently a new tenant moved in and prior to 
them, General Motors was the primary tenant for most of the buildings in the park.  Mr. 
Oddo stated that pine trees block the building, making it difficult to find.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if a wall sign would be more visible.   
 
Mr. Oddo stated that the trees would still hinder the visibility of the sign.  He stated that 
every building on the site currently has a ground sign.  This building is the only one 
without a ground sign.  Mr. Oddo continued to say that at one time General Motors was 
the occupant of all of the buildings and they connected the buildings so that they were 
accessible from inside the structures.  Mr. Oddo stated that now the buildings are multi-
tenant occupancies and additional signage is required in order to locate the tenants.   
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if there could be signage down the road to direct traffic to the tenants. 
 
 
 

 5



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                MAY 3, 2006 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained the sign ordinance provides for a ground sign, which may contain 
signage to identify the tenants.  In addition, each tenant could have a tenant 
identification sign on the area of the building that they occupy to provide direction. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked what amount of wall signage the buildings could have.   
 
Mr. Stimac stated that each building gets 200 square feet of wall signage and each 
tenant may have 20 square feet of wall signage. 
 
Mr. Oddo stated that once this sign is erected, they should not need anymore ground 
signs for the park. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked who approves the signage that is installed.  Mr. Oddo stated that 
Trammel Crow manages the property and they monitor everything that is done on the 
site. 
 
Mr. Dziurman suggested that restrictions be put in the lease agreements with the 
tenants. 
 
After much discussion on the number of buildings, which were identified as H, I, and J 
buildings, Mr. Stimac stated the City only goes by official addresses. 
   
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant Inter City Neon relief of Chapter 85 to erect a second ground sign 42 
square feet in area on a site in the R-C Zoning District. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to the public interest. 
• Entrance sign to the Technology Park will remain as identification for the park 

only. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT REQUEST FOR A SECOND GROUND SIGN CARRIED. 
 
ITEM #8 – VARIANCE REQUEST, GARY ABITHEIRA, REPRESENTING MICHIGAN 
HOME BUILDERS, BRIGGS PARK CONDOMONIUM, for relief of Chapter 83 to install 
a masonry wall at the proposed Brigs Park Condominium. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 
masonry wall at the Briggs Park condominium site, which is the property located at the 
northeast corner of Lamb and Rochester Rd.  The site plan submitted indicates 6’ and 9’ 
high masonry walls and metal fences located 20’ from the property lines along  

 6



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                MAY 3, 2006 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Rochester Road and Lamb.  Chapter 83 limits the height of fences to 30” in the front 
setback. 
 
Gary Abitheira, Joe Paluzzi and Brad Boehling of Michigan Home Builders were 
present.  Mr. Abitheira stated that this is a new development.  Part of the plans is to 
install a berm at Rochester Road and Lamb Dr.  The berm is to be 4’ high with the wall 
extending up 5’ for a total of 9 feet.  Mr. Abitheira explained that it would add to the look 
for Rochester Road and also help cut down the noise from traffic on Rochester Road. 
 
Mr. Paluzzi stated this development would be occupied by older citizens and having the 
berm with the wall 9’ high would keep noise down for the residents. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked it the height would vary on the wall.   
 
Mr. Paluzzi stated there would be a 4’ consistent wall along Rochester Road. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if these dwellings were two stories.  Mr. Paluzzi stated they were 
single story but the whole project is centered for empty nesters. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked about a sidewalk.  Mr. Stimac stated he didn’t know if a sidewalk 
would be installed. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if it would create a drainage issue.  Mr. Richnak stated it would not be 
a problem.  The flow would go to the street. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked who would maintain the wall and landscaping.  Mr. Boehling stated it 
would be turned over to the Association to maintain.  He said they were planning on 
spending $5,000 to $6,000 per building for landscaping materials. 
 
Mr. Boehling stated there would be 20’ of green space from the residences to the wall. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what the committed dollar amount was for all the landscaping and 
Mr. Paluzzi stated it was $25,000. 
 
Mr. Kessler advised they should get with Ronald Hynd, Landscape Analyst with the City 
of Troy Parks and Recreation Department to get advise on the best materials to use. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There was one (1) written approval on file.  There was one (1) written objection on file. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 

 7



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                MAY 3, 2006 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Michigan Home Builders relief of Chapter 83 to install 6’ and 9’ 
masonry walls and metal fences located 20’ from the property lines along Rochester 
Road and Lamb Dr.  Chapter 83 limits the height of fences to 30” in the front setback.   
 

• Contractor to obtain and provide a cost estimate of how much it will cost to 
complete the entire project for landscaping to insure it will cover all areas of the 
wall. 

• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #9 (ITEM #2) – VARIANCE REQUEST.  BASEMENT EXPERTS, 4687 ALTON 
DRIVE, for relief of the 2003 Michigan Residential Code to finish a basement. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained the petitioners are requesting relief of the 2003 Michigan 
Residential Code to finish a basement.  The plans submitted show that the existing 
basement has a 7’ height to the bottom of the joists, a dropped I-beam with a 6’-5” clear 
height and dropped plumbing with 6’-6” clear height.  The finished ceiling materials 
would lower the main ceiling areas to 6’8” and 6’-9”, and the plumbing and I-beam 
dropped ceilings to 6’-4”.  Section R-305 of the Michigan Residential Code requires a 7’ 
minimum ceiling height in finished basement and 6’-6” clear heights under dropped 
areas. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that this item appeared before the Board at the Meeting of April 5, 
2006 and was postponed to this meeting to allow the petitioner to provide pictures and 
more detailed drawings of the basement they are planning to refinish indicating gas and 
plumbing lines as well as I-beams and ductwork. 
 
Mr. Dubay of Basement Experts was present.  Mr. Dubay submitted photos to the Board 
showing the I-beam from the foot of the stairs.  The next photo was of the plumbing on 
the wall.  Mr. Dubay also, submitted a photo of the unfinished side of the basement.  Mr. 
Dubay stated the unfinished side shows a gas line that someone would have to duck 
under. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked about the drain depicted in the photo.  He wondered if it could be 
moved. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated this was a very unusual design for a drain to be in this location (below 
the joists).  It also appears to be an “S” trap rather than the permitted “P” trap.   He also 
asked questions about the door opening. 
 

 8



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                MAY 3, 2006 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked about re-working the wiring.  Mr. Dubay stated they were going to run 
new wiring. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that in the future we would want photos of all areas put in the packets 
as it would save time when reviewing each case. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant request of Basement Experts, 4687 Alton Drive, relief of the 2003 
Michigan Residential Code, to finish a basement with a suspended ceiling to a height of 
6’8” for the main ceiling and 6’-5” drop at the I-beam. 
 

• Petitioner must round or taper the sharp edge around the I-Beam to remove a 
potentially hazardous condition. 

• Variance applies only to the property described in this application. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT REQUEST CARRIED 
 
ITEM #10 (ITEM #3) – VARIANCE REQUEST, BASEMENT EXPERTS, 1432 
LEAFGREEN, for relief of the Michigan Residential Code to finish a basement. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained the petitioners are requesting relief of the 2003 Michigan 
Residential Code to finish a basement.  The plans submitted show that the existing 
basement has a 7’ height to the bottom of the joists and a dropped I-beam with a 6’-6” 
clear height.  The plans propose installing a suspended ceiling and covering the I-beam 
with finish materials.  These changes would lower the main ceiling height to 6’8” and the 
dropped I-beam to 6’-5”. 
 
The 2003 Michigan Residential Code section R-305 requires a 7’ minimum ceiling 
height in finished basements and 6’-6” clear heights under dropped areas. 
 
 Mr. Dubay from Basement Experts was present.  He submitted photos for this job. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked questions regarding the dimensions from floor to joists.  Also, asked 
the minimum clearance under ceiling joists. 
 
Mr. Dubay responded with dimensions.  
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Richnak 
 

 9



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                MAY 3, 2006 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant the request of Basement Experts, 1432 Leafgreen, for relief of the 
Michigan Residential Code to finish a basement that would lower the main ceiling height 
to 6’-8” and dropped I-beam to 6’-5”. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in this application. 
 

Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT REQUEST CARRIED  
     
Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:40 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
             
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary  

 10



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        May 4, 2006 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, May 4 
2006 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair JoAnn Thompson called the meeting to order at  
1:15 PM. 
 
Present: JoAnn Thompson, Chair David Ogg, Member 
 Frank Shier, Member (late) James Berar, Member  
 Bud Black, Member Pauline Noce, Member 
 Jo Rhoads, Member  Merrill Dixon, Member, excused    
 Carla Vaughan, Staff   
     
Absent: None    
   
Visitors:  John Scott, John Law, Ray Dean, Roger Rose, Bob Varto, Paula Fleming, Wade 

Fleming 
   
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2006-5-001 
Moved by Jo Rhoads  
Seconded by Pauline Noce 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of April 6, 2006 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 7       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
John Scott, John Law, Ray Dean, Roger Rose and Bob Varto attended representing the 
Wednesday and Thursday senior golf leagues.  They expressed the following concerns:   
They do not like the new requirement proposed for 2007 that they must pay for a set number of 
players regardless of how many are in attendance (the golf course has proposed to allow four 
unpaid absences per week), that non-residents must pay a higher rate, that they will be 
required to sign a contract, and that the City wants to transfer electronically a portion of the 
greens fees rather than give all of the money to the league treasurer.  Carla stated that the City 
does not want to take over the league, but the requirements of the finance department 
regarding documentation of expenditures must be met.  Carla will determine exactly what 
these requirements are and get a sample contract from the golf course for the league officers 
within one week.  Then we can work out the details.    
 
Paula Fleming reported on the school district election, the band’s trip to San Antonio, and a car 
wash fundraising event. 
 
Old Business 
  

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        May 4, 2006 

2 

Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Merrill Dixon reported that Jeff Biegler is still looking for 
someone to do the project.  No one bid on the project, and he needs to find someone to do it.  
The committee would like Jeff to attend their next meeting to give a brief report on the facility.  
Carla will request his attendance. 
  
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Carla reported that Council has decided that a 
one-year contract would be better than two.  The one-year contract will be presented to 
Council next week.   The City will go out for bid after the one-year contract expires.  Since the 
City now has a history with a caterer, a better contract might be negotiated. 
 
New Business 
 
Election of Officers:   
 
Resolution # SC-2006-5-002 
Moved by David Ogg  
Seconded by James Berar 
 
RESOLVED That Bud Black was elected Chair and Pauline Noce was elected as Vice Chair 
 
Yes: 8       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board: Merrill Dixon thanked the committee for recommending his reappointment to the 
Park Board. 
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that Medi-Go was happy to attend the Expo, and a new van 
was dedicated. 
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that 112 volunteers and 48 guests attended the volunteer 
banquet on April 25.  Forty-two people attended the My Medicare Matters enrollment event on 
April 26.   The cultural diversity series has been very interesting, but not well attended.  It may 
be offered again in the fall and opened to the general public.   
 
OLHSA:  Pauline Noce reported that their speaker was Jan Davis, LPN, from Select Specialty 
Hospital Services.  They do minor surgical procedures in their office.  
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  Jo Rhoads reported that they will be having a 
breakfast to discuss what they will be presenting to the legislatures. 
 
Medicare Part D:  JoAnn Thompson remarked that the May 15 deadline is coming up and 
many seniors are having a hard time making a decision.  
 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        May 4, 2006 

3 

Suggestion Box:  There were two unsigned suggestions requesting no organ music on 
Fridays.  There was one thank you note for putting the larger “Senior Parking Only” sign out, 
but the writer stated that it is not out every day.  Carla will make sure it is getting put out every 
day.  She will also poll the seniors in attendance on Fridays to see how the majority feels about 
the organ music. 
 
Comments:   
 
Several committee members commented that they were glad that the golfers attended the 
meeting to express their concerns. 
 
JoAnn Thompson reported that she worked the school electron and the turn-out was low. 
 
David Ogg reported that the City seems to have stopped weeding the boulevards.   
 
The meeting was adjourned at 3:25 PM. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
JoAnn Thompson, Chair               
 
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES MAY 9, 2006  

TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD 
TUESDAY, MAY 9, 2006 

TROY CITY HALL - CONFERENCE ROOM C 
 
 
I. Call to Order 7:05 p.m. 
 
II. Roll Call: 
 

Present: 
Padma Kuppa Kelly Gu, Student Rep 
Anju Brodbine Lulu Guo, Student Rep 
Tom Kaszubski Tony Haddad (late 7:50 p.m.) 
Michelle Haight Malini Sarma 
Helen Yang, Student Rep 
Cindy Stewart 
 
Absent: 
Reuben Ellis, Mark Pritzlaff 
 
Excuse absent members 
 

III. Approval of Minutes 
 

Moved by Padma Kuppa seconded by Michelle that the minutes of April 4, 
2006 be approved.  With correction match = March 
 
Introduction of new student representative, Helen Yang – 10th grade at 
Troy High – future problem solvers, SADD, club med (medical volunteers). 
Kelly’s last meeting is June, 2006. 
 

IV. Correspondence/Articles – 
 

Smith Middle School Celebrates Diversity – Troy Somerset Gazette 
Day of Prayer More Diverse This Year – Free Press 5/3/06 
Suburbs are the New American Melting Pot – Detroit News 4/20/06 
 

V. New Business 
 

Diversity Program – Pam Mathers, Hamilton Principal, Nadia Hak and 
Racha Massarani, parents on cultural committee. 450 students @ 
Hamilton. 
 
5 years ago – conversation to bully proof Hamilton – led to differences in 
culture, religion, etc.  and ultimately led to a cultural committee.  Originally 
there were 15-20 on committee, but now 10 regular members.  Goal was 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES MAY 9, 2006  

to help each group understand the other groups.  Example holidays, 
traditions, etc. 
 
Committee met October, 2005 on how to teach children to understand 
their differences.  First project to celebrate their differences, they made 
paper dolls and sent them home to decorate as their culture then hung 
them around school.  This was tied in with academic night.  
 
Second Activity – Holidays:  sent form home with all students to list all 
celebrations observed by students.  After obtained all dates got together 
and photographed the dolls to put together as a school calendar with all 
major holidays from each culture listed.  Costs covered by 
sponsors/donations.  Cost for 500 calendars = $1,600. 
 
Hamilton always did a Family Fun Night (late spring) with rides, arcade 
games, food.  In 2005 added an ethnic flair (sharing food, culture, clothing, 
books). 
 
Family Fun Night (May 19, 2006) – will not have ethnic section in one 
corner, but throughout the entire school.  Adding music, fashion show, 
dancing from around the world.  
 
Hamilton’s goal: eventually won’t need a separate cultural committee – 
instead all students, teachers and parents - the entire school will be 
responsible for spreading the message of diversity and cultural 
understanding. 
 
Committee also did seasonal greeting cards 10 pack = $10 using the  
students doll art. 
 
Cultural committee meets on monthly basis to find ways to promote “our 
differences unite us all” and “One culture – one school”. 
 
They are also working on the academic side – different students learn 
differently. 
 
Hamilton has a showcase in the school that they decorate for all holidays 
though out the year.  The teachers promote diversity programs in each 
individual classroom.  Example: Thanksgiving – international feast, 
diversity journal, March is leading month, Reading Olympics – choose a 
country, read books about it and had speakers on the country’s culture. 
 
Principal Pam Mathers, teachers and parents are all very proud of the 
cultural programs.  Of the 450 students at Hamilton, the cultural make-up 
is 22% Asian, 7% Middle Eastern, 1% Other.  They have 22 different 
languages spoken at Hamilton. 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES MAY 9, 2006  

 
Hamilton has a packaged program to help students with conflict resolution, 
peer mediation, and to celebrate differences.  Diversity training has been 
students and parents teaching one another about differences.  It is a 
comfortable environment in the school – hands on training.  Kids are not 
afraid to ask questions, ask why someone does something. 
 
Staff/Teachers have not been resistant to the diversity training.  They are 
very accepting.  They will be having a three-hour diversity training in Fall, 
2006. 
 
Over the past 3 years Hamilton has received a lot of grant money for 
programs (Troy Schools, Troy Foundation for Education Excellence, SOC 
Credit Union).  Just completed a grant from Target and just received an 
award for bullet proof Hamilton program from MI Assoc. of School Boards. 
Hamilton is one of 28 finalists that could receive future funding. 
 
Suggestion from Padma – look up the Southern Poverty Law Center – 
assists with teaching tolerance (Montgomery, AL). 
 
Question:  Have you seen anything like this @ other Troy schools?  No, 
but Schroeder has shown interest in what Hamilton Cultural Committee 
has done. 
 
Hamilton also has a MLK Assembly done by the students – readings, 
music, poetry.  And before the winter break – they have a Holiday sing 
with songs from all cultures, celebrations. 
 
M Sarma - If all schools had this diversity training the students would then 
feed into the middle schools and high schools accepting others 
differences. 
 

 
VI. Old Business 
   
 A. EthniCity 
 

CS – send EthniCity poster contest flyer to Tim McAvoy for 
approval.  Need copies for elementary schools. 
 
Book room for judges Wednesday, September 13 at the 
Community Center. 
 
Michelle will line up judges.  EIA members - email her names and 
numbers of possible ideas for judges. 
 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES MAY 9, 2006  

Malini will check numbers needed for participation ribbons: 
We need 3 first place ribbons, 3 second place ribbons and 3 third 
place ribbons. 
 
Ideas for Children’s Activities -  
 
Placemat – A world map kids would color and get stickers @ each 
booth to place on the map.  EIA Board would laminate maps. 
 
Michelle and Tony will check on supplies and laminating machine. 
 
Get price estimates on maps (1,000 quantity). 
 
CS -  Resend applications for booths in EthniCity tent then send 
contact info to the EIA Board to make contact.  Booth participant 
meeting is September 6 at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Ambassadors – Lulu and Helen will coordinate all student 
volunteers.  4 Students per shift 
 

B. Goals – Nothing new to report 
 

C. Senior Citizen Project – very worthwhile – low attendance but we 
will repeat the program.  Send thank you notes to Rabbi Starr, Jaya 
Doraiswamy, Mayada and Ann. 

 
 
Motion to Adjourn by Malini Sarma, seconded by Padma Kuppa.  Meeting 
adjourned at 9 pm. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD FINAL MINUTES MAY 9, 2006  

TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD 
TUESDAY, MAY 9, 2006 

TROY CITY HALL - CONFERENCE ROOM C 
 
 
I. Call to Order 7:05 p.m. 
 
II. Roll Call: 
 

Present: 
Padma Kuppa Kelly Gu, Student Rep 
Anju Brodbine Lulu Guo, Student Rep 
Tom Kaszubski Tony Haddad (late 7:50 p.m.) 
Michelle Haight Malini Sarma 
Helen Yang, Student Rep 
Cindy Stewart 
 
Absent: 
Reuben Ellis, Mark Pritzlaff 
 
Excuse absent members 
 

III. Approval of Minutes 
 

Moved by Padma Kuppa seconded by Michelle that the minutes of April 4, 
2006 be approved.  With correction match = March 
 
Introduction of new student representative, Helen Yang – 10th grade at 
Troy High – future problem solvers, SADD, club med (medical volunteers). 
Kelly’s last meeting is June, 2006. 
 

IV. Correspondence/Articles – 
 

Smith Middle School Celebrates Diversity – Troy Somerset Gazette 
Day of Prayer More Diverse This Year – Free Press 5/3/06 
Suburbs are the New American Melting Pot – Detroit News 4/20/06 
 

V. New Business 
 

Diversity Program – Pam Mathers, Hamilton Principal, Nadia Hak and 
Racha Massarani, parents on cultural committee. 450 students @ 
Hamilton. 
 
5 years ago – conversation to bully proof Hamilton – led to differences in 
culture, religion, etc.  and ultimately led to a cultural committee.  Originally 
there were 15-20 on committee, but now 10 regular members.  Goal was 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD FINAL MINUTES MAY 9, 2006  

to help each group understand the other groups.  Example holidays, 
traditions, etc. 
 
Committee met October, 2005 on how to teach children to understand 
their differences.  First project to celebrate their differences, they made 
paper dolls and sent them home to decorate as their culture then hung 
them around school.  This was tied in with academic night.  
 
Second Activity – Holidays:  sent form home with all students to list all 
celebrations observed by students.  After obtained all dates got together 
and photographed the dolls to put together as a school calendar with all 
major holidays from each culture listed.  Costs covered by 
sponsors/donations.  Cost for 500 calendars = $1,600. 
 
Hamilton always did a Family Fun Night (late spring) with rides, arcade 
games, food.  In 2005 added an ethnic flair (sharing food, culture, clothing, 
books). 
 
Family Fun Night (May 19, 2006) – will not have ethnic section in one 
corner, but throughout the entire school.  Adding music, fashion show, 
dancing from around the world.  
 
Hamilton’s goal: eventually won’t need a separate cultural committee – 
instead all students, teachers and parents - the entire school will be 
responsible for spreading the message of diversity and cultural 
understanding. 
 
Committee also did seasonal greeting cards 10 pack = $10 using the  
students doll art. 
 
Cultural committee meets on monthly basis to find ways to promote “our 
differences unite us all” and “One culture – one school”. 
 
They are also working on the academic side – different students learn 
differently. 
 
Hamilton has a showcase in the school that they decorate for all holidays 
though out the year.  The teachers promote diversity programs in each 
individual classroom.  Example: Thanksgiving – international feast, 
diversity journal, March is leading month, Reading Olympics – choose a 
country, read books about it and had speakers on the country’s culture. 
 
Principal Pam Mathers, teachers and parents are all very proud of the 
cultural programs.  Of the 450 students at Hamilton, the cultural make-up 
is 22% Asian, 7% Middle Eastern, 1% Other.  They have 22 different 
languages spoken at Hamilton. 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD FINAL MINUTES MAY 9, 2006  

 
Hamilton has a packaged program to help students with conflict resolution, 
peer mediation, and to celebrate differences.  Diversity training has been 
students and parents teaching one another about differences.  It is a 
comfortable environment in the school – hands on training.  Kids are not 
afraid to ask questions, ask why someone does something. 
 
Staff/Teachers have not been resistant to the diversity training.  They are 
very accepting.  They will be having a three-hour diversity training in Fall, 
2006. 
 
Over the past 3 years Hamilton has received a lot of grant money for 
programs (Troy Schools, Troy Foundation for Education Excellence, SOC 
Credit Union).  Just completed a grant from Target and just received an 
award for bullet proof Hamilton program from MI Assoc. of School Boards. 
Hamilton is one of 28 finalists that could receive future funding. 
 
Suggestion from Padma – look up the Southern Poverty Law Center – 
assists with teaching tolerance (Montgomery, AL). 
 
Question:  Have you seen anything like this @ other Troy schools?  No, 
but Schroeder has shown interest in what Hamilton Cultural Committee 
has done. 
 
Hamilton also has a MLK Assembly done by the students – readings, 
music, poetry.  And before the winter break – they have a Holiday sing 
with songs from all cultures, celebrations. 
 
M Sarma - If all schools had this diversity training the students would then 
feed into the middle schools and high schools accepting others 
differences. 
 

 
VI. Old Business 
   
 A. EthniCity 
 

CS – send EthniCity poster contest flyer to Tim McAvoy for 
approval.  Need copies for elementary schools. 
 
Book room for judges Wednesday, September 13 at the 
Community Center. 
 
Michelle will line up judges.  EIA members - email her names and 
numbers of possible ideas for judges. 
 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD FINAL MINUTES MAY 9, 2006  

Malini will check numbers needed for participation ribbons: 
We need 3 first place ribbons, 3 second place ribbons and 3 third 
place ribbons. 
 
Ideas for Children’s Activities -  
 
Placemat – A world map kids would color and get stickers @ each 
booth to place on the map.  EIA Board would laminate maps. 
 
Michelle and Tony will check on supplies and laminating machine. 
 
Get price estimates on maps (1,000 quantity). 
 
CS -  Resend applications for booths in EthniCity tent then send 
contact info to the EIA Board to make contact.  Booth participant 
meeting is September 6 at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Ambassadors – Lulu and Helen will coordinate all student 
volunteers.  4 Students per shift 
 

B. Goals – Nothing new to report 
 

C. Senior Citizen Project – very worthwhile – low attendance but we 
will repeat the program.  Send thank you notes to Rabbi Starr, Jaya 
Doraiswamy, Mayada and Ann. 

 
 
Motion to Adjourn by Malini Sarma, seconded by Padma Kuppa.  Meeting 
adjourned at 9 pm. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES - DRAFT MAY 11, 2006 
 

 1 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held on Thursday April 13, 2006 at the 
Office of the Library Director.  Audre Zembrzuski, Vice-Chairman, called the meeting to 
order at 7:30 P.M.   
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Heather Eisenbacher 
   Lynne Gregory 
   Nancy Weeler 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
 

   Lauren Andreoff, Student Representative 
 

   Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
 
Resolution #LB-2006-5-01 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
RESOLVED, That Kul Gauri andStudent Representative Cheng Chen be excused. 
 
Yes: 4—Eisenbacher, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
Resolution #LB-2006-5-02 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, That Minutes of April 13, 2006 be approved. 
 
Yes: 4—Eisenbacher, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
Reviewed Agenda entries 
 
Resolution #LB-2006-5-03 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Gregory 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agenda be approved. 
 
Yes: 4—Eisenbacher, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES - DRAFT MAY 11, 2006 
 

 2 

POSTPONED ITEMS 
There were no postponed items. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS. 
The Board members decided to postpone the election of officers until the June meeting. 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report 
• The owners of Steamers, the library café, have complied with the City’s insurance 

requirements.   
• It appears as if there were no cuts to the Library Budget for next fiscal year.  It 

appears as if we will be able to renovate two or three bathrooms as our capital 
project.   

• A number of additional electrical outlets have been added to the study areas in the 
Adult Services department to facilitate the public’s use of laptops and our wireless 
Internet connection.   

• The Annual Volunteer Appreciation Day was a nice affair with a professional 
storyteller at the program.   

• The Annual Public Library Trustee Association of Oakland County Spring Dinner will 
feature L. Brooks Patterson speaking on the Wireless Oakland Project.   

 
Board Member’s Comments 
Zembrzuski stated that the café owner’s children who run the café in the evenings argue 
with each other.  She also said that this does not create a positive atmosphere for 
conducting business.  Also the bagels have been stale.  
 
Student Representative’s Comments 
There were no comments. 
 
Suburban Library Cooperative. 
The review of the investment policy was tabled until the next meeting.  Eight computers 
were replaced according to the replacement schedule.  SLC is searching for about 
4,000 square feet of space.  They will not be renewing their contract with the Macomb 
County Library for operating space.   
 
Friends of the Troy Public Library. 
The Annual Meeting will be held on May 22, 2006.  Thomas Lynch, one of this year’s 
Michigan Notable Authors, will discuss his newest book:  Booking Passage : We Irish 
and Americans. 

 
Gifts. 
One gift of $50.00 was received. 
 
Informational Items. 
May TPL calendar 
 
 



LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES - DRAFT MAY 11, 2006 
 

 3 

Contacts and Correspondence.    
29 written comments from the public were reviewed. 
 
Public Participation.   
There was no public participation. 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 7:55 P.M. 
 

 
 
 
 
Audre Zembrzuski 
Vice-Chair 
 
 
 
Brian Stoutenburg 
Recording Secretary 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 16, 2006 

The Chairman, Christopher Fejes, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M. on Tuesday, May 16, 2006 in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Kenneth Courtney 
   Christopher Fejes 
   Michael Hutson 
   Matthew Kovacs  
   Mark Maxwell 
 
ABSENT:  Marcia Gies 
   Lawrence Littman 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Hutson 
 
MOVED, to excuse Ms. Gies from tonight’s meeting as she is out of town and Mr. 
Littman due to illness. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MS. GIES AND MR. LITTMAN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF APRIL 18, 2006 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Hutson 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of April 18, 2006 amended showing the 
No vote on Item #11 to be Courtney instead of Gies. 
 
Yeas:  All - 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS AMENDED CARRIED 
 
Mr. Fejes informed the people in the audience that due to the fact that we did not have a 
full Board, at the time their request was called, they had the option to request 
postponing their item to allow them the opportunity of a full Board. 
 
Mr. Fejes indicated that Item #7 and Item #12 would be taken out of order, as the Board 
had received a written request asking that these requests be postponed until a later 
date. 
 
 
 
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 16, 2006 

ITEM #7 - INTERPRETATION REQUEST.  SIDNEY FRANK, REPRESENTING 
GABECARE DIRECT RX, 1179 MAPLELAWN, for an interpretation that a doctor’s 
office is an accessory use permitted in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning district per 
Section 28.25.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting an interpretation that a doctor’s office 
is an accessory use permitted in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District per Section 
28.25.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance.  The petitioner operates a prescription drug  
distribution facility in the M-1 Zoning District.  This use complies with the principal permitted 
uses per Section 28.20.09 of the Zoning Ordinance.  For some of the activities that the 
business does, the services of a licensed physician are required.  The physician that 
provides these services has opened an office on site providing family practice services to 
patients.  Some of these patients (approximately 35% per discussions with the petitioner) 
have no connection to the prescription drug distribution business.  This activity has been 
determined to not be included within the permitted uses of the M-1 District.  The petitioners 
are asking for an interpretation that this use is permitted per the provisions of Section 
28.25.01. 
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of April 18, 2006 and was 
postponed at the request of the petitioner, to allow the petitioner to explore the 
possibility of finding a location that will comply with the Ordinance. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Maxwell 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Sidney Frank, representing Gabecare Direct RX, 
1179 Maplelawn, for an interpretation that a doctor’s office is an accessory use 
permitted in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District per Section 28.25.01 of the Troy 
Zoning Ordinance until the meeting of June 20, 2006. 
 

• Postponed per the request of the petitioner. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell, Courtney, Fejes 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2006 
CARRIED 
 
ITEM #12 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  ANDRAOS KATTOUAH, 3410 ROCHESTER 
ROAD (proposed address), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new gas station 
at the intersection of Charrington and Rochester Road that will result in a 30’ setback to 
the abutting property.  This property is in the R-1C (One-Family Residential) Zoning 
District and Section 31.30.00 requires a 75’ setback from any property line that abuts a 
residentially zoned district. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new gas station building at the northeast corner of the intersection of Charrington and 
Rochester Road.  Paragraph G of Section 31.30.00 requires a 75’ setback from any  

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 16, 2006 

ITEM #12 – con’t. 
 
property line that abuts a residentially zoned district.  The property to the east (rear) of 
this site is in the R-1C (One-Family Residential) Zoning District.  The site plan submitted 
indicates a setback of 30’ to this property line. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Maxwell 
 
Moved, to postpone the request of Andraos Kattouah, 3410 Rochester (proposed 
address), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new gas station at the intersection of 
Charrington and Rochester Road that will result in a 30’ setback to the abutting property 
until the meeting of June 20, 2006.  This property is in the R-1C (One-Family 
Residential) Zoning District and Section 31.30.00 requires a 75’ setback from any 
property line that abuts a residentially zoned district. 
 

• Postponed at the request of the petitioner. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell, Courtney, Fejes 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL JUNE 20, 2006 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – APPROVAL OF ITEMS #3 THROUGH ITEM #6 
 
RESOLVED, that Items #3 through #6 are hereby approved in accordance with the 
suggested resolutions printed in the Agenda Explanation. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Maxwell 
 
Yeas:  5 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Courtney, Fejes, Hutson 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE RENEWALS CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  MARY MCCLEAN, LIBERTY PROPERTY 
TRUST, 2600 & 2710 BELLINGHAM, for relief of the Ordinance to maintain a 6’ high 
berm in lieu of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief to maintain a 6’ high berm in 
lieu of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required.  This Board has granted this relief 
since May 2000.  This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of May 2003 
and was granted a three-year (3) renewal at that time.  Conditions remain the same and 
we have no objections or complaints on file. 
 
 
 

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 16, 2006 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Mary McClean, Liberty Property Trust, 2600 & 2710 Bellingham a 
three-year (3) renewal of relief to maintain a 6’ high berm in lieu of the 6’ high masonry-
screening wall. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• We have no complaints or objections on file. 
 

ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  SAN MARINO SOCIAL CLUB, 1685 E. BIG 
BEAVER, for relief of the Ordinance of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required 
adjacent to the residential zoned district to the north. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the 6’ high masonry-
screening wall required adjacent to the residential zoned district to the north.  This relief 
has been granted on a yearly basis since 1976, primarily due to the fact that the 
adjacent residential property is undeveloped and owned by the petitioner.  This item last 
appeared before this Board at the meeting of May 2003 and was granted a three-year 
(3) renewal at that time. 
 
MOVED, to grant San Marino Social Club, 1685 E. Big Beaver, a three-year (3) renewal 
of relief of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required on the property that is adjacent 
to the residential zoned district to the north. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• We have no complaints or objections on file. 

 
ITEM #5 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  BIG BEAVER UNITED METHODIST CHURCH, 
3753 JOHN R., for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry wall required along the north, east 
and west sides of off-street parking. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief of a 4’-6” high 
masonry wall required along the north, east and west sides of off-street parking.  This 
Board has granted this relief on a yearly basis since 1994 based on the fact that the 
wooded areas provide a natural screening and a variance would not cause an adverse 
effect to the properties in the immediate vicinity.  This item last appeared before this 
Board at the meeting of May 2000 and was granted a three-year (3) renewal at that 
time.  Conditions remain the same and we have no complaints or objections on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant Big Beaver United Methodist Church, 3753 John R., a three-year (3) 
renewal of relief of the 4’-6” high masonry wall required along the north, east and west 
sides of off-street parking. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 16, 2006 

ITEM #6 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  ST. ANASTASIA CHURCH, 4571 JOHN R., for 
relief to maintain a berm in lieu of the 4’-6” high obscuring wall between the parking lot 
and adjacent residential property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of a three (3) year 
variance granted by this Board to maintain a berm in lieu of the 4’-6” high obscuring wall 
between the parking lot and adjacent residential property.  This item last appeared 
before this Board at the meeting of September 2002 and was granted a three (3) year 
variance at that time.  Conditions remain the same and we have no complaints or 
objections on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant St. Anastasia Church, 4571 John R. a three –year (3) renewal of relief 
to maintain a berm in lieu of the 4’-6” high obscuring wall between the parking lot and 
adjacent residential property.  
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
ITEM #8 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MR. & MRS. WILLIAM NICHOLS, 1080 
MINNESOTA, to maintain a shed, constructed without first obtaining the necessary 
Building Permit, in the front yard setback along Wisconsin. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to maintain 
a shed constructed in the front yard setback along Wisconsin.  This lot is a double front 
corner lot.  As such, it has a front yard setback along both Minnesota and Wisconsin.  
The site plan submitted indicates that a shed has been constructed without first 
obtaining the necessary Building Permit in the required front yard setback, 8 feet  
from the property line along Wisconsin.  Section 40.56.03 of the Ordinance prohibits the 
placement of an accessory building in a front yard.      
 
This request last appeared before this Board at the meeting of April 18, 2006 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner the opportunity to obtain a lot split. 
 
Mr. Nichols was present and recapped what was presented to the Board at the previous 
meetings.  Mr. Nichols again stated that the existing trees have a great deal of 
sentimental value to him and if has to relocate the shed, he would have to remove these 
trees.  Mr. Nichols also apologized for not obtaining a permit before putting up the shed, 
but said that he would have come before this Board and asked for a variance anyway.  
This is the best location for the shed and they need the extra storage space.  Eventually 
they will build a house at the other end of their lot that will have a basement, but he said 
it probably won’t happen for about six (6) years. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if there was vegetation between the shed and the lot line.  Mr. Nichols 
said that there is a 6’ high privacy fence and trees on the other side of the fence. 
 
 

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 16, 2006 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
Mr. Nichols submitted a petition with twelve (12) signatures indicating approval of the 
location of this shed.  There are also two (2) written approvals on file.  There are no 
written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to grant Mr. & Mrs. William Nichols, 1080 Minnesota, relief of the Zoning 
Ordinance to main a shed in the front yard setback along Wisconsin where Section 
40.56.02 requires a rear yard location. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance does not establish a prohibited use in a Zoning District. 
• Double front corner lot creates a hardship. 
• Lacking a variance, conformance to the Ordinance is unnecessarily burdensome. 
• Without a variance significant natural features would be affected. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Maxwell, Courtney, Fejes, Hutson, Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #9 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MR. & MRS. ROSS REYNOLDS, 364 HICKORY, 
for relief of the Ordinance to split an existing parcel of property that will result in two lots 
that will not meet either the minimum lot width or minimum area requirements. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioners are requesting relief of the Ordinance to split 
an existing parcel of property that will result in two lots that will not meet either minimum 
lot width or minimum area requirements.  The resultant lots will be 49.4’ and 50’ wide 
where Section 30.10.06 requires a lot width of at least 60’, and only 6,455 square feet 
and 6,500 square feet where a minimum of 7,500 square feet is required. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked for additional information on the original lots.  Mr. Stimac explained the 
dimensions of the original lots and also informed the Board that a similar request had 
appeared before the Board of Zoning Appeals in 1991 to split one large lot into three 
smaller lots.  That request was denied and the property owner sold off part of the 
original parcel as a conforming lot.  The petitioner is now asking to split the remaining 
parcel into two smaller lots.  It is Mr. Stimac’s opinion that that there is enough of a 
difference in this request to bring it back to the Board, as this request is asking for a 
greater variance than the original request.  The Ordinance does not dictate which way 
the difference has to be, there just has to be a significant change to bring it back to the 
Board. 

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 16, 2006 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
A discussion began regarding how it is determined that an item be heard before the 
Board a second time and Ms. Lancaster stated that it is up to Mr. Stimac to determine 
that the circumstances have changed enough not just in the request, but perhaps a 
change in the circumstances, to bring it back to the Board. 
 
Mr. Reynolds was present and stated that he was unaware of the lot split at the time he 
purchased this property. Mr. Reynolds said that Mr. Stimac had explained that to him, 
but he chose to have his request brought to the Board anyway. They have a 
handicapped daughter and would like to be able to build a home that is handicap 
accessible.  Caitlin who will be 15 in June, attends a special school in the area and will 
until she reaches the age of 25.  They have looked at other homes in the Troy area but 
have not found any that would fit the special needs that they have plus it would remove 
them from the existing neighbors who help them take care of her.  The Reynolds’ 
present house is 1200 square feet. Mr. Reynolds brought in one (1) letter indicating 
approval of this request.  Mr. Reynolds also provided the Board with a site map 
indicating the number of homes in the area that did not conform to the lot width or area 
and feels that these lots would conform to other lots in the area.  Mr. Reynolds also said 
that they do not plan to split the lot and sell it, but to split the lot and build another home 
on the lot. 
 
Mr. Fejes clarified that Mr. Reynolds was not the original petitioner in 1991.  Mr. Fejes 
also asked what Mr. Reynolds plans were regarding the existing house.  Mr. Reynolds 
said that he thought they would sell it, although his 80 year old mother lives in the upper 
peninsula and he does not believe she will stay up there much longer.  Mr. Fejes asked 
about the square footage of the present home and asked what the square footage 
would be for the new home.  Mr. Reynolds said that their existing home is 1200 square 
feet and the new home would probably be about 2000 square feet with a basement.  Mr. 
Reynolds said that the home directly across the street from him is on a 53’ wide lot and 
is about 2500 square feet and fits very nicely. 
 
Mr. Fejes stated that there are six (6) written objections on file. There is one written 
approval on file. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if they could make modifications to their existing home to make it 
handicap accessible.  Mr. Reynolds said that they have done all they could and the 
house is not large enough.  Mr. Courtney stated that the decision of the Board could not 
be made on a person with a handicap, but it has to be based on a hardship with the 
land and he did not see a hardship running with the land. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked if he could just build a larger home on the existing lot.  Mr. Reynolds 
said in his opinion he would be better off to sell and move, although he would lose the 
neighbors that help him with his daughter.  Mr. Fejes said that a variance would not be 
required if Mr. Reynolds chose this option. 
 

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 16, 2006 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if Mr. Reynolds understood that this Board did not have the power to 
rule on a variance based on the condition of the people living in the home.  Mr. 
Reynolds said that he did understand that as Mr. Stimac had explained it to him but he 
thought that some thought would be given to personal circumstances.  Mr. Reynolds 
further stated that these lots would not cause an adverse effect to surrounding property.  
Mr. Reynolds also stated that he had polled the neighbors and did not receive a lot of 
negativism from anyone he talked to. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that in 1991 a previous Board denied a request for a lot split and he 
cannot see any justification to over turn that decision.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Bill VanHorne, 384 Hickory was present and stated that he owns the property just 
east of this parcel.  Mr. VanHorne said that he is opposed to this request as it is a very 
large variance request.  Mr. Van Horne also stated that  the Reynolds are great 
neighbors and believes there are other options available to them.  Mr. Van Horne said 
that he would not look forward to seeing another house on this lot and said that it will 
have a negative impact on his property value and also will not be aesthetically pleasing 
to the neighborhood.  Mr. VanHorne said that the petitioner had other options available 
to build the type of home he wanted without a variance.  Granting this variance would 
create two non-conforming lots. 
 
Laura Johsan, 363 Cherry was present and stated that she lives directly behind this 
parcel.  Her main concern is that Mr. Reynolds will sell the lot to a developer and she 
would rather not see a large home come in there.  Ms. Johsan said that they are very 
good neighbors and hopes something can be worked out.  Mr. Fejes asked if she was 
objecting to this request and Ms. Johsan said that she was approving the request and 
hoped that something could be worked out to the benefit of everyone involved. 
 
Mr. Marvin Prine, 383 Hickory was present and stated that he had moved into this area 
in 1991 from Madison Heights and 40’ lots.  Mr. Prine objects to this request and 
believes it will create a precedent for other people to split their property into non-
conforming lots.  Mr. Prine loves the neighbors and baby-sits for Caitlin but does not 
believe this lot split would have a positive effect to the surrounding property. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he is against this request because Council passed an Ordinance 
to stop the spread of 40’ lots.  Existing lots were grandfathered in, but new 40’ lots 
should not be created. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Hutson 

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 16, 2006 

 
ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
MOVED,  to deny the request of Mr. & Mrs. Ross Reynolds, 364 Hickory, for relief of the 
Ordinance to split an existing parcel of property into two lots that will not meet the 
minimum lot width or lot area requirements of Section 30.10.06. 
 

• Petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship with the land. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Maxwell, Courtney, Fejes, Hutson, Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST CARRIED 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that he voted against this item because the variance request is too 
large. 
 
Mr. Hutson stated that he voted against this request because he feels that granting the 
variance would be going against the intent of the Ordinance, and although sympathetic 
with the Reynolds, he cannot approve this request. 
 
ITEM #10 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MR. VLADIMIR RRUSHI, 27 STARR 
(PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a single-family home 
on an existing 50’ wide parcel where Section 30.10.06 requires a 60’ minimum lot width. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a single-family residence.  The site plan submitted indicates building the home on an 
existing 50’ wide parcel where Section 30.10.06 requires a 60’ minimum lot width.  Mr. 
Stimac further explained that in 1956 the same person owned three of the lots in this 
parcel.  In 1957 Mr. Carpenter, the original owner, sold off a piece of this parcel and 
since then this parcel has changed hands many times.  Mr. Stimac explained that 
Section 40.50.02 states that If two or more lots or combinations of lots and portions of 
lots with continuous frontage in single ownership are of record at the time of passage or 
amendment of this chapter, and if all or part of the lots do not meet the requirements for 
lot width and area as established by this chapter, the lands involved shall be considered 
to be an undivided parcel for the purposes of this chapter, and no portion of said parcel 
shall be used or occupied which does not meet lot width and area requirements 
established by this chapter, nor shall any division of the parcel be made which leaves 
remaining any lot with width or area below the requirements stated in this chapter.  
Technically the sale of this parcel in 1957 was an action that created a non-conforming 
lot and was an illegal action. The City cannot control the buying and selling of a piece of 
property, but the City can control what can be built on a parcel and this is a non-
conforming parcel. 
 
 
 
 

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 16, 2006 

 
ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
The Real Estate Agent for Mr. Rrushi was present and said that Mr. Rrushi wants to 
build a new house.  Mr. Courtney clarified that Mr. Rrushi has not purchased the 
property at this time and Mr. Rrushi’s Agent informed the Board that a purchase 
agreement was ready with the stipulation that this purchase would take place only if the 
variance was granted.  The Agent also said that he looked at a number of other homes 
in the area that were just recently constructed on non-conforming lots. 
 
Mr. Fejes said that each petition stands on its own merit and Mr. Rrushi’s agent said 
that he understood that.  The building of this home will not have an adverse effect to the 
surrounding property.  Mr. Fejes asked what the hardship was that would justify a 
variance.  The agent replied that this home would be close to the schools Mr. Rrushi’s 
children attend and would be an asset to the area. 
 
Mr. Courtney pointed out that the practical difficulty is not that the client could buy the 
property at a good price and he does not see a hardship that runs with the land. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the handouts being given out at the meeting indicating houses 
that are for sale are not correct.  He does not believe that the size of the parcels shown 
on these ads is correct. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked if Mr. Stimac knew what type of home would be built on this parcel.  Mr. 
Stimac said that complete plans have not been submitted, but on a 50’ wide parcel of 
land the buildable width would be 35’. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Ms.  Michaeline Whittaker, the owner of the property was present and stated that she 
inherited this property from her fiancée who passed away in 2004.  They have been 
paying taxes on this property since 1964 and does not know what she will do with the 
property if a variance is not granted.  Somehow down the line the property was sold 
illegally but she is not sure what she can do now. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if her fiancée was aware of the Ordinances at the time he purchased 
the property.  If he had bought the property before the Ordinance was passed, Mr. 
Kovacs thought she would have a pretty good case, but this property was purchased in 
1969, which was long after the Ordinance was put into effect and it is up to the seller to 
be aware of what he can or can’t do with the property.  Mr. Kovacs also said that he 
though Ms. Whittaker had a decent lawsuit on her hands. 
 
Mr. Fejes said that there is no hardship with the land and although Ms. Whittaker wants 
to sell this property, she can’t because it is not a conforming parcel. 
 
 

 10



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 16, 2006 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
Ms. Whittaker asked if she was supposed to keep paying taxes on an illegal piece of 
property and Mr. Fejes said that unfortunately she was.  Ms. Whittaker asked where she 
could go to fight this. 
 
Ms. Lancaster stated that the City of Troy did not make this parcel illegal, and if you own 
property in Troy you have to pay taxes.  Ms. Lancaster also suggested that Ms. 
Whittaker consult an attorney or a real estate agent to see what can be done with this 
parcel.   
 
Mr. Royce Miller, 35 Starr was present and stated that he lives next door to this parcel.  
Mr. Miller said he is opposed to this request as the new home would be built right on top 
of his home.  Mr. Courtney asked how close his home was to the lot line and Mr. Miller 
said that it was about 5’ or 6’.  Mr. Miller also said that when she first inherited this lot, 
he told her he would be interested in purchasing this parcel but Ms. Whittaker never got 
back to him. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are four (4) written objections of file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Fejes said that there is no practical difficulty with the property that would justify 
granting a variance. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Hutson 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Mr. Vladimir Rrushi, 27 Starr (proposed address) for 
relief of the Ordinance to construct a single-family home on an existing 50’ wide parcel 
where Section 30.10.06 requires a 60’ minimum lot width. 
 

• Petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship that runs with the land. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Courtney, Fejes, Hutson, Kovacs 
Nays:  1 - Maxwell 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST CARRIED 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that he thought the petitioner was in a very difficult situation and 
suggested that they approach the surrounding neighbors to either purchase an 
additional 10’ or sell the parcel to the surrounding neighbors. 
 
Ms. Whittaker said that she had talked to the surrounding neighbors and no one was 
interested in purchasing this property. 
 

 11



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 16, 2006 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that without a variance there is nothing that can be done with this 
piece of property and this is the reason he voted no to deny the request. 
 
ITEM #11 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MR. JEFF DUNCAN, 6730 WESTAWAY, for relief 
of the ordinance to construct an addition that will result in a 29’ front setback and a 32’ 
front setback to the covered porch.  Section 30.10.02 requires a 40’ minimum front yard 
setback in R-1B Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
an addition to his home.  The plot plan submitted indicates a 29’ front setback to the 
proposed addition and a 32’ front setback to the covered porch.  Section 30.10.02 
requires a 40’ minimum front yard setback in R-1B Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Duncan was present and stated that the wall closest to the fence has a flat roof and 
wants to raise that wall 8’ to put an additional 6’ on that side of the house.  He realizes 
that it has to be fire rated.  Mr. Duncan further stated that there is an existing porch and 
they are trying to create a nicer looking, cottage type of house.  They would like to tie 
the addition together so that the house does not look like it has been added onto three 
or four times.  In addition, the office in the front is the only place that they can make it 
work.  If they tried to put it at the back of the house, they would lose an egress window 
and would have a problem with the setback to the garage.  They cannot go to either 
side of the house, as the fence is on one side and the driveway is on the other side. 
 
Mr. Duncan said that he does a lot of work from home and he would be like to be able to 
add this office so he can keep everything in one place.  Mr. Fejes asked how long they 
have lived there and Mr. Duncan said that they purchased this home in 1996.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked if all they were adding to the home was the 12’ x 12’ room.  Mr. 
Duncan said they are actually adding more room, but the other plans conform to the 
Ordinance.  Basically they are taking a three-bedroom home and actually plan to build 
an upstairs with two bedrooms and a bathroom for his daughters.  They plan to convert 
the downstairs to one larger bedroom. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked how large this home was.  Mr. Duncan stated that the current home 
is just under 2000 square feet and with the addition it will be right around 2800 square 
feet. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked how this home ended up with a 1’ setback to the property line. Mr. 
Stimac said that he had researched Building Department records, but was unable to find 
any permits that indicated the addition would be 1’ from the existing property line.  Mr. 
Kovacs then asked how old this home was and Mr. Stimac said that the original home 
was constructed in approximately 1922. 
 
 

 12



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 16, 2006 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Duncan said that financially it would be cheaper for them to tear the home down and 
build a new home, but the rest of the house not under the flat room has had 
considerable renovation done to it and has been done to a 1920’s look.  A lot of very 
nice quality work has been done on the interior that they would like to keep. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked about the non-conformity of the structure.  Mr. Stimac stated that 
technically the expansion is the raising of the northern wall, which would not add to the 
square foot area of the structure but would be adding to the volume of the structure 
because they are increasing the height. 
 
Mr. Hutson said that there are no objections on file.  Mr. Hutson also said that he does 
not have a problem with the non-conformity and he feels that this is a very reasonable 
request. 
 
Mr. Fejes opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Dean Cox of 425 Lovell was present and stated that he approves of this request.  
Mr. Cox stated that what Mr. Duncan is proposing will be an asset to the neighborhood.  
This is a very old home and has had several additions put on to it and Mr. Duncan’s 
proposal will make it look like something that belongs in this area. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if there was any way the Board could protect the neighbors and make 
sure that this home was remodeled as depicted in the pictures presented to the Board.  
Mr. Kovacs said that the proposed alteration looks beautiful.  Mr. Duncan said that he 
did not have final drawings as he was waiting to see if he could get the variance. 
 
Ms. Lancaster said that you can put conditions on the variance but you would have to 
look at how these conditions would be enforced.   Ms. Lancaster further stated that she 
did not know how you would be able to hold the petitioner to this plan. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that in other cases specific plans have been submitted and the variance 
has been granted based on those plans.  Sufficient plans have not been submitted in 
this case to place such a condition on this variance.  The dimensions of the alteration 
have been advertised and those would have to be adhered to. 
 
Motion by Hutson 
Supported by Maxwell 
 
 
 
 
 

 13



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 16, 2006 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant the request of Mr. Jeff Duncan, 6730 Westaway, for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct an addition that will result in a 29’ front setback to the front wall 
of the home and a 32’ front setback to an expanded covered porch where Section 
30.10.02 requires a 40’ minimum front yard setback.  Also, to extend an existing wall of 
the home that has a non-conforming side yard setback. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance does not permit a prohibited use in a Zoning District. 
• Conformance to the Ordinance is unnecessarily burdensome. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Courtney, Fejes, Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #13 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  GARY ABITHEIRA, 3367 ELLENBORO, for relief 
of the Ordinance to split an existing parcel of land that will result in two lots each with a 
lot area of 7320 square feet where Section 30.10.06 of the Zoning Ordinance requires 
7500 square feet of lot area in the R-1E Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to split an 
existing parcel of land, which will result in two lots each with a lot area of 7320 square 
feet.  Section 30.10.06 of the Zoning Ordinance requires 7500 square feet lot area in 
the R-1E Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Abitheira was present and stated that he is a developer in the area and would like to 
be able to put two affordable houses on this property.  Mr. Abitheira said that this will be 
an asset to the area and although these lots will not meet the lot area, all the other 
setbacks will be met.  Mr. Abitheira further stated that in order to meet the lot area he 
would have to purchase property from the three (3) homes behind this property.  There 
is no other way to get the extra property needed. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the petitioner could just get property from one of the lots behind this 
home rather than all three.  Mr. Stimac explained that technically the Ordinance does 
not differentiate where the extra property comes from.  Mr. Kovacs stated that he did not 
see a hardship with this request as he felt that Mr. Abitheira had the option to approach 
the neighbors to see if he could obtain the extra property required. 
 
Mr. Abitheira asked if he would have the option to come back to the Board if this request 
was denied today and he was unable to purchase any extra property from the 
surrounding neighbors.  Mr. Maxwell said that if this request was denied Mr. Abitheira 
would not be able to come back to the Board.  Mr. Courtney suggested that the 
petitioner ask to withdraw this request and then could fill out a new application and  
 

 14



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 16, 2006 

ITEM #13 – con’t. 
 
come back to the Board at a later date.  Mr. Abitheira said that he is not the property 
owner, and thought that she should be the one to ask that this request be withdrawn. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Beth Saffar, one of the owners of 3367 Ellenboro was present.  Ms. Saffar said that she 
did not quite understand what the Board was proposing and asked if she could go to the 
neighbors adjacent to this property.  Ms. Saffar said that she understand that there was 
not a hardship but thought the City would want all the benefits and tax dollars from two 
homes rather than one.  Mr. Fejes said that she could try to obtain the extra property 
from the neighbors and they would have to prove a hardship with the land.  
 
Mr. Courtney said that the owner could ask to have her application withdrawn.  Mr. 
Fejes asked what the owner would like to do and Ms. Saffar said that it sounds like they 
should withdraw the application. 
 
Mr. Abitheira said that at this time he would like to withdraw this request in order for 
them to contact the surrounding neighbors to see if they would be able to obtain the 
extra square footage of land they need. 
 
The Chairman closed the Public Hearing. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
A discussion ensued regarding whether or not the Board should vote to accept this 
withdrawal request.  Ms. Lancaster said that once an item is withdrawn the Board 
requires no further action as they no longer have anything to vote on.  If a vote was 
taken and it failed, the Board would be forcing the petitioner to take an action they did 
not wish to take.  The Board can accept the withdrawal, but cannot vote on this action. 
 
The petitioner has withdrawn item #13.  No further action taken by the Board.  
 
ITEM #14 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  BRIAN SHARRAK, 6969 ROCHESTER 
(proposed address), for relief of the ordinance to construct a new gas station at the 
intersection of Rochester Road and South Boulevard.  Section 30.20.07 requires a 30’ 
rear yard setback.  The site plan submitted indicates that the building would be 
constructed right up to the west property line.  This Section also requires a 20’ side yard 
and the building is proposed to be right up to the south property line. 
 
Section 40.40.00 requires that loading spaces be a minimum dimension of 10’ x 50’ or 
500 square feet.  The petitioner is proposing loading spaces that are 10’ x 20’ or 200 
square feet. 
 
 

 15



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 16, 2006 

ITEM #14 – con’t. 
 
Section 39.70.04 requires a minimum of 1,953 square feet of landscaping in addition to 
a 10’ greenbelt along the road frontage for a site this size. The site plan indicates only 
about 240 square feet of landscaping. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new gas station at the southwest corner of the intersection of South Boulevard and 
Rochester Road.  Section 30.20.07 requires a 30’ rear yard setback.  The site plan 
submitted indicates that the building would be constructed right up to the west property 
line.  This Section also requires a 20’ side yard.  The building is proposed to be right up 
to the south property line. 
 
Section 40.40.00 requires that loading spaces be a minimum dimension of 10’ x 50’ or 
500 square feet.  The loading space is shown with a dimension of 10’ x 20’ or 200 
square feet. 
 
Section 39.70.04 requires a minimum of 1,953 square feet of landscaping in addition to 
a 10’ greenbelt along the road for a site this size.  The site plan submitted shows only 
about 240 square feet. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the current building was in compliance and Mr. Stimac said that 
he thinks it is too far south and west.   
 
Mr. William Quinlan, the Architect for this project and Mr. Brian Sharrak, the owner of 
the property, were present.  Mr. Quinlan stated that the hardship is the size and shape 
of this lot.  They plan to demo the small office and build a new service center.  The 
pumps and canopies will stay in the same location.  Most people today come to a gas 
station not only for gas, but also are looking for the convenience of a food store.  This is 
not a self-created hardship, the existing gas station has been there for years.  Mr. 
Quinlan said that they were hired to be determine how to put a convenience store at this 
corner.  They tried to find a way not to violate any of the Zoning Ordinances, but were 
unable to.  Mr. Sharrak likes the look of Salvaggio’s and would like to improve this 
corner so that it will blend with the area.  They are asking for a continuation of this use 
and it is important to them to make this area look good as it is the entrance to the City. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he did not think most people stopping for gas were looking for a 
service center.  Mr. Courtney asked if there were any statistics on this.  Mr. Quinlan 
stated that he was not in this business but the clients that have remodeled gas stations 
have all said that a service center is a must. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked about the dimensions of the loading and unloading zone.  Mr. 
Quinlan said that is to address the requirements of the Ordinance, and they use it to 
load and unload pop and items similar to this.  Mr. Quinlan said that they planned this 
site to meet Mr. Sharrak’s needs and they have determined that he will not require a 
large loading or unloading zone. 

 16



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 16, 2006 

ITEM #14 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Hutson said that he did not see a hardship with the location of the pumps.  In his 
opinion they are increasing the size of the building to sell more items and he thinks they 
are trying to overuse the existing site.  Mr. Quinlan said that the hardship is the size and 
the shape of the property and the existing building does not meet the setbacks.  Mr. 
Hutson said that he was concerned because they want a 0’ setback to the property line.  
Mr. Quinlan said that there only other option would be to leave the site as it is. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked how large the current building is and Mr. Quinlan said it was 16’ x 23’. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that this space was not all for the use of the customers.  Mr. Quinlan 
said that it was used for the office for the person that was managing the facility. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if there was a reduction in size of this location due to the expansion 
of Rochester and South Boulevard.  Mr. Stimac said that the gas station was built in the 
mid 1960’s or early 1970’s.  Mr. Stimac also said that he believes Rochester Road and 
South Boulevard have both been expanded.  This parcel is an acreage parcel and not 
part of a subdivision so he does not believe there was any type of dedication of right of 
way for either of those roads at the time the land was created.  When the rights of way 
were expanded the owner was compensated for any property that the City may have 
acquired. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written objections on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Fejes said that he was not happy about losing the landscaping in this area, and he 
also believes that they are over building the corner lot.  Mr. Courtney said that he 
agrees with the loss of the landscaping but this Board has granted several large 
variances for other gas stations in the area.  Mr. Courtney said he would like to see 
more landscaping but he does not believe the petitioner has any room to put the 
landscaping in. 
 
Mr. Quinlan suggested that the Board take this request one variance at a time and 
address each item.  Mr. Fejes said that the Board members have discussed the 
different items and they are going to take a vote on this request as it sits. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that he is not opposed to the 0’ setback.  Rochester Road and South 
Boulevard have been expanded, but we are putting these owners at a disadvantage by 
not allowing the variances.  Nothing else can be put on this property and he feels 
without a convenience center, the owner would not have the same advantage as other 
gas stations in the area. 
 
Mr. Hutson disagreed and said that as long as they are selling gas, people will come. 

 17



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 16, 2006 

ITEM #14 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he was in favor of the variances as this would become a viable 
business and it would be the best use of the parcel.  Mr. Maxwell further stated that he 
did not think people would notice the lack of landscaping on this corner. 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to grant Brian Sharrak, 6969 Rochester (proposed address), relief of the 
ordinance to construct a new gas station at the intersection of Rochester Road and 
South Boulevard with a 0’ setback to the property line; and to have loading spaces that 
are 10’ x 20’ or 200 square feet; and to have 240 square feet of landscaping where 
1,953 square feet is required.  
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Expansion of Rochester Road and South Boulevard have created a hardship with 

the property. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in this application. 
• This particular plan supports a good traffic flow. 
• Variance will allow the petitioner the opportunity to run a viable business. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Courtney, Fejes 
Nays:  1 – Hutson 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCES CARRIED 
 
Mr. Fejes said that a gas station has been at this corner forever and although he does 
not like to lose the landscaping, he does believe the variances will allow the property to 
be a viable business. 
 
ITEM #15 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  BENNY SPIELMANN, 2963 INDUSTRIAL ROW, 
for relief of the Ordinance to construct a building addition and new parking lot on the site 
of an existing industrial building.  The site plan submitted show the construction of the 
parking lot right up to the front property line along Coolidge and within 5’ of the front 
property line along Industrial Row.  Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 requires that the 
50’ front yard required in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District remain free of parking 
and maneuvering lanes.  Because the parking is so close to the property lines, there is 
no 10’ greenbelt as required by Section 39.70.02. 
 
Further, Section 39.70.04 requires a minimum of 3,993 square feet of landscaping in 
addition to the 10’ greenbelt along the road frontage.  The plans show only about 867 
square feet of landscaping. 
 
 

 18



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 16, 2006 

ITEM #15 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a building addition and new parking lot on the site of an existing industrial building.  The 
plans show the construction of a new parking lot right up to the front property line along 
Coolidge and within 5’ of the front property line along Industrial Row.   Paragraph L of 
Section 31.30.00 requires that the 50’ front yard required in the M-1 (Light Industrial) 
Zoning District remain free of parking and maneuvering lanes.  Since these parking 
areas will be so close to the property lines, there is also no 10’ greenbelt as required by 
Section 39.70.02 shown on the plans. 
 
Further, Section 39.70.04 requires a minimum of 3,993 square feet of landscaping in 
addition to the 10’ greenbelt along the road frontage for a site this size.  The plans show 
only about 867 square feet of landscaping. 
 
Mr. Benny Spielmann was present and stated that they are looking to build an addition 
on the east side of the building and because of the addition they will lose the parking 
that they have now and have no choice but to put the parking at the front of the building.  
Mr. Spielmann stated that he had met with Ron Hynd of the Parks and Recreation 
Department and he approved installing landscaping per his plan and recommended 
adding a single trunk tree every 30 linear feet and although Mr. Spielmann offered to 
plant more elaborate landscaping in front Mr. Hynd said that he did not feel that was 
necessary.   
 
Mr. Spielmann stated that they want to take this building and make it an “architectural 
jewel” so that it will fit in with the buildings in the surrounding area.  This is the first 
building on Coolidge coming into Troy and it is a run down, tired Industrial building and 
has lost its relevance in the area.  They plan to rejuvenate this building and use the 
same architectural elements as the Home Depot across the street.  Mr. Spielmann and 
Dominic Pangborn the co-owner of this company are moving their office into Troy from 
Oak Park and believe that they will be an asset to Troy as much as Troy will be an asset 
to them.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what the nature of the business was.  Mr. Spielmann said he is an 
Architect and Dominic is a well-known Graphic Designer, and they would supply exotic 
flooring materials.  Mr. Kovacs then asked if the addition would be used as warehouse 
space.  Mr. Spielmann said that it would be used for warehouse and part will be storage 
of raw materials.  They have tight connections with the Design Center, they want to do 
something much grander, and they feel this location is just tremendous. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked what percentage of their business would be retail.  Mr. Spielmann 
said that the business is not going to be open to the public, but their clientele will be 
mostly builders or interior design people.  Mr. Spielmann said that the largest 
percentage of the space will be used for raw storage.  People will come in, look at the 
raw materials, and order from them.  Mr. Courtney asked if they had looked at other 
locations.  Mr. Spielmann said that they have been looking for a site for a long time and  

 19



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 16, 2006 

ITEM #15 – con’t. 
 
right now have a successful business in Oak Park.  In order to move his business he 
needed an area exactly like this one.  The building is fine their only problem is with the 
parking. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked why they wanted this site and Mr. Pangborn said that this location 
is absolutely perfect for their needs. 
 
Mr. Spielmann said that he feels the location of the present parking is very dangerous 
because this is where the trucks unload their material and people have to walk around 
the truck to get into the building.  He does not believe it is safe and is very unattractive.  
Mr. Courtney said that as long as they are remodeling the building, they could put the 
entrance in another location. 
 
Mr. Pangborn said that everything will go through the back rather than crossing over.  
Mr. Spielmann said that regardless of where the entrance in, the parking will have to be 
moved to the front of the building.  Mr. Pangborn said that they have explored a number 
of different scenarios and this is the best possible solution.  Mr. Spielmann said that this 
location is very poorly landscaped as it is now and they plan to make this location a 
“jewel”.  They would also like to place a sign indicating that this is the entrance to Troy. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked how close the parking would be to the sidewalk along Coolidge.  Mr. 
Stimac said that the property to the south is a municipal cemetery.  Parking will be 
closer to Coolidge that what is depicted on the drawings submitted by the petitioner.  
The parking lot will line up with the sidewalk to the north. 
 
Mr. Spielmann said that he understands that each request is taken as a case-by-case 
scenario, but the building across Industrial Row has a parking lot right up to Coolidge 
and he felt that the Board should take that into consideration. 
 
Mr. Hutson stated that if you look at the buildings to the north they all appear to be 
setback around 40’ or 50’ and presents a nice green approach as you are coming along 
Coolidge.  The petitioner is proposing to have parking within 5’ of Coolidge and  he 
would prefer not to see cars parked this close to Coolidge.  Mr. Spielmann said that is 
the reason he proposed to put in 3’ to 4’ high shrubs at the front of this lot.  Mr. Hutson 
said that he did not believe that would add enough relief compared to a 40’ or 50’ green 
ribbon. 
 
Mr. Kovacs brought up a question about the power poles on this property.  Mr. Stimac 
said that in his estimation by viewing the site out in the field, it appears that those power 
poles are approximately 3’ to 5’ east of the existing sidewalk and will be in the 
pavement.  The petitioner would have to either move these poles or pave around them. 
 
 
 

 20



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 16, 2006 

ITEM #15 -  con’t. 
 
Mr. Spielmann said that he did not know these poles were on his property, he thought 
they would be on the City property.  Mr. Kovacs asked if it was possible that these poles 
are located on this property and Mr. Stimac said that it was. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the petitioner thought he was going that far out and Mr. Spielmann 
said he knew how far he was going to go, but was unaware that the poles were on his 
property.  Mr. Kovacs said that he believes there is a large discrepancy between the 
way the City is interpreting where the parking is going to go relative to the plans 
submitted and the drawings submitted to the Board by Mr. Spielmann indicating where 
he plans to put the parking lot.  Mr. Spielmann said that his Architect drew up these 
plans based on a professional survey he had done.  Mr. Kovacs said that the two plans 
are not the same and he would like to see a more accurate drawing in order to make a 
decision on this variance request. 
 
Mr. Spielmann said that based on the drawings he had submitted, Mr. Hutson could see 
the building to the north had parking to Coolidge and a loading dock facing Coolidge.  
Mr. Hutson said that he understood that, but there are only five (5) parking spaces 
shown.  Mr. Spielmann said that there is about 40 extra feet of parking. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he would like a more accurate drawing showing where this parking 
is going to be.   
 
Mr. Courtney said that personally he does not like the parking in the front at all and 
asked if the petitioner would look for a different spot for parking.  Mr. Courtney also said 
that in remodeling they can change the entrance to the building so that people will not 
have to go around the trucks to get into the building. 
 
Mr. Pangborn said that the City of Troy would never progress if they did not grant 
variances and compared this site to the property across the street.  Mr. Courtney said 
that the property owners across Coolidge did not come and ask to put parking right up 
to the property line along Coolidge and perhaps the petitioner would want to look for a 
different site. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the building to the north had received a variance to have parking in 
the front of the building.  In regards to the telephone poles, they are not in line and only 
one telephone pole will be located in the proposed pavement.  The sidewalk is up to the 
property line and the petitioner is proposing to pave through the front property line.  Mr. 
Spielmann suggested that they could park around the telephone pole that is on their 
property. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are four (4) written objections on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 

 21



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                  MAY 16, 2006 

ITEM #15 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Maxwell 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Benny Spielmann, 2963 Industrial Row, for relief of 
the Ordinance to construct a building addition and new parking lot with the parking lot 
right up to the front property line along Coolidge and within 5’ of the front property line 
along Industrial Row where Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 requires that the 50’ front 
yard required in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District remain free of parking and 
maneuvering lanes.  Further, relief of the 10’ greenbelt required by Section 39.70.02.  
Finally, to have 867 square feet of landscaping where Section 39.70.04 requires a 
minimum of 3,993 square feet of landscaping. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to present the Board with more accurate 
drawings showing the exact location of the parking lot in relation to Coolidge 
Highway. 

• These drawings should also depict how much greenbelt will be on the site. 
• The Board would like to see a proposed landscape plan. 

 
Yeas:  5 -  Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell, Courtney, Fejes 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL JUNE 20, 2006 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #16 – ELECTION OF OFFICERS. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Fejes 
 
MOVED, that Mr. Hutson be elected Chairman and Mr. Maxwell be elected Vice-
Chairman for the Board of Zoning Appeals until May 2007. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Courtney, Fejes, Hutson 
 
MOTION TO ELECT MR. HUTSON, CHAIRMAN AND MR. MAXWELL, VICE-
CHAIRMAN CARRIED 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 10:16 P.M. 
 
 
              
      Christopher Fejes, Chairman 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 22



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - DRAFT                                                   May 18, 2006 
PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 

 
A regular meeting of the Troy Parks and Recreation Advisory Board was held Thursday, May 
18, 2006 at the Troy Community Center, Staff Conference Room.  Chairman, Tom Krent called 
the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m. 
 
Present:  Merrill Dixon, member  Jan Zikakis, member 
   Gary Hauff, member  Tom Krent, chairman 
   Tod Gazetti, member  Jeff Stewart, member 
   Meaghan Kovacs, member  Brad Henson, student representative 
   Jeff Biegler, staff   Stuart Alderman, staff 
   Carol K. Anderson, staff 
 
Absent:  Orestes Kaltsounis, Kathy Fejes (called in), Stu Redpath (called in) 
 
Visitors:  Megan Otzen, Lauren Eavenson 
 
Resolution # PR - 2006 - 05 - 009 
Moved by Zikakis 
Seconded by Stewart 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes from March 16, 2006 are approved as submitted.   
 
Yeas:   7  Abstained: 1 (Tom Krent) 
Nays:   None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Parks and Recreation Budget – The department budget was reviewed.  Some notes: 
• Large increase in local tree and major tree due to ash tree removal and 

replacement. 
• Utility costs have risen in the past year.   
• Revenue for recreation is growing. 
• Alternative sources of revenue have increased in recent past 
• More than 350 jobs for adults and young adults are provided by the department.   

B. Golf Division Budget – The golf course budget was reviewed.  Some notes: 
• Maintenance is remaining in house at Sanctuary Lake to lower costs.   
• Sanctuary Lake has projected a significant increase in revenue. 
• Fuel costs have risen for both golf courses.   

C. Aquatics Budget – The aquatics budget was reviewed and there are no significant budget 
changes.  The weather continues to influence sales and attendance at the aquatic center.  
The Aquatic Center is 15 years old and repairs and maintenance increase as the facility 
ages.   

D. Capital Budget – The capital budget was reviewed.   
E. Fee Waiver Policy for Military Personnel – The fee waiver policy was discussed and the 

following action was taken.   
 
Resolution # PR - 2006 – 05 – 010 
Moved by Hauff 
Seconded by Dixon 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - DRAFT                                                   May 18, 2006 
RESOLVED, That the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, to show support for active 
military residents, recommends that the City Council approve the “Fee Waiver Policy for 
Military Personnel on Leave.”   
 
Yes:  All 
No:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Promotional Material for Hotels – The general managers for hotels in Troy have been 
contacted to offer passes to their guests at the resident rate.  At the end of summer the 
hotels will be billed for any guests that used our facilities and we can track how many 
were sold.  Brochures of our facilities were given to them for display.   

 
Member Comments 
Tom Krent asked about the fan in the men’s restroom at Boulan Park.  It will be checked to be 
sure it is working properly.   
 
Jan Zikakis asked about the prohibited tree list in Troy and why the Bradford Pear was listed on 
it.  Jeff explained that as the tree ages it breaks apart and is not stable.  It has also been 
overplanted and the population of this variety needs to be limited in the event of another pest 
outbreak.   
 
Jan also asked about the sale of trees and whether the City would have a program like they 
used to.  Jeff explained that the City would not however, the State of Michigan has partnered 
with DTE to purchase trees for the counties that were quarantined.  Distribution sites will be set 
up and 200 trees per site will be available.  Residents of the quarantined counties can order the 
trees this fall at half the cost and DTE will pay the other half.  The trees will be available for 
planting in the spring of 2007.   
 
Staff Reports 

A. Directors Report – The Tree Ordinance has been undergoing revision for a number of 
years and is now before City Council.  Developers may have increased costs because 
this Ordinance will require them to preserve or replace prohibited species.  A list of 
recommended trees is given to the developers.   

 
Staff has met with the Planning Department regarding the Masterplan.  In addition, a 
committee has been formed of various City department staff to increase and improve 
trails/pathways around the city.  The county is also interested in the development of the 
trails/pathways for getting people to the county trails.   

 
B. Recreation Report – The Aquatic Center Open House is the weekend of May 20 and 21st.  

It will open Memorial Day weekend.   
 

The City website is currently under revision to make it more user friendly.   
 
Flynn Park will be getting some upgrades – the asphalt will be replaced, drainage, shrubs 
and plants will be added.   

 



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - DRAFT                                                   May 18, 2006 
C. Parks Report – Irrigation will be installed at the Community Center and Jaycee Park.   

 
The east tennis courts at Boulan Park (5,6,7,8) are currently being rebuilt.  Courts 
1,2,3,and 4 are scheduled for rebuilding this fall.   
 
Annuals are being planted at the Aquatic Center, Civic Center and on Big Beaver Road.   

 
 
Resolution # PR – 2006 – 05 - 011 
Moved by Stewart 
Seconded by Henson 
 
RESOLVED, That the meetings for June, July and August are canceled unless an issue 
necessitates a meeting.  If so, a special meeting will be called.   
 
Yes:  All 
No:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # PR – 2006 – 05 – 012 
Moved by Hauff 
Seconded by Zikakis 
 
RESOLVED, To excuse absent members who have provided notification.   
 
Yes:  All 
No:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Tom Krent, Chairman 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Mary Williams, Recording Secretary 



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE – FINAL MAY 23, 2006 
 
This rescheduled meeting of the Troy Historic District Study Committee was held 
Tuesday, May 23, 2006 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. The meeting was called 
to order at 7:33 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT:    Kevin Lindsey 
   Charlene Harris-Freeman 
   Kinda Hupman 
   Paul Lin 
   Linda Rivetto 
 
  ABSENT: Bob Miller 
   Marjorie Biglin 
    
     STAFF: Loraine Campbell 
 
     GUEST: Carl Freeman 
 
Resolution #HDSC-2006-05-001 
Moved by Hupman  
Seconded by Rivetto 
 
RESOLVED, That the absences of Miller and Biglin be excused  
Yes: 5 Lindsey, Harris-Freeman, Hupman, Lin and Rivetto 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #HDSC-2006-05-002 
Moved by Hupman  
Seconded by Rivetto 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of March 7, 2006 be approved  
Yes: 5 Lindsey, Harris-Freeman, Hupman, Lin and Rivetto 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Request to de-list 2955 Quail Run Dr 
The committee reviewed a letter from Carl Freeman to Linda Rivetto that asked 
her to remove herself from the official decision making process regarding 
delisting 2955 Quail Run Dr. The letter was copied to the City Attorney who 
stated Ms. Rivetto was allowed to express her opinions on the issue. She should 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01n



2 

abstain from voting on the issue only if she had a financial or other interest that 
would present a conflict of interest. 
 
The committee discussed the City Attorneys memo of March 14, 2006, which 
stated “the procedure followed upon the initial designation was in compliance 
with both state and local law.” 
 
Mr. And Mrs. Freeman provided four additional documents that supported their 
position that 2955 Quail Run Drive was improperly designated. These documents 
include: 

1. A memo to the Troy Historic (District) Study Committee, May 23, 2006 
2. Email correspondence to Mr. Freeman from Robbert McKay (spelled 

correctly), Historical Architect, State Historic Preservation Office, April 3, 
2006 

3. A letter to Mr. And Mrs. Freeman from Gerald J. Yurk, Architect dated 
April 18, 2006 

4. A detailed Michigan Above-Ground Survey Field Form completed by Mr. 
And Mrs. Freeman 

 
The materials detail a structural inspection and architectural evidence that 
support that the house was built between 1870 and 1890. The materials also 
present census data that SVR Trowbridge died in 1859 and therefore could not 
have constructed the house.  
 
Kevin Lindsey requested the following: 

1. That all the documentation be forwarded to the City Attorney and that the 
City Attorney review the Freeman’s memo of May 23, 2006 

2. That the information on SVR Trowbridge be verified. 
 

B. New Above Ground Survey Assignments 
The following assignments were given: 

1. 770 W. Square Lake Road  Linda Rivetto 
2. 330 W. Square lake Road  Linda Rivetto 
3. 4800 Beach    Charlene Harris-Freeman 
4. 4820 Livernois   Paul Lin 
5. 3645 Crooks Road   Kevin Lindsey 
6. 160 E. Square Lake Road  Kinda Hupman 

  
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Robert’s Rules of Order 
Kevin Lindsey reported that the City Clerk has advised the committee to adopt 
Robert’s Rules of Order. 
 



3 

Resolution #HDSC-2006-05-003 
Moved by Lin  
Seconded by Rivetto 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy Historic District Study Committee adopt Robert’s Rules 
of Order for conducting meetings  
Yes: 5 Lindsey, Harris-Freeman, Hupman, Lin and Rivetto 
No: 0 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

Mr. Lin further urged that the City of Troy adopt a Code of Conduct and Statement of 
Ethics for all boards, Commissions and for City Council. 

 
The Troy Historic Study Committee Meeting was adjourned at 9:50 PM.  The next 
meeting will be held Tuesday, June 6, 2006 at 7:30 p.m. at the Troy Museum & Historic 
Village.  

 
 
                  
Kevin Lindsey 
Chairman 

 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MAY 23, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:30 p.m. on May 23, 2006 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts Lawrence Littman 
Mary Kerwin Mark J. Vleck 
Fazal Khan Wayne Wright 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
David T. Waller 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-088 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Littman, Vleck and Wright are excused from 
attendance at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-089 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as published.  
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01o



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MAY 23, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-090 
Moved by:  Khan 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the May 2, 2006 Special/Study Meeting minutes and the 
May 9, 2006 Regular Meeting minutes as published. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the following items: 
• Resignation of Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development Director – Planning 

Department under direction of the Assistant City Manager/Services. 
• PUD 5, Caswell Town Center – Received preliminary approval by City Council on 

May 15, 2006. 
• Birmingham/Troy Transit Center – Presentation tentatively scheduled for the June 

27, 2006 Special/Study meeting. 
 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN 
 

6. SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Tuscany Estates Site Condominium, 11 units/lots 
proposed, West side of Dequindre, North of Big Beaver Road, Section 24 – R-1C 
(One Family Residential) District 
 
Chair Strat and Mr. Khan disclosed business and personal relationships with the 
petitioner, but indicated they have no financial interests in the proposed 
development.   
 
It was agreed that participation by Chair Strat and Mr. Khan would result in no 
conflicts of interest.   
 
Chair Strat announced that five (5) affirmative votes are required for approval, and 
the petitioner has the option to postpone the item prior to the presentation to the 
Planning Commission.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MAY 23, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

The petitioner, Anthony Fanelli of 50466 Heatherwood Lane, Shelby Township, was 
present.  Mr. Fanelli preferred to go forward with the site plan presentation.  He 
asked for consideration in addressing comments or concerns that might be 
expressed by residents in attendance at tonight’s meeting.  Mr. Fanelli offered to 
answer any questions from members or residents. 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed site condominium development, and reported it is the recommendation of 
City Management to approve the application as submitted.  Mr. Savidant noted a 
letter received from the property owner to the north of the proposed development 
was distributed to the members prior to tonight’s meeting. 
 
There was discussion on: 
• Design layout in terms of stub street, interconnectivity, and walkability. 
• Deeding the detention basin back to the petitioner. 
• Environmental specialist review comments; specifically, 7, 8 and 9.   
• Ownership and maintenance of detention basins; need clarification from 

Engineering Department.  
• Homeowners’ ownership of regional detention basin in terms of financial 

impact/burden. 
• Design of detention basin; i.e., dry, wet, bioswales. 
 
Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Chris Komasara of 5287 Windmill Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Komasara addressed 
the maintenance of detention ponds.   
 
Charles Snell of 2987 Winter Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Snell addressed a concern 
with the grade of his yard in relationship to the proposed development.  He indicated 
the petitioner’s willingness to work with him on this matter.   
 
Diane Piscopink of 3512 Euclid Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Piscopink addressed 
the type of houses proposed, and the public walkway from Euclid Drive to the 
detention area.  She commended the petitioner for constructing quality homes.   
 
Mr. Miller said the walkway is right of way property owned by the City.  He indicated 
two options.  (1) The plat could be amended (an arduous process), or (2) the City 
could vacate its rights and assign the walkway to the neighboring property owners.   
 
Barbara Buschen of 2915 Winter Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Buschen addressed 
the efficiency of the detention pond once it is reduced in size.  She also expressed 
concern with the existing wildlife in the area. 
 
Mr. Miller said the City Engineer assured the Planning Department that the newly 
designed detention basin is feasible and would accommodate volume of both 
neighborhoods.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MAY 23, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Rene Rudowski of 2951 Winter Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Rudowski addressed 
concerns with the grade, water run-off and landscaping.   
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the proposed landscape plan. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Mr. Fanelli requested a postponement of the item to provide him opportunity to 
address concerns of the neighboring residents.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-091 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the proposed Tuscany Estates Site Condominium project 
in Section 24 to the June 13, 2006 Planning Commission Regular meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

STUDY ITEM 
 

7. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 305-D) – Proposed South Parking Lot Beaumont 
Hospital, South of South Blvd., West side of Dequindre Road, Section 1, C-F 
(Community Facility) and E-P (Environmental Protection) Districts 
 
Mr. Miller briefly reviewed the status of the Beaumont Hospital site plan review.   
 
Tom Brisse and John Krolicki were present to represent William Beaumont Hospital 
Troy.  Craig McEwen and Tom Van Derworp were present to represent Harley Ellis 
Devereaux.   
 
Mr. Brisse outlined the additional items for review under Phase 1:  (1) temporary 
loading dock; (2) temporary office space for contractors; and (3) relocation of DTE 
utilities.  Mr. Brisse addressed the hospital’s approach to LEED certification and the 
hospital’s willingness to work with neighboring residents.   
 
Mr. Krolicki outlined the overall plan that comprises three phases. 

Phase 1: South parking lot, loading dock, and relocation of utilities. 
Phase 2: West bed tower expansion and surface parking expansion. 
Phase 3: Power plant expansion and physician/staff parking deck. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MAY 23, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Mr. McEwen addressed the expanse of parking and parking needs.   
 
Mr. Van Derworp, landscape architect, outlined the landscape plan and displayed 
visual boards.   
 

 
___________ 

 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:55 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:03 p.m. 

___________ 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 
 

8. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT REQUEST (ZOTA 219) – Articles II 
and III, Conditional Rezoning 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the status of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
relating to conditional rezoning.   
 
There was a brief discussion, with the following consensus: 
• Section 03.24.02 B (2) (c) – Change the word “mistake” to “error”. 
• Section 03.24.02 A – Incorporate language to reflect that all conditions of the 

proposed rezoning shall be included on the preliminary site plan. 
• Place proposed ZOTA on the June 13, 2006 Regular meeting agenda. 
 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-C) – Article 43.74.00, 
Article 40.65.02 and Article 44.00.00, pertaining to Commercial Vehicle Parking 
Appeals 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the status of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
relating to commercial vehicle parking appeals. 
 
There was a brief discussion, with the following consensus: 
• Delete “Standard A” from Section 43.74.01. 
• Include Section 43.74.03, as recommended by the Legal Department. 
• Reference procedural flow chart. 
• Schedule a Public Hearing at the June 13, 2006 Regular meeting. 

 
10. PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 205) – Proposed 

Article 39.60.00, relating to Parking Lot Landscaping 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the intent of the proposed draft language relating to parking 
lot landscaping and asked for input and direction from the members.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MAY 23, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

There was a lengthy discussion with the consensus that the Planning Department is 
going in the right direction with the draft language.  Comments were noted by the 
Planning Department, and it is anticipated that proposed final language would be 
presented for further review in approximately one month.   
 
 

FUTURE LAND USE PLAN 
 

11. ROCHESTER ROAD FUTURE LAND USE PLAN AMENDMENT 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the status of the Rochester Road Future Land Use Plan 
Amendment.   
 
A brief discussion followed. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-092 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
WHEREAS, City Council directed the Planning Commission to consider an 
amendment to the Future Land Use Plan in the Rochester Road Corridor between 
Square Lake Road and South Boulevard at the August 1, 2005 meeting; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission expanded the limits of the Rochester Road 
Corridor to include that area of Rochester Road between Square Lake Road and 
Long Lake Road; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission developed a draft amendment to the Future 
Land Use Plan for that area of Rochester Road between Square Lake Road and 
Long Lake Road, the Rochester Road Overlay District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Municipal Planning Act requires that the City Council must approve 
the distribution of a proposed plan amendment prior to the process of plan adoption. 
 
RESOLVED, the Planning Commission hereby submits the draft amendment of the 
City of Troy Future Land Use Plan Rochester Road Overlay District to City Council 
for approval of distribution of the plan pursuant to the Michigan Planning Act.   
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MAY 23, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

12. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
Chris Komasara of 5287 Windmill Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Komasara 
addressed agenda item #7 relating to site plan review for Beaumont Hospital. 
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Ms. Kerwin addressed the strip mall on Crooks Road near Caribou Coffee and the 
preservation of trees with respect to site plan applications.   
 
Mr. Waller asked for an explanation on the material provided to members relating to the 
proposed PetSmart store located on the southwest corner of Big Beaver and Rochester 
Road. 
 
Mr. Miller provided an explanation on the interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance for the 
proposed use.     
 
It was the consensus of the members to review at a future study session the Zoning 
Ordinance language as relates to pet stores, ancillary uses and definition of pets.     
 
Mr. Schultz announced he is attending a seminar on the new Michigan Zoning Enabling 
Act and will report back to the members.   
 
Mr. Motzny said he is drafting a memorandum on the new Michigan Zoning Enabling Act 
recently passed by both houses of legislature.   
 
Chair Strat addressed four items:  (1) renovation of existing structures in relation to site 
plan review; (2) status of the Master Plan; (3) Birmingham/Troy transit center presentation; 
and (4) timeline graph for goals and objectives.   
 
Mr. Miller said renovation of existing structures in relation to site plan review could be 
discussed at a future study session.  Mr. Miller reported the City’s Planning Consultant is 
working on a revised proposal for professional services on the Master Plan.   
 
Mr. Khan said he would not be in attendance at the June 27, 2006 Special/Study meeting.   
 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:18 p.m. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MAY 23, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary  
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Draft\05-23-06 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MAY 23, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:30 p.m. on May 23, 2006 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts Lawrence Littman 
Mary Kerwin Mark J. Vleck 
Fazal Khan Wayne Wright 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
David T. Waller 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-088 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Littman, Vleck and Wright are excused from 
attendance at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-089 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as published.  
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01p



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MAY 23, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-090 
Moved by:  Khan 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the May 2, 2006 Special/Study Meeting minutes and the 
May 9, 2006 Regular Meeting minutes as published. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the following items: 
• Resignation of Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development Director – Planning 

Department under direction of the Assistant City Manager/Services. 
• PUD 5, Caswell Town Center – Received preliminary approval by City Council on 

May 15, 2006. 
• Birmingham/Troy Transit Center – Presentation tentatively scheduled for the June 

27, 2006 Special/Study meeting. 
 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN 
 

6. SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Tuscany Estates Site Condominium, 11 units/lots 
proposed, West side of Dequindre, North of Big Beaver Road, Section 24 – R-1C 
(One Family Residential) District 
 
Chair Strat and Mr. Khan disclosed business and personal relationships with the 
petitioner, but indicated they have no financial interests in the proposed 
development.   
 
It was agreed that participation by Chair Strat and Mr. Khan would result in no 
conflicts of interest.   
 
Chair Strat announced that five (5) affirmative votes are required for approval, and 
the petitioner has the option to postpone the item prior to the presentation to the 
Planning Commission.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MAY 23, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

The petitioner, Anthony Fanelli of 50466 Heatherwood Lane, Shelby Township, was 
present.  Mr. Fanelli preferred to go forward with the site plan presentation.  He 
asked for consideration in addressing comments or concerns that might be 
expressed by residents in attendance at tonight’s meeting.  Mr. Fanelli offered to 
answer any questions from members or residents. 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed site condominium development, and reported it is the recommendation of 
City Management to approve the application as submitted.  Mr. Savidant noted a 
letter received from the property owner to the north of the proposed development 
was distributed to the members prior to tonight’s meeting. 
 
There was discussion on: 
• Design layout in terms of stub street, interconnectivity, and walkability. 
• Deeding the detention basin back to the petitioner. 
• Environmental specialist review comments; specifically, 7, 8 and 9.   
• Ownership and maintenance of detention basins; need clarification from 

Engineering Department.  
• Homeowners’ ownership of regional detention basin in terms of financial 

impact/burden. 
• Design of detention basin; i.e., dry, wet, bioswales. 
 
Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Chris Komasara of 5287 Windmill Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Komasara addressed 
the maintenance of detention ponds.   
 
Charles Snell of 2987 Winter Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Snell addressed a concern 
with the grade of his yard in relationship to the proposed development.  He indicated 
the petitioner’s willingness to work with him on this matter.   
 
Diane Piscopink of 3512 Euclid Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Piscopink addressed 
the type of houses proposed, and the public walkway from Euclid Drive to the 
detention area.  She commended the petitioner for constructing quality homes.   
 
Mr. Miller said the walkway is right of way property owned by the City.  He indicated 
two options.  (1) The plat could be amended (an arduous process), or (2) the City 
could vacate its rights and assign the walkway to the neighboring property owners.   
 
Barbara Buschen of 2915 Winter Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Buschen addressed 
the efficiency of the detention pond once it is reduced in size.  She also expressed 
concern with the existing wildlife in the area. 
 
Mr. Miller said the City Engineer assured the Planning Department that the newly 
designed detention basin is feasible and would accommodate volume of both 
neighborhoods.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MAY 23, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Rene Rudowski of 2951 Winter Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Rudowski addressed 
concerns with the grade, water run-off and landscaping.   
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the proposed landscape plan. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Mr. Fanelli requested a postponement of the item to provide him opportunity to 
address concerns of the neighboring residents.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-091 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the proposed Tuscany Estates Site Condominium project 
in Section 24 to the June 13, 2006 Planning Commission Regular meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

STUDY ITEM 
 

7. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 305-D) – Proposed South Parking Lot Beaumont 
Hospital, South of South Blvd., West side of Dequindre Road, Section 1, C-F 
(Community Facility) and E-P (Environmental Protection) Districts 
 
Mr. Miller briefly reviewed the status of the Beaumont Hospital site plan review.   
 
Tom Brisse and John Krolicki were present to represent William Beaumont Hospital 
Troy.  Craig McEwen and Tom Van Derworp were present to represent Harley Ellis 
Devereaux.   
 
Mr. Brisse outlined the additional items for review under Phase 1:  (1) temporary 
loading dock; (2) temporary office space for contractors; and (3) relocation of DTE 
utilities.  Mr. Brisse addressed the hospital’s approach to LEED certification and the 
hospital’s willingness to work with neighboring residents.   
 
Mr. Krolicki outlined the overall plan that comprises three phases. 

Phase 1: South parking lot, loading dock, and relocation of utilities. 
Phase 2: West bed tower expansion and surface parking expansion. 
Phase 3: Power plant expansion and physician/staff parking deck. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MAY 23, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Mr. McEwen addressed the expanse of parking and parking needs.   
 
Mr. Van Derworp, landscape architect, outlined the landscape plan and displayed 
visual boards.   
 

 
___________ 

 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:55 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:03 p.m. 

___________ 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 
 

8. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT REQUEST (ZOTA 219) – Articles II 
and III, Conditional Rezoning 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the status of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
relating to conditional rezoning.   
 
There was a brief discussion, with the following consensus: 
• Section 03.24.02 B (2) (c) – Change the word “mistake” to “error”. 
• Section 03.24.02 A – Incorporate language to reflect that all conditions of the 

proposed rezoning shall be included on the preliminary site plan. 
• Place proposed ZOTA on the June 13, 2006 Regular meeting agenda. 
 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-C) – Article 43.74.00, 
Article 40.65.02 and Article 44.00.00, pertaining to Commercial Vehicle Parking 
Appeals 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the status of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
relating to commercial vehicle parking appeals. 
 
There was a brief discussion, with the following consensus: 
• Delete “Standard A” from Section 43.74.01. 
• Include Section 43.74.03, as recommended by the Legal Department. 
• Reference procedural flow chart. 
• Schedule a Public Hearing at the June 13, 2006 Regular meeting. 

 
10. PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 205) – Proposed 

Article 39.60.00, relating to Parking Lot Landscaping 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the intent of the proposed draft language relating to parking 
lot landscaping and asked for input and direction from the members.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MAY 23, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

There was a lengthy discussion with the consensus that the Planning Department is 
going in the right direction with the draft language.  Comments were noted by the 
Planning Department, and it is anticipated that proposed final language would be 
presented for further review in approximately one month.   
 
 

FUTURE LAND USE PLAN 
 

11. ROCHESTER ROAD FUTURE LAND USE PLAN AMENDMENT 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the status of the Rochester Road Future Land Use Plan 
Amendment.   
 
A brief discussion followed. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-05-092 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
WHEREAS, City Council directed the Planning Commission to consider an 
amendment to the Future Land Use Plan in the Rochester Road Corridor between 
Square Lake Road and South Boulevard at the August 1, 2005 meeting; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission expanded the limits of the Rochester Road 
Corridor to include that area of Rochester Road between Square Lake Road and 
Long Lake Road; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission developed a draft amendment to the Future 
Land Use Plan for that area of Rochester Road between Square Lake Road and 
Long Lake Road, the Rochester Road Overlay District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Municipal Planning Act requires that the City Council must approve 
the distribution of a proposed plan amendment prior to the process of plan adoption. 
 
RESOLVED, the Planning Commission hereby submits the draft amendment of the 
City of Troy Future Land Use Plan Rochester Road Overlay District to City Council 
for approval of distribution of the plan pursuant to the Michigan Planning Act.   
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MAY 23, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

12. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
Chris Komasara of 5287 Windmill Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Komasara 
addressed agenda item #7 relating to site plan review for Beaumont Hospital. 
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Ms. Kerwin addressed the strip mall on Crooks Road near Caribou Coffee and the 
preservation of trees with respect to site plan applications.   
 
Mr. Waller asked for an explanation on the material provided to members relating to the 
proposed PetSmart store located on the southwest corner of Big Beaver and Rochester 
Road. 
 
Mr. Miller provided an explanation on the interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance for the 
proposed use.     
 
It was the consensus of the members to review at a future study session the Zoning 
Ordinance language as relates to pet stores, ancillary uses and definition of pets.     
 
Mr. Schultz announced he is attending a seminar on the new Michigan Zoning Enabling 
Act and will report back to the members.   
 
Mr. Motzny said he is drafting a memorandum on the new Michigan Zoning Enabling Act 
recently passed by both houses of legislature.   
 
Chair Strat addressed four items:  (1) renovation of existing structures in relation to site 
plan review; (2) status of the Master Plan; (3) Birmingham/Troy transit center presentation; 
and (4) timeline graph for goals and objectives.   
 
Mr. Miller said renovation of existing structures in relation to site plan review could be 
discussed at a future study session.  Mr. Miller reported the City’s Planning Consultant is 
working on a revised proposal for professional services on the Master Plan.   
 
Mr. Khan said he would not be in attendance at the June 27, 2006 Special/Study meeting.   
 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:18 p.m. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MAY 23, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary  
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Final\05-23-06 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT MAY 23, 2006 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, May 
23, 2006 at the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:30 pm. 
 
 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 

Cele Dilley Jeff Stewart 
Cheryl Whitton Marilyn Musick 
Connie Huang, Student Rep Kasey Wang, Student Rep 
Kessie Kaltsounis Bill Hall (left 9:10 pm) 
Bob Preston  
 
City Staff: Cindy Stewart 
 Gerry Scherlinck 
 Bob Matlick 
 Jeff Biegler 
 

 Festival Chairman:   Tom Kaszubski 
 Others:    Jeff Winarski  
      Poncho Massaini 
      Danielle Cheli 
    
   
Resolution #TD-2006-05-74 
Motion to excuse absent members, Mike Gonda and Bob Berk by Cheryl 
Whitton, seconded by Kessie Kaltsounsis. 
 
RESOLVED that Mike Gonda and Bob Berk are excused from the May meeting. 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution #TD-2006-05-75 
Moved by Bill Hall  
Seconded by Bob Preston to approve the April 25, 2006 minutes. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the April meeting minutes are approved. 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01q



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT MAY 23, 2006 

 
 
D. TREASURER’S REPORT as of 4/30/06 
 
Revenue $172,608.76 (no change) 
Expenses $141,827.15 
Only charge - operating supplies $55.76 
Resolution #TD-2006-05-76 
Moved by Bill Hall 
Seconded by Marilyn Musick to accept the Treasurer’s Report of April 30, 2006. 
 
RESOLVED that the Treasurer’s Report of April 30, 2006 is approved. 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
E. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 1. City Attorney Procedure Review -  
 Lori Bluhm is attending all City Board Meetings as a resource for 

members. She is also here to educate regarding the open meetings act.  
Provisions/violations of open meeting act. 

 
Troy Daze is an advisory board, a governing body.  Doors to meetings 
must be open. Currently with the door closed Troy Daze Board is in 
violation of the Open Meetings Act.   If need to close due to noise in halls, 
place sign:  “Meeting in Session, Please Enter Quietly”.   
 
Make people welcome to meetings, be open and honest, especially since 
the committee deals with money.  People could say you are being 
influenced so you must always be beyond reproach. 
 
People can come in and view all troy Daze meetings.  Must have public 
comment section on all agendas.  Usually that is the last item on the 
agenda, but if want to end on a positive note, end with member comment 
item.  Do not have to say anything, but Lori Bluhm encourages this as last 
item. 
 
People can be critical, but you will have to put up with it.  They cannot 
make negative comments not related to performance of duties for Troy 
Daze Festival. 
 
There can be a statement in the operating manual regarding no negative 
attacks at meetings. 
 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT MAY 23, 2006 

Attendance:  if people are not out of county do not excuse them.  
Members missing 5 consecutive meetings can be removed for cause per 
the City Charter.   Your rules can be less than 5 as stated in City Charter. 
 
Oath of office – al Board members need to be sworn in by City Clerk.  
Some have, some have not.  It would be a good idea if you all do that. 
 
Expenditures – members should know how to be reimbursed. 
 
Disclosure statement – good idea to sign this since you do work with 
contractors & businesses.  If one of you work for a contractor or a sponsor 
you would not want to benefit from that company. 
 
All meetings are open to the public.  You cannot prohibit anyone from 
video taping or audio taping your meetings.  You cannot keep people from 
making public comments if they are not a Troy resident, but you can ask 
their residency. 
 
Quorum only applies when business is taking place.  Does not apply to 
social settings, but at these functions, you cannot deliberate or make 
decisions. 
 
Must post all meetings at least 18 hours before a meeting. 
 
Minutes must be available a few days after meeting in draft form provided 
to Clerk’s Office.  Must be on the website immediately.   
 
All votes must occur in open session. 
 
Public comment: if you have a meeting and have a large audience, you 
can limit comments but must do it at the beginning of a meeting.  Propose 
a time limit and have the board vote on this. 
 
Violations of open meeting act - if this occurs you can be sued in civil and 
criminal court. 
 
Intentionally violating open meetings act – members would have to pay for 
your own legal representation.  If in the line of duty, City would represent 
you.  Violation of open meeting act is misconduct in office. 
 
Once minutes approved – have minutes available 5 days after meeting. 
 
Attorney – Client Privilege – if uncomfortable about something that 
happens, the City Attorney can issue communication confidentially 
(attorney – client privilege). 
 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT MAY 23, 2006 

Email & letters are all subject to FOIA.  Call attorney, do not email or write 
letter.  No deliberations on any issue can be done via email by board 
members.  These are subject to FOIA. 
 
Avoid any perceived conflicts of interest. 
 
Avoid “ex parte” communication.  Everyone should have some chance to 
receive information. No bias among members. 
 
Questions – If discussion on personnel, can that person request a closed 
session?  Yes, but person must request either a closed session or open 
session.  Need the language to make a motion to go into closed session. 
 
Nine members on board with two student representatives who are ex 
officio – no vote but participatory. 
 
Lori Bluhm is always available for questions from board members. 
 
 
2. Appointment of Connie Huang and Kasey Wang to be co-chairs for 
P.A. Announcements.    
Resolution #TD-2006-05-77 
Motion by Bill Hall, seconded by Bob Preston. 
 
RESOLVED that Connie Huang and Kasey Wang are appointed as co-c

 hairs for PA announcements is approved. 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
3. Little Miss Troy Pageant Proposal by Danielle Cheli. 
 
Proposal A - for a pageant on Saturday, September 16.  There are 
approximately 30-35 girls in Junior Miss Pageants each year.  Due to 
large number of girls and parents, Danielle is proposing the need for a 
larger area than tents. Interviews at Community Center 9 -11 a.m., dress 
rehearsal 12 - 1:30 pm at Boulan Park Middle School and pageant from 2 
- 4:30 pm @ Boulan Park Middle School.  She would need 5 judges.  Two 
minute Interview schedule would be: 9 - 9:30 am - Little Miss, 9:30 – 10 
am - Pre Teen Miss, 10 -10:30 am -Young Miss, 10:30 – 11 am – Teen 
Miss. 

 
Suggestion to move interviews to a week before the pageant – very long 
day for young girls 5-7 years old.    How to pay for Boulan Park Middle 
School fees? Entry fee and/or ticket sales. 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT MAY 23, 2006 

 
Projected expenses? 
School ~ $700.00   
Last year $447 – trophies, crowns, sashes 
Last year $201 – program 
(decorations, flowers might be donated). 
 
Costs?  Lighting and sound will have to be through the schools. 
 
2005 - $707 gift certificates 
 $240 Community Center rental (Saturday) 
 
All new events need to break even.   
 

If this is at Boulan Park Middle School at 2 p.m. on Saturday, will this affect 
parking at the school?  Danielle feels people should have to pay $7 parking fee 
and will publicize that sticker is good for the weekend. 
 
Proposal B - Saturday, September 16 in Entertainment tent from 9 - 10:45 a.m.  
No interviews or interviews one week prior to pageant. 

 
If held at festival in the entertainment tent there would be no room fee or janitor 
fee.  Cost savings for Proposal B. 

 
Proposal A would be much more costly.  We do have money in budget for Miss 
Troy -  lighting and sound.  And a dressing room tent – 20’ x 40’ 

 
Resolution #TD-2006-05-78 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton 
Seconded by Kessie Kaltsounis Musick to accept Proposal B, holding the Junior 
Miss Troy Pageants on Saturday, September 16 at 9 am in entertainment tent. 
 
RESOLVED that Pageant Proposal B is approved. 
Yeas: Jeff Stewart, Cheryl Whitton, Bob Preston, Kessie Kaltsounis, Cele 

Dilley 
Nays:  Marilyn Musick, Bill Hall 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
4.  Event Chairs Needs:   

 
Alison Miller (new car show): needs approval for Extreme Truck Accessories 
involvement of face painting and balloons. The Company will pay for this in new 
car show area.  Approval for face painting only.  Extreme truck Accessories 
needs to submit list of what they sell for police check. 

 
 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT MAY 23, 2006 

Miss Troy chair needs co-chair. 
 

Student art: paint flats white; need student art demonstrators. 
 

Student volunteers: Sandy has been making contacts with high schools. 
 

Photography: entry forms on website already.  Contacted high school teachers 
for assistance getting entries from students. 
 
 EthniCity all set. 

 
Talent shows – applications on line. 

 
Waffle Breakfast – Saturday/Sunday 9 am -1 pm. $4 and no advance sales. 

 
Senior Sensation – Carla needs to know schedule/time frame by June 10 to get 
in senior newsletter.  Joann Stein will do bingo but they do bingo at the 
Community center on Fridays. 

 
Entertainment – all spots filled but one time block waiting for Athens Jazz Band. 

 
Outdoor Entertainment – Shirley might not be available if husband gets worse.  
Jeff is helping her.   

 
Opening Ceremonies – Congressman wants $18 for flag flown over the capital. 

 
Miss Troy - Idea to move 20’ x 40’ dressing room tent closer to Entertainment 
Tent.   

 
5. Plaques for booth participants tabled. 
 
6. City co-chairs discussion -  are they getting paid - No. If the Police Chief is 
there in uniform, he is on official police business and would be paid.  When 
helping with entertainment, he is not paid. 
 
7. New event proposals/bid procedure discussion 

 
What are the City Bid procedures – develop specifications if under $10,000 – 
solicit bids back from companies.  Approved by Purchasing and City Manager.  If 
over $10,000 formal bid approved by Council.  If all insurance requirements 
approved by Risk Management the purchase order can be submitted to 
Purchasing. 

 
Stage & lighting separate if needed.  Jeff Winarski donated lights in past.  Has 
sound and electrical been bid in the past?  Response: always less than what we 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT MAY 23, 2006 

have been able to get from other companies.  But electrical has not been bid out 
for many years. 

 
High quality entertainment requires higher quality sound system and that is why a 
bid for sound was sent out.  Bob Broquet said he could not handle what the 
bands needed, so the entertainment chair sought other proposals.  

 
All entertainment will bring in revenue to the Festival and will be family friendly. 

 
Saturday: Teen band (recommended by Police Officer Nickie Kaptur),  Pointe 
Dance Academy, Talent Shows, Forbes Brothers. 

 
Sunday: Ventriloquist Amazing Clark, Athens Jazz Band, Blues Band and the  
Sun Messengers. 
 
Cheryl Whitton: should Board approve specs before going out? 

 
Jeff Biegler has altered specs and sent out without board approval. 

 
Kessie Kaltsounis: board should be told when proposals are going out. 

 
Jeff Stewart: after Bob Broquet said he could not help him he knew he had to get 
other prices.  Didn’t know Jeff W. did lighting. 

 
Cele Dilley:  If a company comes in at a lower price and Troy Daze accepts this, 
what do we do about the other things Bob Broquet did? 

 
Will board approve the bid?  Yes.  But ultimately it is approved by the Purchasing 
Director and the City Manager. 

 
If bids go out that are changed drastically the Board need to see those prices.  If 
there are only slight modifications that is OK. 

 
Do we have to have a separate bid for electric, lighting, sound for rest of the 
Park. 

 
Bids such as Electrical for $8000 and Sound for $4000 should be bid out. 
 
Tom Kaszubski: I am not willing to lose key people and friends who have been 
part of Troy Daze for many years like Bob Broquet and Jeff Winarski. 

 
Jeff Stewart apologizes for working so hard on entertainment. 

 
Cele Dilley said when it is a drastic change she wishes he would tell them.  She 
is not sure there should be so many bands. 

 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT MAY 23, 2006 

Cheryl Whitton:  at conventions, they usually see groups and know the style. 
What usually fills the tent is dance groups.  Larger acts – empty tent. 

 
Jeff Stewart: if these acts don’t work, we can go back to old ways. 

 
Kessie Kaltsounis: who will check if we have sound for entire park? What about 
P.A. systems and entire park for sound? 

 
8.  Hours/Parking/Advanced Tickets - 

 
Cheryl Whitton talked to Wayne and Terry regarding Police Explorers, they 
wanted no drop off on Crooks Road. 

 
Lt. Gerry Scherlinck heard the board say they want Police to enforce no drop off 
on Crooks and everyone pays. Wayne and Terry work for Lt. Scherlinck and the 
Police will handle the situation.  He said there is no way to force people to pay $7 
if they are confused or didn’t know the new procedure.  Police will accommodate 
them since it will take time to educate and train people regarding drop off on 
Northfield Parkway.   

 
From a PR standpoint – cannot force anyone to pay if mistake being there. It will 
take time to train people.  Lt. Scherlinck will give direction to Wayne and Terry 
that every car entering Crooks will pay the $7.  He will communicate with all staff 
the new procedure. 

 
Advanced tickets for parking and amusement rides will be sold at the Community 
Center. 

 
9. Revised Committee Manual Review and Cash Handling Procedures – 
Tabled to  June meeting.  
 
10. Demographics – not done since 2004.  Needs to be done by adult 
volunteers.  Need list of questions.  Discuss at the June meeting. 

 
  

Old Business 
 

Update on Contracts: 
 
Larger contracts such as tents need to get to Purchasing.  Want large tent set up 
on the Monday before the Festival. 
 
Need contract for electric message boards for Crooks Road.  Kessie has contact. 
 
There is an issue with the east tennis courts this year (location for classic cars).  
They are being redone and there can be no cars parked on the east courts this 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT MAY 23, 2006 

year.  This is also the last year for parking new cars on the west tennis court.  
Board will have to look at the layout and revise car shows. 

 
Pistons Hoop Trailer would like to return but with a better site - more visible. 

 
Portable lights – 7 last year need 8 more this year. 

 
MOTION TO ADJOURN 
Resolution #TD-2006-05-79 
Moved by Kessie Kaltsounis 
Seconded by Marilyn Musick 

 
RESOLVED that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee Meeting be adjourned at 
9:53 pm. 

 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED    

  
 
 

_____________________________ 
Cele Dilley, Chairperson 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary 

 
 
 
 
 

 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        June 1, 2006 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, June 1 
2006 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair Bud Black called the meeting to order at  
1:05 PM. 
 
Present: Bud Black, Member David Ogg, Member 
 Frank Shier, Member Jo Rhoads, Member  
 JoAnn Thompson Pauline Noce, Member 
 Merrill Dixon, Member  
 Carla Vaughan, Staff   
     
Absent: James Berar, Member excused    
   
Visitors:  Jeff Biegler 
   
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2006-6-001 
Moved by David Ogg  
Seconded by Merrill Dixon 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of May 4, 2006 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 7       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Old Business 
  
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Jeff Biegler reported that there were no bids in April.  This 
was a very busy time for many contractors.  A new bid is going out next week and bidders will 
have four weeks to respond.  It is still expected that the facility will be built this year.   
 
Golf Leagues:  Carla reported that representatives from the three golf leagues have had two 
meetings with Assistant City Manager Brian Murphy and Parks and Recreation staff and they 
are working things out regarding the issues brought up at last month’s meeting.  
  
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Carla reported that a one-year contract has 
been approved and there is now a reduced price menu for non-profit groups.  A copy of this 
menu was handed out. 
 
David Ogg reported that groups can use the meeting rooms at the Police and Fire Training 
Center for free and can bring their own food in there. 
 
New Business 
 
Cancellation of July and August meetings:   

campbellld
Text Box
J-01r



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        June 1, 2006 

2 

 
Resolution # SC-2006-6-002 
Moved by David Ogg  
Seconded by Joanne Thompson 
 
RESOLVED That the July and August meetings be cancelled. 
 
Yes: 7       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board: Merrill Dixon reported that the Park Board reviewed the budget and that it was 
announced that the non-resident fee at the golf course has been waived for City employees.  
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that Medi-Go is looking into offering weekend service.  Dialysis 
patients often have appointments on Saturday.  
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that the Parks and Recreation Department has sponsored 
six events to help seniors gain information and to enroll in the Medicare Prescription Drug 
program.  Over 300 seniors attended these events.  The map of outdoor walking routes 
adjacent to the Community Center has been updated and now includes seven routes varying 
in length from .4 mile (around the perimeter of the Community Center) to 2.2 miles (from the 
Community Center to and around the fitness trail and back).  134 people attended the free 
shredding event at the Community Center in May. 
 
OLHSA:  Pauline Noce reported that they had a speaker from Adapt My Home, a business 
that does barrier free renovations to help seniors age in place.  The Committee would like 
Carla to arrange to have them speak in Troy.  Pauline noted that whatever company a senior 
might choose, they should make sure that they are a certified Aging-In-Place specialist.    
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  Jo Rhoads reported that they met with legislators 
and encouraged them to keep up funding for transportation. 
 
Medicare Part D:  Joann Thompson reported that her pharmacist ran the numbers for her and 
she later signed up, but there are still questions.  David Ogg reported that there is a great 
variance in process among pharmacies.   Additional discussion was held on this topic.   
 
Suggestion Box:  There were no suggestions this month.   In response to a suggestion last 
month, Carla took a poll about organ music on Fridays and the vote was almost evenly divided.   
It was decided to allow organ music on an OCCASIONAL basis, and we can revisit the issue 
again in the future if need be. 
 
Comments:   
 
 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        June 1, 2006 

3 

 
 
David Ogg reported that the police department is conducting a seat belt sting. 
 
Frank Shier reported that the senior show at the Macomb Center is July 7 and 8. 
 
Joanne Thompson reported that she attended a recent Heart-Of-The-Hills Players 
performance in Warren.  There were lots of people there and it was lots of fun. 
 
Jo Rhoads asked how the hospital equipment loan closet is doing.  Carla reported that more 
wheelchairs and shower chairs are needed. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:15 PM. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Bud Black, Chair               
 
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – DRAFT June 5, 2006 
 

-1- 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Personnel Board was held Monday, June 5, 2006, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. Clerk Bartholomew called the meeting to order at 6:45 
PM. 

ROLL CALL: 
 
 PRESENT: Member Baughman 
  Member Shaw 
  Member Tschirhart 
   
 ABSENT: Member Nelson 
   
 ALSO PRESENT: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager, Services 
  Peggy Clifton, Human Resources Director 
  Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

APPOINTMENT OF PERSONNEL BOARD CHAIRPERSON: 
PB-#2006-06-001 
Moved by Baughman 
Seconded by Shah 
 
RESOLVED, That Members of the Troy Personnel Board hereby APPOINT Tschirhart to 
serve as Chairperson. 
 
Yes: All-3 
Absent: Nelson
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
PB-2006-06-002 
Moved by Tschirhart 
Seconded by Baughman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the minutes of the Personnel 
Board meeting of Tuesday, June 8, 2004 as corrected and the minutes of Tuesday, 
December 20, 2005 as presented. 
 
Yes: All-3 
Absent: Nelson
 

OLD BUSINESS: None 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01s



PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – DRAFT June 5, 2006 
 

-2- 

NEW BUSINESS: 

A.  Recommendations for Classification Plan and Pay Plan: 
 
Peggy Clifton, Human Resources Director advised the Board that HR staff surveyed 4 
surrounding communities to determine the average pay increase. The budgeted amount for 
increases was set at 3%. Staff recommends the following: 
 
 Range adjustment: 2% 
 Across-the-board salary increases: 2% (with satisfactory performance evaluation) 
 Merit (based on performance evaluation score): up to 1% 
 
PB-2006-06-003 
Moved by Baughman 
Seconded by Shah 
 
RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the proposed recommendations 
for the Classification Plan and Plan (FY 2006-2007) as submitted. 
 
Yes: All-3 
Absent: Nelson
 

B.  Recommended Changes in Prescription Drug Rider and Tuition 
Reimbursement Program 

  
Peggy Clifton, Human Resources Director advised the Board that management is proposing 
a change in Prescription Drug Riders. She reference the proposed Section XXVI distributed 
with the agenda packet. 
 
PB-2006-06-004 
Moved by Baughman 
Seconded by Shah 
 
RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the proposed recommendations 
in the Personnel Rules, Section XXVI. Hospitalization and Medical Insurance, subsection 1), 
and in the Personnel Rules, Section XXVIII. Tuition Reimbursement, subsection 2), as 
submitted. 
 
Yes: All-3 
Absent: Nelson
 

C.  Approval of Revisions to Personnel Rules to Reflect Appropriate Changes 
in Benefit Package 

 
PB-2006-06-005 



PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – DRAFT June 5, 2006 
 

-3- 

Moved by Shaw 
Seconded by Baughman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the revisions in the Personnel 
Rules, to reflect the appropriate changes in the benefit package as submitted. 
 
Yes: All-3 
 

ADJOURNMENT:  
 
PB-06-06-006: Moved by Baughman, Seconded by Tschirhart, CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY: That there being nothing else to come before the 
Board, the meeting be ADJOURNED. 

 
Yes: Baughman, Tschirhart, Shah 
No: None 
Absent: Nelson

 
Meeting adjourned at 7:12 PM. 
 
  

 
 
 

 Ronald Tschirhart, Chairman 
  

 
 
 

 Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES JUNE 6, 2006  

TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD 
TUESDAY, JUNE 6, 2006 

TROY CITY HALL - CONFERENCE ROOM C 
 
 
I. Call to Order 7:09 p.m. 
 
II. Roll Call: 
 

Present: 
Padma Kuppa (7:18 pm) Kelly Gu, Student Rep 
Anju Brodbine Helen Yang, Student Rep 
Tom Kaszubski Tony Haddad  
Michelle Haight Malini Sarma 
Helen Yang, Student Rep 
Cindy Stewart, City Liaison 
 
Absent: 
Reuben Ellis, Mark Pritzlaff, Lulu Guo, 
Guest:  Mayada Fakhouri 
 

III. Moved by Anju Brodbine seconded by Malini Sarma that the minutes of 
May 9, 2006 be approved. 

 
 

IV. Old Business –  
 

a. EthniCity 
 

Board members will continue to call groups to participate in the EthniCity 
tent.  One group has committed – Philippines.  Same size tent (40’ x 60’) 
with a stage (12’ x 12’) in the center for small demonstrations. 
 
Booth participation certificates – need numbers by August 1, 2006. 
Ideas for people’s choice: plaque or clock. 
 
If we get more than 12 cultures for booths, might need a larger tent.  15 
countries as possibilities (Mexico, India, China, Middle East, Italy, Greece, 
Germany, Taiwan, Pakistan, Egypt, Africa, Russian, Philippines, Ethiopia, 
Spain, Japan). 
 
Need all responses by Monday, June 26 in order to tell Troy Daze 
committee if we need a larger tent. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01t



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES JUNE 6, 2006  

Kids Activity – Placemat of the world that we can laminate. Laminating 
machine – school district’s one is too large, doesn’t travel well and uses 
too much power. 
 
Kinko’s – they would send employee to Troy Daze at booth to laminate 
place mats.  Michelle will talk to them regarding being an in-kind sponsor 
and donating services. 
 
Trinkets – Glo sticks, Glo necklaces or Glo bracelets, light-up pins. 
Anju will check prices at Oriental Trading.  
 
b.    Goals – no updates 

 
V. Staff Report 
   

Dr. Pam Mathers, Hamilton Principal, will send home our resource Guide 
with all the students first week of school in September. 

 
Padma is trying to get the NCCJ videos for Pam Mathers and Hill 
Principal, Janice Brzezinski to view. 

 
 Congratulations to:  Kelly Gu, our student representative on the fine job 

she has done.  She is leaving this summer for Harvard University. 
 

Motion by Anju Brodbine, seconded by Michelle Haight to make a 
recommendation to City Council by the Ethnic Issues Advisory Board 
Member to appoint Mayada Fakhouri for Oniell Shah’s vacancy. 

 Approved unanimously. 
 

Motion to Adjourn by Padma Kuppa, seconded by Anju Brodbine.  Meeting 
adjourned at 9 pm. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                    JUNE 7, 2006 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M., on Wednesday, June 7, 2006 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Rick Sinclair (arrived 8:33 A.M.) 
   Tom Rosewarne 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Marlene Struckman, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
   
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF MAY 3, 2006 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of May 3, 2006 as written. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Dziurman, Kessler, Rosewarne, Zuazo 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST. AVER SIGN CO., 1735 E. BIG BEAVER, for relief 
of Chapter 85 to install a second wall sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to install a 
second wall sign.  A permit was issued for a 28 square foot wall sign with the stipulation 
that all other wall signs were to be removed.  After installing this sign, the owner 
decided that the existing 72.4 square foot wall sign was to remain on the building.  
Chapter 85, Section 85.02.05 (3a) allows for one wall sign, not to exceed 10% of the 
front of the structure to a maximum size of 200 square feet. 
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of May 3, 2006 and was 
postponed to this meeting to allow the petitioner to submit more detailed drawings to the 
Board; and also to allow the petitioner the opportunity to review the plans and determine 
whether they are to include the brim as part of the signage. 
 
Mr. Ken Enghauser of Chase Bank was present.  Mr. Enghauser stated that they have 
revised their plans for this sign and have removed the brim.  They also plan to remove 
the vinyl lettering that is located on the windows.  The square footage of the monument 
sign in front is 25 square feet and the proposed wall sign is 28 square feet, which will  
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01u



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                    JUNE 7, 2006 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
bring the total signage to 53 square feet.  Mr. Enghauser said that it is his 
understanding that they are allowed 56 square feet of signage in total.   
 
Mr. Stimac explained that they are permitted to have a 36 square foot secondary ground 
sign and a 20 square foot tenant identification wall sign, which would bring the total to 
56 square feet.  Because the vinyl lettering is inside the glass it is not covered under the 
Sign Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Enghauser stated that if this variance is granted they will not come back to the 
Board to request any other variance to increase the signage on this building. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if Chase dictated the size of this sign.  Mr. Enghauser stated that 
the size of the sign is determined by where it is placed on a building and the size of the 
building.  Mr. Dziurman asked if they could comply with the Ordinance and Mr. 
Enghauser said that they could, but they would have to have another sign fabricated.  
Mr. Dziurman stated that if they put up a 20 square foot wall sign they would not require 
a variance. 
 
A discussion ensued regarding the fact that there is another tenant in the building and it 
was determined that no other tenants could lease space in this building so the signs that 
are on the location would be the only signs allowed. 
 
Mr. Zuazo pointed out that it was possible for the petitioner to comply with the 
Ordinance.  Mr. Enghauser stated that when they received the permit for the sign they 
thought that they were in compliance.  Mr. Zuazo asked why the Building Department 
had issued the original permit. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that when the Sign Permit was originally issued the Sign 
Contractor had indicated that the other wall sign was to be taken down.  The owners 
changed their mind and decided to keep the original sign and therefore this sign cannot 
be considered the primary sign. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to grant Aver Sign Co., 1735 E. Big Beaver relief of Chapter 85 to install a 
second wall sign that is 28 square feet where 20 square feet is allowed. 
 

• Square footage of the ground sign for this tenant cannot be increased from the 
current 25 square feet. 

• Vinyl lettering on the window is to be removed. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                    JUNE 7, 2006 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:45 A.M. 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 3



  
 

June 5, 2006 
 
 
 
TO:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
 
SUBJECT:    Agenda Item – Final Reporting – Auction Services – April/May 2006  
 
SUMMARY 
In compliance with Resolution #2004-02-075, final reporting is being presented for thirteen 
(13) computers, eight (8) laptops, one (1) plotter, one (1) hydraulic pump, and miscellaneous 
printer ribbons, which were auctioned on-line through BidNet, the City’s e-procurement 
website, from March 31, 2006 through May 7, 2006. All sold, but the miscellaneous IBM 
printer ribbons – which were recycled.  
 
In addition, final reporting is being presented for vehicles and miscellaneous items, which 
were auctioned through Mid-Thumb Auctioneering Services at St. Clair County Park, 
Goodells, Port Huron, Michigan on April 29, 2006.   
 
Final sale amounts and fees are listed below:     
DESCRIPTION   PROCEEDS   SUB-TOTAL NET INCOME 
13 computers, 8 laptops, 1 plotter, 1 pump, & misc. 1,574.74  
 Vehicles  (2 trailers, autocar, & John Deer mower) 22,500.00  
 Misc. Items (lights, tires, testers, tool box, & etc) 1,317.00  
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:  $  25,391.74  
                                                                              FEES:   
5% Fee (Computers, laptops, plotter, pump, & etc)  (78.74)   
6% on Misc./ Vehicles  (1,429.02)   
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL: ($  1,507.76)  
 TAXES:   
Sales Tax +6% (Computers, laptops, plotter, etc): 94.49   
Sales Tax (None on Vehicles): 0   
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:    $       94.49  
   $ 23,978.47

                                                      
BACKGROUND 
 
Resolution #2004-02-075 established the on-line auction fee of 5% and provided 
approval to use BidCorp with the provision that other on-line auction service options 
would be considered.  BidNet moved forward and implemented the on-line surplus 
auction service for MITN (Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network), which can be 
accessed through the City of Troy home web page.  MITN is Purchasing’s official e-
procurement website used for posting bids, tabulations, quotations, and award 
information. It was a Purchasing goal that one e-procurement site would be operational 
for all functions. 
 
 
Report and Communication – Auction Report – April/May 2006 
Prepared by Linda Bockstanz, Associate Buyer 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a







DATE:        June 1, 2006
TO:            John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager
FROM:       Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued during the Month of May 2006

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Accessory Structure 1 $34,500.00 $390.00
Add/Alter 8 $258,500.00 $2,791.00

Sub Total 9 $293,000.00 $3,181.00

COMMERCIAL
New 2 $2,758,870.00 $17,603.00
Add/Alter 20 $3,967,755.00 $28,863.00
Wreck 3 $0.00 $300.00

Sub Total 25 $6,726,625.00 $46,766.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 7 $1,190,619.00 $9,359.00
Add/Alter 57 $702,468.00 $10,447.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 17 $158,760.00 $2,600.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 5 $122,540.00 $1,489.00
Repair 3 $118,887.00 $1,171.00
Fire Repair 1 $30,000.00 $355.00
Wreck 3 $0.00 $160.00

Sub Total 93 $2,323,274.00 $25,581.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
Add/Alter 11 $82,089.00 $1,378.00
Temporary Sales Trailer 1 $250,000.00 $1,895.00

Sub Total 12 $332,089.00 $3,273.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 4 $565,610.00 $4,542.00

Sub Total 4 $565,610.00 $4,542.00

RELIGIOUS
Add/Alter 1 $1,050,000.00 $7,395.00

Sub Total 1 $1,050,000.00 $7,395.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 42 $0.00 $4,800.00
Fences 30 $0.00 $480.00

Sub Total 72 $5,280.00

TOTAL 216 $11,290,598.00 $96,018.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF MAY 2006
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 390 $3,900.00
Cert. of Occupancy 42 $3,706.90
Plan Review 165 $11,592.00
Microfilm 38 $429.00
Building Permits 216 $96,018.00
Electrical Permits 175 $10,847.00
Heating Permits 129 $8,035.00
Air Cond. Permits 59 $3,625.00
Plumbing Permits 133 $9,200.00
Storm Sewer Permits 23 $677.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 16 $526.00
Sewer Taps 13 $2,704.00

TOTAL 1399 $151,259.90

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING MAY 2006
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 31 $155.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 28 $420.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 61 $61.00
Sewer Inst.-Reg. 7 $350.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 14 $140.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 5 $75.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 5 $50.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 35 $350.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 1 $15.00

TOTAL 187 $1,616.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2005 2005 2006 2006

JANUARY 93 $6,617,765.00 116 $7,273,163.00

FEBRUARY 133 $8,586,755.00 94 $6,659,691.00

MARCH 143 $19,405,253.00 127 $5,629,425.00

APRIL 234 $16,039,899.00 174 $5,766,996.00

MAY 229 $8,974,377.00 216 $11,290,598.00

JUNE 207 $14,432,280.00 0 $0.00

JULY 176 $7,490,327.00 0 $0.00

AUGUST 202 $13,132,327.00 0 $0.00

SEPTEMBER 207 $11,424,698.00 0 $0.00

OCTOBER 169 $12,606,760.00 0 $0.00

NOVEMBER 137 $9,014,642.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 91 $13,489,338.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 2021 $141,214,421.00 727 $36,619,873.00



2004 2004

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2006

12 9 4 9 7

0
10
20
30
40
50
60

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



Jun 1, 2006 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF MAY 2006Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter CONSTRUCTION SPECIALIST 734 E BIG BEAVER  1,550,000
Commercial, Add/Alter CONSTRUCTION SPECIALISTS INC 2750 W BIG BEAVER  500,000
Commercial, Add/Alter THE DAILEY COMPANY 500 W FOURTEEN MILE  500,000
Commercial, Add/Alter DEJAGER 2800 W BIG BEAVER T-241  230,000
Commercial, Add/Alter DEJAGER 2800 W BIG BEAVER V-356  265,055
Commercial, Add/Alter CRANE CONSTRUCTION CO LLC 2801 W BIG BEAVER C-111  400,000

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  3,445,055

Commercial, New Building Cunningham Limp 3670 JOHN R  2,000,000
Commercial, New Building THOMPSON PHELAN GROUP, INC 30 E  LONG LAKE  758,870

Commercial, New BuildingTotal  2,758,870

Inst./Hosp., Add/Alter BALOW, DANIEL 44199 DEQUINDRE 123  300,000
Inst./Hosp., Add/Alter BALOW, DANIEL 44199 DEQUINDRE 120  140,610

Inst./Hosp., Add/AlterTotal  440,610

Religious, Add/Alter KASCO INC 4580 ADAMS  1,050,000

Religious, Add/AlterTotal  1,050,000

Total Valuation:  7,694,535Records  12



campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c



mccombca
Text Box
J-05







 
 
 
June 7, 2006 
 
 
 
To:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item:  Recommendation of Fee Waiver for Military Personnel  
 
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Acting City Manager approve the Parks and Recreation Advisory 
Board recommendation to adopt the Fee Waiver Policy for Active Military Personnel on 
Leave.   
 
 
Background 
At the May 18, 2006 meeting, the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board recommended 
that City Council adopt the Fee Waiver Policy for active Military Personnel.  The City 
Manager has been authorized to establish fees for services in the Parks and Recreation 
division therefore the request for approval is being forwarded to the Acting City 
Manager.   
 
A copy of the policy is attached.   
 
 
 
Approved:  __________________________________ 
  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 

campbellld
Text Box
J-06



 
Fee Waiver Policy for Military Personnel on Leave 

 
 
Eligibility:  Troy residents who are active members of the U.S. Armed Forces, Reserve, 
or National Guard.  “Active Service” shall mean full-time or part-time status in one of the 
branches of the U.S. military forces.  Inactive service status does not qualify.   
 
Active members of the Armed Services, Reserve or National Guard who have returned 
to Troy for no longer than 30 days for either leave or furlough are eligible for fee waivers 
of the following:   
 
 Community Center Fitness Areas 
 Troy Family Aquatic Center 
 Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake Golf Courses (no more than eight free rounds) 
 
Proof required: 

1) U.S. Armed Forces Identification Card showing active status   
AND 

2) Authorized leave or furlough orders 



 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE: June 12, 2006 
 
 
 
TO: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Pet Stores and Commercial Kennels 
 
 
At the May 23, 2006 Planning Commission Special/Study meeting, there was 
general discussion regarding PetSmart pet stores and commercial kennels.  The 
Planning Commission requested City Management to investigate the existing 
Zoning Ordinance regulations regarding these types of businesses.  Further, on 
the June 27, 2006 Planning Commission meeting there is an agenda item to 
explore potential Zoning Ordinance amendments. 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by RBS 
 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\Pet Store_Commercial Kennel CC Memo 06 19 06.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
J-07



campbellld
Text Box
J-08









campbellld
Text Box
J-09

















































































campbellld
Text Box
K-01



























STANDARD RESOLUTION 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM – RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE SALE OF CITY OWNED 
REMNANT PARCEL HAVING SIDWELL # _________ LOCATED IN 
SECTION__, AT THE (LOCATION) - LOT __, SUPERVISORS PLAT #__ 
 
 
Resolution #2006-06- 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of 
certain parcels will best serve the public interest;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be 
served without obtaining sealed bids for the sale of a remnant parcel. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council finds that the 
public interest will best be served without obtaining a sealed bid in accordance 
with Resolution 85-254 Policy Governing Disposal (Sales) of Excess City owned 
property and approve the sale of the remnant parcel having Sidwell #____, 
described in Attachment “A” attached hereto, to_____, the appraised value as 
outlined in the Offer to Purchase, with conditions, plus closing costs;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That closing will take place when all conditions 
have been met; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED 
TO EXECUTE the Agreement to Purchase and the Warranty Deed, on behalf of 
the City; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO 
RECORD said documents, including all attachments, at the Oakland County 
Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to and made a part of 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
DATE:   June 13, 2006 

  
 

 
TO:   John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item – Study Item 
   Blight Strategy Presentation 
    
 
 
 
Most of our code enforcement regulations and activities are meant to enhance the “look” 
of the City of Troy.  This is done to minimize blight and maintain the property values in 
the City.  Staff has prepared a presentation of some examples of code enforcement 
efforts in the City.  We would like to share this with City Council and get their thoughts 
on the current regulations and potential for ordinance revisions.  As part of this 
presentation we would also like to do an explanation of the process of enforcement of 
the Dangerous Building provisions of Chapter 82b of the Troy City Code. 
 
For reference we have provided a copy of the current text of Chapter 82b. 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
K-02



Chapter 82-B - Dangerous Buildings 
 

DANGEROUS BUILDINGS 
 

1. Purpose and Reference to State Act

The procedures set forth in this Chapter are established in the public interest, to secure the 
health and safety of the occupants of dwellings, structures, and the general public.  

This Chapter is enacted pursuant to the Housing Law of Michigan, found at Michigan Compiled 
Laws §125.401 et. seq., and is to be construed in conjunction therewith and interpreted to 
comply with the language of said law and any subsequent amendments. 

2. Designation of Enforcement Body

The Director of Building and Zoning, his authorized representatives and employees, shall 
enforce the provisions of this Chapter, and shall have jurisdiction to establish the inspection and 
violation procedures to implement said enforcement. 

3.  Joint Implementation

This Chapter may be enforced by any other governmental agency by joint agreement where 
joint enforcement is practicable.  

4. Dangerous Building, Prohibition. 

It is unlawful for any owner or agent thereof to keep or maintain any structure or part thereof 
which is a dangerous building as defined in Section 5 (3). 

5. Definitions. 

(1) "City Council" shall mean the legislative body to hear appeals at the local level. 

(2) "Owner" means any person, firm, partnership, association or corporation and/or their 
legal successors.  All proceedings, actions, or prosecutions hereunder in which the 
owner of any building, structure, or part thereof, shall be subject to the provisions of this 
ordinance. 

(3) "Dangerous Building" means a building or structure which has one or more of the 
following defects or is in one or more of the following conditions: 

(a) A door, aisle, passageway, stairway or other means of exit does not conform to 
the approved fire code of the City of Troy. 

(b) A portion of the building is damaged by fire, wind, flood, or other cause in such a 
manner that the structural strength or stability of the building is appreciably less 
than it was before such catastrophe and does not meet the minimum 
requirements of the City of Troy ordinances. 

(c) A portion of the building or structure has settled to such an extent that walls or 
other structural portions have materially less resistance to winds than is required 
for new construction under the City of Troy ordinances. 

 

 

(4-17-00) 

82B-1 



Chapter 82-B - Dangerous Buildings 
 

(d) The building or structure or part of the building or structure, because of 
dilapidation, deterioration, decay, faulty construction, or the removal or 
movement of some portion of the ground necessary for support or for other 
reason, is likely to partially or completely collapse, or become detached, or some 
portion of the foundation or underpinning of the building or structure is likely to 
fall or give way. 

(e) The building, structure, or part of the building or structure is manifestly unsafe for 
the purpose for which it is intended to be used. 

(f)  The building or structure is vacant, dilapidated and open at any door or window 
leaving the interior of the building exposed to the elements or accessible to 
entrance by trespassers or otherwise becomes an attractive nuisance to children 
who might play in the building or structure to their danger, or becomes a harbor 
for vagrants, criminals or immoral persons or enables persons to resort to the 
building or structure for committing a nuisance or an unlawful or immoral act.  

(g) A residence or the adjoining grounds of a building or structure which is used or 
intended to be used for dwelling purposes is unsanitary or unfit for human 
habitation, due to dilapidation, decay, damage, or faulty construction or 
arrangement or otherwise is in a condition that the Director of Building and 
Zoning or his authorized representatives or employees determines is likely to 
cause sickness or disease or is likely to injure the health, continued safety or 
general welfare of people living in the residence.  

(h) An owner has been previously notified of existing code violation(s), according to 
the provisions of this Chapter and after said notice has left the structure 
unattended or unoccupied, whether boarded up or in an open condition, for a 
period exceeding thirty (30) days, then the structure shall be declared a 
dangerous building. 

3. Notice of Dangerous and Unsafe Condition, Issuance, Recipient, Contents, Filing, Form, 
 Service; City Council 

(1) When the whole or any part of any building or structure is found to be in a dangerous 
building the Director of Building and Zoning or his authorized representatives or 
employees shall issue a notice declaring that the building or structure is a dangerous 
building.  The notice shall itemize the current code violation(s) and dangerous 
condition(s) and specify a time to complete all necessary repairs or demolish the building 
or structure.  

(2) The notice shall be served on the owner of record or the registered agent and upon the 
holder of any encumbrance of record in the manner provided for service of a summons 
by a court of record.  If the owner or holder of an encumbrance of record cannot be 
found, the notice may be served by posting it on the main entrance of the building and 
publishing it once a week for three (3) successive weeks in a newspaper authorized to 
provide service by publication. 

(3) The notice shall specify the right of the owner to appeal to City Council the dangerous 
building determination of the Director of Building and Zoning or his authorized 
representatives or employees. The notice shall also set forth the administrative appeal 
procedure, including the requirement that any appeal under this section shall be filed in 
writing to the Director of Building and Zoning or his authorized representatives or 
employees within ten days of service of the notice. 

(4-17-00)     82B-2 



Chapter 82-B - Dangerous Buildings 
 

4. Waiver of Hearing; Testimony; Determination to Close Proceedings or Order Building 
 Demolished or Made Safe, Compliance, Hearing, Cost of Compliance As Lien  Collection. 

(1) If a written appeal of the dangerous building determination is not received within ten 
days of the date of service of the notice, as described in section 3, then a public hearing 
will not be necessary, and the matter shall be referred to the City Council for resolution. 

(2) If a written appeal of the dangerous building determination is received within the 
allocated ten day period, then a public hearing will be scheduled before City Council as 
soon as administratively possible.  At the public hearing, the City Council shall take the 
testimony from the Director of Building and Zoning and/or his authorized representatives 
and employees, testimony from the owner of the property and any other interested party 
to determine whether the building or structure constitutes a dangerous building pursuant 
to this Chapter.  

(3) If it is determined by the City Council that the building or structure is a dangerous 
building and therefore should be demolished or made habitable, Council shall order the 
demolition or necessary repairs be completed.  The repairs shall be ordered to be 
completed by a specified time, which shall not exceed 21 days after the hearing and/or 
the resolution.  

(4) If the ordered demolition or repairs are not completed within the allocated time period, as 
set forth in section (3), City Council can then authorize any and all necessary action to 
enforce their order.  This includes, but is not limited to, causing the structure or any part 
of the structure to be razed and removed either through an available public agency or by 
contract or arrangement with private persons, and the cost of such razing and removal 
shall be charged against the real estate upon which the structure is located and shall be 
a lien upon such real estate.   

(5) The owner or party in interest in whose name the property appears upon the last local 
tax assessment records shall be notified of the the cost of the necessiated repairs or 
demolition by first class mail at the address shown on the records.  If the owner fails to 
pay the same within thirty (30) days after mailing by the Assessor of the notice of the 
amount thereof, the Assessor shall add the same to the next tax roll of the City of Troy, 
and the same shall be collected in the same manner in all respects as provided by law 
for the collection of taxes by the City of Troy.  The City Council shall also have the option 
of initiating a lawsuit to recover the City’s full cost of necessitated demolition and/or 
repair.  If the City receives a favorable judgment, then said judgment may be assessed 
against all of the assets of the owner of the property, not just the real estate that is the 
subject of the dangerous building determination.  

5. Appeal to Circuit Court. 

An owner aggrieved by any final decision or order of the City Council, made pursuant to this 
Chapter, may appeal the decision or order to the Circuit Court by filing a petition for an order of 
superintending control within twenty (20) days from the date of the decision. 

 

 

(4-17-00) 

82B-3 

 



Chapter 82-B - Dangerous Buildings 
 

6. Emergency: 

The Fire Chief or Director of Building and Zoning or his authorized representatives or 
employees shall have the power to abate any public nuisance from any dangerous structure or 
building if the public safety shall require immediate action due to a distinct hazard to life or 
property, without preliminary notice as otherwise required by this section.  Thereafter the cost of 
abating such public nuisance shall be charged against the owner or occupant of the premises 
and payment hereof shall be enforced as a special assessment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(4-17-00) 

82B-4 


	AGENDA: June 19, 2006
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	a\) St. Nicholas Greek Orthodox Church M�


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Rezoning Application (File No: Z 717) – Proposed Medical
	C-2 Rezoning Application (File No: Z 718) – Proposed Curves,

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Rezoning Application (File No. Z 704) – Proposed Dunkin 

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation:
	a\) Parks and Recreation Month – July 20�

	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: T�
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award Photographic Services
	c\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Be�
	d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder Contract 06-5 Charnwood Hills Sanitary Sewer Phase I

	E-5 Approval of Cost Participation Agreement for the Reconst
	E-6 Sole Source Purchase – Deep Slicer Cassette Kit
	E-7 Request for Acceptance of Private Road Agreement and Per
	E-8 Application for Transfer of Class C License for Hooters 
	E-9 Sale of Rochester Road Remnant Parcel #20-22-426-057, Se
	E-10 2005-2006 Budget Amendment No. 3

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local Development Finance Authoity (LDFA); and Planning Commission b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Commi
	F-2 Revisions to Troy City Code Chapter 11 (Personnel Board)
	F-3 2006 Annual Salary Update for Classified and Exempt Empl
	F-4 Bi-Annual 2006 Part-time Wage Survey and Recommendations
	F-5 Traffic Committee Recommendations – April 19, 2006
	F-6 Traffic Committee Recommendations – May 17, 2006
	F-7 Proposed Revisions to DDA By-Laws
	F-8 Extend and Amend Contract for Sidewalk Replacement

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	a\) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1868 Wel�
	b\) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2127 Atl�
	c\) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment \(F

	G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  Troy City Code Chapter 18 (Water Utility) – Council Mem

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Personnel Board/Final – June 8, 2004
	Historic District Study Committee/Final – June 7, 2005
	Personnel Board/Final – December 20, 2005
	Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – March 16, 2006
	Downtown Development Authority/Draft – April 19, 2006
	Downtown Development Authority/Final – April 19, 2006
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – May 3, 2006
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – May 4, 2006
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – May 9, 2006
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – May 9, 2006
	Library Advisory Board/Draft – May 11, 2006
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – May 16, 2006
	Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Draft – May 18, 2006
	Historic District Study Committee/Final – May 23, 2006
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – May 23, 2006
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – May 23, 2006
	Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – May 23, 2006
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – June 1, 2006
	Personnel Board/Draft – June 5, 2006
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – June 6, 2006
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – June 7, 2006

	J-2 Department Reports:
	a\) Purchasing Department – Final Report�
	b\) Building Department – Permits Issued�

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter to Chief Craft from Keith Pretty, J.D., President of 
	Letter of Thanks to Officer Cole and Officer Mairorano from 
	Letter of Appreciation to Captain Murphy from John Gladysz, 

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol 
	J-7  Communication from Planning Director Mark Miller Regard
	J-8  Communication from Traffic Engineer John Abraham Regard
	J-9  Communication from City Engineer Steve Vandette Regardi

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 Disposal/Sale of Excess Property
	K-2 Blight Strategy Presentation

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested

	ADJOURNMENT



